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1. Statethe name of the applicant: BOXExchangeLLC

2. Provide the applicant's primary street address (Do not use a P.O.Box):

101ArchStreet,Suile610,Boston.MA02110
Ma Plummoe

3. Provide the applicant's mailing address (if different): SC' i

4. Provide the applicant's business telephone and facsimile number:
617-235-2235 617-235-2253

(Telephone) (Facsimile)

5. Provide the name, title, and telephone number of a contact employee:
LisaJ.Fai President 617-2352235

(Name) (Title) (Telephone Number)

A Provide the name and address of counsel for the applicant:
AlannaBarton
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sosion.MA02110 19003679
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where incorporated, place where partnership agreement was filed or where applicant entity was formed):
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(c) Statute under which applicant was organized: DLLCA Sec. 18-201
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applicant represent that the information and statements contained herein, including exhibits, schedules, or other documents att ached hereto,

and other information filed herewith, all of which are made a part hereot are current, true, and complete.

Date: 06/24/19 BOX Exchange LLC
(MM/DD (Name of applicant)

By: Lisa J. Fall, President

(Sig ture) (Printed Name and Title) 1

Subscribed and swom before me this a day of - , a by
(Month) (Year) ( otary Public)
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June24, 2019

Via FedEx SE G

Mr. David Hsu Sea -

Assistant Director JUN ? 7 M"
Division of Trading and Markets
U.S.Securities and Exchange Commission Nasom on ut
100F Street N.E. 406

Washington, DC 20549

Re: BOX Exchange LLC
Amendment No. 33 to Form l

Dear Mr. Hsu:

Enclosed for filing are an original andtwo copies of Amendment No.33 to Form 1 (the
"Amendment"). The Amendment includes an updated execution page and the following,
except as provided in connection with Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange
Act") Rule 6a-2(d)(3), where noted:

1. Complete Exhibits D, I, K, M and N pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 6a-2(b).'

2. Complete Exhibits A, B, C and J pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 6a-2(c).2

Except as set forth above, neither the Form I nor any exhibits thereto are being changed by
this Amendment No. 33.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely yours,

Lisa J. Fall
President
BOX Exchange LLC

cc: Glen R.Openshaw, Esq.

Enclosures

'17 C.F.R.§240.6a-2(b).

2 17 c.F.R. §240.6a-2(c).

101 Arch Street.Suite 610.Boston.MA 02110 www.bonoptions.com 135 s. Lasalle street. Suite 4250, Chicago, IL 60603

Tel.: 617-235-2291 Fax: 617-235-2253 Tel.: 312-251-7000 Fax: 312-251-7001



BOX EXCHANGE LLC

AMENDMENT No. 33
to

FORM 1 APPLICATION
and

EXHIBITS

The Form 1 application is hereby amended as set forth in this Amendment No.33.
The Form 1 application is not being modified in any respect other than to the extent
set forth below.

CO PY



Amendment to:

Exhibit A

Request:
A copy of the constitution, articles of incorporation or association with all subsequent
amendments, and of existing by-laws or corresponding rules or instruments, whatever the
name, of the applicant.

Exhibit A is hereby amended by deleting the prior response in its entirety and
inserting a new response to Exhibit A as set forth below.

Response:

Copies of the below listed Exchange documents are continuously available on the
Exchange's website at the following address:
https://boxoptions.com/regulatory/governing-documents-related-information-nms-
plans/corporate-governance/.

1. Limited Liability Company Agreement

2. Bylaws

3. Certificate of Formation

4. Certificate of Amendment

The Exchange certifies that the information available at the above location is accurate as
of its date.



Amendment to:

Exhibit B

Request:
A copy of all written rulings, settled practices having the effect of rules, and
interpretations of the Governing Board or other committee of the applicant in respect of
any provisions of the constitution, by-laws, rules, or trading practices of the applicant
which are not included in Exhibit A.

Exhibit B is hereby amended by deleting the prior response in its entirety and
inserting a new response to Exhibit B as set forth below.

Response:

The requested information is continuously available on the Exchange's website at the
following address: https://boxoptions.com/regulatory/rulebook-filings/ and
https://boxoptions.com/circulars/. This includes, but is not limited to, the Rules of the
Exchange, rule filings, regulatory circulars, and pilot reports.

The Exchange certifies that the information available at the above location is accurate as
of its date.



O P T I O N S

Amendment to:

Exhibit C

Request:
For each subsidiary or affiliate of the applicant, and for any entity with whom the
applicant has a contractual or other agreement relating to the operation of an electronic
trading system to be used to effect transactions on the exchange ("System"), provide the
following information:

1. Name and address of organization.

2. Form of organization (e.g.,association, corporation, partnership, etc.).

3. Name of state and statute citation under which organized. Date of incorporation in
present form.

4. Brief description of nature and extent of affiliation.

5. Brief description of business or functions. Description should include
responsibilities with respect to operation of the System and/or execution,
reporting, clearance, or settlement of transactions in connection with operation of
the System.

6. A copy of the constitution.

7. A copy of the articles of incorporation or association including all amendments.

8. A copy of existing by-laws or corresponding rules or instruments.

9. The name and title of the present officers, governors, members of all standing
committees, or persons performing similar functions.

10.An indication of whether such business or organization ceased to be associated

with the applicant during the previous year, and a brief statement of the reasons
for termination of the association.

Exhibit C is hereby amended by deleting the prior response in its entirety and
inserting a new response to Exhibit C as set forth below.



|BOX"O P T I O N D

Response:

BOX Holdings Group LLC

1. Name: BOX Holdings Group LLC
Address: 101 Arch Street, Suite 610, Boston, MA 02110

2. Limited Liability Company

3. BOX Holdings Group LLC was formed under the Delaware Limited Liability
Company Act (6 Del. C.§18-101,et.seq.) on August 26,2010.

4. BOX Holdings Group LLC is 41.33% owned by MX US 2, Inc. MX US 2, Inc.
also holds a 20% voting interest and a 40% economic interest in the Exchange.
BOX Holdings Group LLC is the 100% owner of BOX Options Market LLC, a
facility of the Exchange.

5. BOX Holdings Group LLC serves as a vehicle for holding interests in BOX
Options Market LLC.

6. Not applicable.

7. A copy of the BOX Holdings Group LLC Second Amended and Restated Limited
Liability Company Agreement is continuously available on the Exchange's
website at the following address: https://boxoptions.com/regulatory/governing-
documents-related-information-nms-plans/corporate-governance/. The Exchange
certifies that the information available at the above location is accurate as of its
date.

8. Not applicable.

9. Officers of BOX Holdings Group LLC:
• Peter J.Layton, Chief Executive Officer
• Lisa Fall, President, Chief Legal Officer & Secretary

Directors of BOX Holdings Group LLC:
• Peter J.Layton (Chairman), Chief Executive Officer, BOX Holdings

Group LLC
• Luc Bertrand, Vice Chair, National Bank Financial Group

• John McKenzie, CFO, TMX Group, Inc.
• Milan Galik, Senior Vice President, Interactive Brokers Group, LLC
• David M.Battan, Vice President and General Counsel, Interactive Brokers

Group, LLC
• William Easley (Vice Chairman), Managing Director, Aragon Solutions, Ltd.
• Marin Nitzov, Algorithmic Trader, Citadel Group



• Charles Mogilevsky, Managing Director, Citigroup Inc.
• Calin Ciordas-Ciurdariu, Managing Director, Credit Suisse Group

• Kenneth MacHarg, Managing Director, JP Morgan

• Ryan Gould, Managing Director, UBS

Committees:
Audit Committee:

• David Battan

• Peter Layton
• Charles Mogilevsky

Compensation Committee:
• Peter Layton
• Milan Galik

• Ryan Gould

Executive Committee:

• Peter Layton
• Luc Bertrand

• William Easley
• Milan Galik
• John McKenzie

10.Not applicable.



BOX Options Market LLC

1. Name: BOX Options Market LLC
Address: 101Arch Street, Suite 610, Boston, MA 02110

2. Limited Liability Company

3. BOX Market LLC was formed under the Delaware Limited Liability Company

Act (6 Del. C.§18-101,et. seq.)on August 26, 2010.A certificate of amendment
of"BOX Market LLC" changing its name from "BOX Market LLC" to "BOX
Options Market LLC" was filed July 17, 2018

4. BOX Options Market LLC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of BOX Holdings Group
LLC. BOX Options Market LLC operates as a facility of the Exchange pursuant
to a Facility Agreement between BOX Options Market LLC and the Exchange.

5. BOX Options Market LLC operates an equity options market as a facility of the
Exchange.

6. Not applicable.

7. A copy of the BOX Options Market LLC Amended and Restated Limited
Liability Company Agreement is continuously available on the Exchange's
website at the following address: https://boxoptions.com/regulatory/governing-
documents-related-information-nms-plans/corporate-governance/. The Exchange
certifies that the information available at the above location is accurate as of its
date.

8. Not applicable.

9. Officers of BOX Options Market LLC:

• Ed Boyle, Chief Executive Officer
• Lisa Fall, President, Chief Legal Officer & Secretary
• Patrick Zielinski - SVP, Market Operations & Technology

Directors of BOX Options Market LLC:
• Peter J.Layton (Chairman), Chief Executive Officer, Tallgrass Group, LLC
• Luc Bertrand, Vice Chair, National Bank Financial Group

• John McKenzie, CFO, TMX Group Inc.
• Milan Galik, Senior Vice President, Interactive Brokers Group, LLC
• David M.Battan, Vice President and General Counsel, Interactive Brokers

Group, LLC
• William Easley (Vice Chairman), Managing Director, Aragon Solutions, Ltd.
• Marin Nitzov, Algorithmic Trader, Citadel Group
• Charles Mogilevsky, Managing Director, Citigroup Inc.



• Calin Ciordas-Ciurdariu, Managing Director, Credit Suisse Group

• Kenneth MacHarg, Managing Director, JPMorgan

• Ryan Gould, Managing Director, UBS

Committees:
Audit Committee:

• David Battan

• Peter Layton
• Charles Mogilevsky

Compensation Committee:
• Peter Layton
• Milan Galik

• Ryan Gould

Executive Committee:

• Peter Layton
• Luc Bertrand

• Ed Boyle
• William Easley
• Milan Galik

• John McKenzie

10.Not applicable.



TMX Group Limited

1. Name: TMX Group Limited
Address: 300 - 100 Adelaide Street West, Toronto, Ontario M5H 1S3Canada

2. Corporation

3. TMX Group Limited was incorporated under the laws of Ontario, Canada on
April 28,2011 and is publicly traded.

4. TMX Group Limited holds 100% of the outstanding shares of TMX Group Inc.
TMX Group Inc. is the sole owner of Bourse de Montréal Inc. Bourse de
Montréal Inc.is the sole owner of MX US 1,Inc.,which is the sole owner of

MX US 2, Inc. MX US 2, Inc. holds a 20% voting interest and a 40% economic
interest in the Exchange.MX US 2, Inc. also holds a 41.33% interest in BOX
Holdings Group LLC, which is the 100%owner of BOX Options Market LLC, a
facility of the Exchange.

5. TMX Group Limited is the parent company of TMX Group Inc. and also holds
100% ownership interest in The Canadian Depository for Securities Limited, a
provider of depository, clearing, settlement, regulatory and information services,
and in Alpha Trading Systems Inc.,which holds a 100% ownership interest in
Alpha Trading Systems Limited Partnership, parent company of an automated
securities exchange.

6. Not applicable.

7. See Exhibit C-1, pages 1-34, TMX Group Limited Articles of Incorporation and
amendments.

8. See Exhibit C-1, pages 35-53, TMX Group Limited By-Laws.

9. Directors of TMX Group Limited:

• Charles Winograd
• Luc Bertrand
• Nicolas Darveau-Garneau

• Louis Eccleston
• Christian Exshaw

• Marie Giguère
• Martine Irman

• Harry Jaako
• Lise Lachapelle
• William Linton
• JeanMartel

• Gerri Sinclair



• Kevin Sullivan

• Eric Wetlaufer
• Michael Wissell

Officers of TMX Group Limited:

• Charles Winograd, Chair of the Board
• Louis Eccleston, Chief Executive Officer

• Luc Fortin, President and CEO, Montreal Exchange and Global Head of
Trading

• John McKenzie, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

• Cheryl Graden,Senior Vice President, Group Head of Legal and Business
Affairs, Enterprise Risk Management and Government Relations, and
Corporate Secretary

• Mary Lou Hukezalie, Senior Vice President, Group Head of Human
Resources

• Jay Rajarathinam, Chief Technology and Operations Officer

10.Not applicable.



O P T I O N E

Bourse de Montréal Inc.

1. Name: Bourse de Montréal Inc.
Address: 1800 - 1190 Avenue des Canadiens-de-Montreal, P.O.Box 37,
Montréal, Quebec,H3B OG7,Canada.

2. Corporation.

3. Bourse de Montréal Inc. was formed in Quebec under the Companies Act on

May 1,2008.

4. Bourse de Montréal Inc. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of TMX Group Limited.
Bourse de Montréal Inc. is the sole owner of MX US 1,Inc.,which is the sole
owner of MX US 2, Inc. MX US 2, Inc. holds a 20% voting interest and a 40%
economic interest in the Exchange.MX US 2, Inc. also holds a 41.33% interest in
BOX Holdings Group LLC, which is the 100% owner of BOX Options Market
LLC, a facility ofthe Exchange.

5. Bourse de Montréal Inc. operates a financial derivatives exchange in Canada and
is a leading provider of information technology services and clearing services.
Bourse de Montréal Inc.provides information technology services to the
Exchange and to BOX Options Market LLC, a facility of the Exchange.

6. Not applicable.

7. See Exhibit C-2, pages 1-21, Bourse de Montréal Inc.Articles of Incorporation.

8. See Exhibit C-2, pages 22-38, Bourse de Montréal Inc. By-Laws.

9. Directors of Bourse de Montréal Inc.:
• Charles Winograd
• Luc Bertrand
• Nicolas Darveau-Garneau

• Louis Eccleston
• Christian Exshaw

• Marie Giguère
• Martine Irman

• Harry Jaako
• Lise Lachapelle
• William Linton

• JeanMartel
• Gerri Sinclair

• Kevin Sullivan
• Eric Wetlaufer
• Michael Wissell



Officers of Bourse de Montréal Inc.:

• Charles Winograd, Chair of the Board

• Frank Di Liso,Vice President,FinanceandAdministration
• Luc Fortin, President and CEO
• Cheryl Graden, Senior Vice President, Head of Legal and Business

Affairs, Enterprise Risk Management and Government Relations
• Mary Lou Hukezalie, Senior Vice President, Head of Human Resources
• John McKenzie, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

• Julie Rochette, Vice President and Chief Regulatory Officer
• Nicholas Santini, Corporate Secretary

10.Not applicable.



B O X "
O P T I O N El

MX US 1,Inc.

1. Name: MX US 1,Inc.
Address: 2711 Centreville Road, Suite 400, Wilmington, DE 19808.

2. Corporation.

3. MX US 1,Inc. was incorporated under Section 101of the General Corporation
Law of the State of Delaware on July 10,2008.

4. MX US 1, Inc. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bourse de Montréal Inc.
MX US 1, Inc. is the sole owner of MX US 2, Inc.,which holds a 20% voting
interest and a 40% economic interest in the Exchange. MX US 2, Inc. also holds a
41.33% interest in BOX Holdings Group LLC, which is the 100% owner of BOX
Options Market LLC, a facility of the Exchange.

5. MX US 1, Inc. has no operations and is a vehicle for holding interests in MX US
2, Inc.

6. Not applicable.

7. SeeExhibit C-3, pages 1-8, MX US 1,Inc. Articles of Incorporation.

8. SeeExhibit C-3, pages 9-28, MX US 1,Inc. By-Laws.

9. Directors of MX US 1,Inc.:
• Luc Fortin

Officers of MX US 1, Inc.:
• Luc Fortin, President
• Nicholas Santini, Secretary

10.Not applicable.



O P T I O N S

MXUS2,Inc.
1. Name: MX US 2, Inc.

Address: 2711 Centreville Road, Suite 400, Wilmington, DE 19808.

2. Corporation.

3. MX US 2, Inc. was incorporated under Section 101pursuant to the General
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware on December 27, 2007.

4. MX US 2, Inc. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of MX US 1, Inc. MX US 2, Inc.
holds a 20% voting interest and a 40% economic interest in the Exchange.
MX US 2, Inc. also holds a 41.33% interest in BOX Holdings Group LLC, which
is the 100%owner of BOX Options Market LLC, a facility of the Exchange.

5. MX US 2, Inc. has no operations and is a vehicle for holding interests in BOX
Holdings Group LLC and the Exchange.

6. Not applicable.

7. See Exhibit C-4, pages 1-16, MX US 2, Inc. Articles of Incorporation.

8. See Exhibit C-4, pages 17-36, MX US 2, Inc. By-Laws.

9. Directors of MX US 2, Inc.:
• Luc Fortin

Officers of MX US 2, Inc.:
• Luc Fortin, President
• Nicholas Santini, Secretary

10.Not applicable.

Indirect Foreign Affiliates
The parent ownership structure of MX US 1, Inc. is comprised entirely of foreign entities
(the "Foreign Direct Affiliates"), which in turn own interests, either directly or indirectly,
of 25 percent or more in a number of other entities (such Foreign Direct Affiliate-owned
entities, not including dormant entities, collectively the "Foreign Indirect Affiliates").

SeeExhibit C-8 for the corporate structure of TMX Group Limited organizational chart
as well as a table of affiliated entities.



Exhibit C-1 - TMX Group Limited Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws



For Ministry Use Only Ontarlo Corporation Number

Àrus excluglißlt@NNŠWrnment Ministère des Services Numéro de la société en Ontario
and ConsumerServices gouvernementauxet des

OMNe Servicesaux consommateurs 1986416
CERTIFICATE CERTIFICAT
This is to certify that these CecIcertiflequelesprésents
articles are effective on statuts entrent envigueurle

Director / Dlrectrice
Business Corporations Act / Lol sur les sociétés par actions

ARTICLES OF AMALGAMATION
STATUTS DE FUSION

Form4 1. Thenameof the amalgamated corporation is: (Setout inBLOCK CAPITAL LETTERS)
Business Dénominationsociale de la société Issuede la fusion: (licrire en LETTRES MAJUSCULES SEULEMENT):

Corporations
Act TMX GROUP LI MI TED / GROUPE TMX

Formule 4 L I M I T É E
Loi surles
soclétóspar
actions

2. The address of the registered offlee is:
Adresse dusiègesocial:

I
130 King Street West

Street & Number or R.R. Number & If Multi-Offlee Bullding give Room No./
Rue et numéroounuméto de la R.R.et, s'il s'agit d'un édifice ébureaux,numérodu bureau

Toronto ONTARIO . M 5 X 1 J 2
Üïmeof Municipality or Post Office / Postal Code/Code postal
Nom de la municipalité ou du bureau de poste

3. Numberof directors is: Fixed number ORminimumand maximum

Nombre d'administrateurs : Nombre fixe 00 minimum et maximum 3 24

4. The director(s) ls/are:/Administrateur(s) :
First name,middle names and sumame Address for service, giving Street & No.or R.R.No.,Municipality, Resident Canadian

Prénom,autres prénomset nomde famille Province, Country andPostal Code State 'Yes' or 'No'
Domicile élu, y compris la rue et le numéro oule numéro de la R.R.,le Résident canadlen
nom de la municipailté, la province, le pays et le code postal Oul/Non

Luc Bertrand 130 King StreetWest,Toronto, ON MSX 1J2 Yes

Denyse Chicoyne 130King Street West,Toronto, ON MSX 1J2 Yes

Maric Giguere 130 King Street West, Toronto, ON MSX IJ2 Yes

Louis Eccleston ^ 130 King Street West, Toronto, ON MSX 1J2 No

07121 (201105) © Queen's Printer for Ontario, 2011 / © Imprimeur de la Reine pour rontarlo, 2011 Page 1of/de e
BOX Exchange LLC Exhibit C-1 Page 1



1A

4.The directors are:

First name,middlesnames and Address for service,giving Street & No.or R.R.No., Resident Canadian
surname Munfelpality, Provinee, County and Postal Code State'Yes' or 'No'

Jeffrey Heath 130King StreetWest, Toronto, ON M5X 1J2 Yes

Martine Irman 130King Street West, Toronto, ON M5X 1J2 Yes

Harry Jaako 130King Street West, Toronto, ON MSX 1J2 Yes

Lise Lachapelle 130King Street West, Toronto, ON M5X 1J2 Yes

William Linton 130King Street West, Toronto, ON MSX 1J2 Yes

Jean Martel 130King Street West, Toronto, ON M5X IJ2 Yes

Gerri Sinclair 130King Street West, Toronto, ON M5X 1J2 Yes

Kevin Sullivan 130King Street West, Toronto, ON MSX IJ2 Yes

Anthony Walsh 130King Street West, Toronto, ON M5X 1J2 Yes

Eric Wetlaufer 130King Street West,Toronto, ON M5X 1J2 No

CharlesWinograd 130King Street West,Toronto, ON M5X 1J2 Yes

Michael Wissell 130King Street West, Toronto, ON M5X 1J2 Yes

Christian Exshaw 130King Street West, Toronto, ON M5X 1J2 Yes

Peter Pontikes 130 King Street West, Toronto, ON MSX 1J2 Yes

24615493.1
BOX ExchangeLLC Exhibit C-1 Page2



5. Method ofamalgamation,check Aor B
Méthode choisie pour la fusion - Cocher A ou B :

A- Amalgamation Agreement / Convention de fusion :

The amalgamationagreementhas been duly adoptedby the shareholdersof each of theamalgamating
corporations as required by subsection 176 (4) of the Sus/ness CorpootionsAct on the date set out below.

Lesactionnairesdechaquesoclétéquifusionnneontdentadoptélaconventiondefusionconformément
or au paragraphe 176(4) de la Lolsurles soclétés par act/ons å la date mentionnée cl-dessous.
ou

B - Amalgamation of a holding corporation and one or moro of its subsidlaries or amalgamation of
subsidiaries / Fuslon d'une société mèreavecune ou plusieurs de ses flllales ou fusion de filiales :

The amalgamation has been approved by the directors of each amalgamating corporation by a resolution as
required by section 177 of theBusiness Corporations Act onthedate setoutbelow.
Lesadministrateurs de chaque sociétéqui fusionne ontapprouvé la fusion par voie de résolution
conformément à l'article 177 de la Colsuries soclétésparact/ons éla date mentionnée ci-dessous.

Thearticles of amalgamation in substance contain the provisions of the articles of incorporation of
Lesstatuts de fusion reprennentessentiellement les dispositions des statuts constitutifs de

TMX GROUP LIMITED / GROUPE TMX LIMITÉE

and are more particularly set out in these articles.
et sont énoncéstextuellement auxprésentsstatuts.

Date of Adoption/Approval
Namesof amalgamating corporations Ontario Corporation Number Date d'adoption ou d'approbation
Dénomination sociale des sociétésqui fusionnent Numérode la sociétéen Ontario Year Month Day

année mois Jour

TMX GROUP INC./ GROUPE TMX INC. ÈK 6 ¿E 2017/12/13

TMX GROUP LIMITED / GROUPE TMX 2283189 2017/12/13
LIMITÉE

07121 (201105) Page 2 of/de e
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6. Restrictions, if any, on business the corporation may carry on or on powers the corporation may exercise.
Limites,s'll ya lleu, imposéesauxactivitéscommercialesouauxpouvoirsde la société.

None.

7. The classes and any maximum number of shares that the corporation isauthorized to Issue:
Catégorieset nombre maximal,s'ily a lieu, d'actionsque la sociétéestautoriséeàémettre:

(i) an unlimited number of sharesto be designated ascommon shares;and
(ii) an unlimited number of shares to be designated as PreferenceShares,issuable in series.

07121 (201105) Page 3 of/de 6
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8. Rights, privlieges, restrictions and conditions (if any) attaching to each class of shares and directors authority with respect to
anyclassof shareswhichmaybe issuedinseries:

Droits, priviléges, restrictions et conditions, s'il y a lieu, rattachés àchaque catégorle d'actions et pouvoirs
des administrateurs relatifs àchaquecatégoried'actions qui peutétreémiseensérie:

Seeattached hereto pages4A to and including 4C

07121 (201105) Page 4 of/de s
BOX Exchange LLC Exhibit C-1 Page5



4A

PREFERENCE SHARES

Directors' Right to issue One or More Series

The Preference Shares may be issuedat any time or frometime to time in one or more series.
Before any shares of a series are issued,the board of directors of the Corporation shall fix the
number of shares that will form that series and shall, subject to limitations set out in the
Articles of the Corporation, determine the designation, rights, privileges, restrictions and
conditions to be attached to the Preference Shares of that series,the whole subject to the filing
with the Director (as defined in the Business Corporations Act (Ontario) (the "OBCA"))of
Articles of Amendment containing a description of that series including the rights,privileges,
restrictions andconditionsdeterminedby the boardof directors of the Corporation.

Ranking of the PreferenceShares

The Preference Shares.of eachseriesshall rarik on a parity with the Preference Shares of every
other series with respect to dividends and return of capital in the event of the liquidation,
dissolution or winding-up of the Corporation, and shall be entitled to a preference over the
Common Shares of the Corporation and over any other shares ranking junior to the Preference
Shareswith respect to priority in paymentof dividends and in the distribution of assets in the
event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Corporation, whether voluntary or
involuntary, or any other distribution of the assetsof the Corporation among its shareholders
for the purpose of winding-up its affairs.

If any cumulative dividends,whether or not.declared, or declarednon-cumulative dividendsor
amoutits payableon a return of capital in theevent of the liquidation, dissolution or winding-
up of the Corporation are not paid in full in respect of any series of the Preference Shares,the
PreferenceShares of all series shall participate rateably in respect of those dividends in
accordancewith the sumsthat would be payableon those shares if all of those dividends were
declared and paid in full, and in respect of that return of capital in accordage with the sums
that would be payable on that return of capital if all sums so payable Were paid in full;
provided, hoveever,that if there are insufficient assets to satisfy in full all of those claims,the
claims of theholdersof thePreferenceShareswith respectto retumof capitalshall be paidand
satisfied first and .any .assets then remaining shall be applied towards the payment and
satisfaction of claims in respect of dívidends.

The Preference Sharesof any seriesmay also be given any other preference not inconsistent
with the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attachedto the Preference Shares as.a
class over the Common Sharesof the Corporation and over any other shares rankingjunior to
the Préference Shaties asmay bedeterminedin the case of that series of Preference Shares,

Voting Rights

Except i s referred to below or as requiredby law or utiless provision is madein the Articles of
/ t eCor oration rotatingto anyseries of PreferenceSharesthaithe series is entitled to Vote,the

BOX Exchange LLC Exhibit C-I Page 6



48

holders of the Preference Shares shall not be entitled as such to receive notice of, to attend or
vote at any meeting of theshareholders of the Corporation.

Amendment with Approval of Holders of the PreferenceShares

The rights, privileges, restrictions andconditions attachedto the PreferenceSharesas a class
may be added to, changed or removed but only with the approval of the holders of the
Preference Shares given asspecifiedbelow.

Approval of Holders of thePreference Shares

The approval of the holdersof the PreferenceSharesto add to, changeor removeany right,
privilege, restriction or condition attachingto the PreferenceSharesas a classor in respectof
any other matter requiring the consentof the holdersof the PreferenceSharesmaybe given in
any manner as may then be required by law, subject to a minimum requirement that the
approval be given by resolutionsigned by all theholdersof the PreferenceSharesorpassedby
the affinnative vote of at least 2/3 of the votes cast at a meeting of the holdersof the
Preference Shares duly calledandheld for that purpose.

The formallties to be 'observedwith respect to the giving of any notice of any meeting or any
adjournedmeeting, the quorum required for the meeting and the conduct of the meetingshall
be those from time to timo prescribed by the by-laws of the Corporation with respect to
meetingsof shareholders,or if not so prescribed,as required by the OBCA as in force at the
time of the meeting. On every poll taken at cycry meeting of the holders of the Preference
Shares as a class,or at any joint meeting of the holdersof two or more series of Preference
Shares,eachholder of Preference Shares entitled to vote at the meeting shall haveone vote in
respect of each $1.00of the issue price of each Preference Sharehold, or if every seriesof
Preference Shares is convertible into or exchangeablefor Common Shares,eachholdershall
have one vote in respect of each Common Shareinto which that holder'sPreference Sharesare
convertible or exchangeable.

COMMON SHARES

VotingRights

The holders of the Common Sharesshall be entitled to receive notice of andto attend all
meetings of shareholders of the Corporation except meetings at which only the holders of
anotherclassor seriesare entitled to vote separatelyasaclassor serlos,andshall beentitledto
one vote at all those meetings in respectof eachCommon Sharehold.

Dividends

Subject to the rights, privileges, restrictionsandconditionsattaching to the PreferenceShares,
the holdersof the CommonSharesshall, at thediscretionof the directors,be entitled to receive
any dividends declaredandpayableby the Corporationonthe CommonShares.
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5. ConUnued

Liquklation, Dissolutionvr Winding-Up

Subject to the rights, privileges, restrictionsandconditions attaching to the Preference Shares,
upon the liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Corporationor otherdistribution of the
Corporation's assets among its shareholders for the purpose of winding-up its affairs, the
holders of the Common Sharesshall be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the

Corporation.
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9. The issue.transfer or ownership of shares Is/Is not restricted and the restrictions (if any) are as follows:
L'émission,le transfertoula propriétéd'actionsest/n'estpas restreint.Les restrletions, s'il y a lleu, sont les suivantes:

The right to transfer securities of the Corporation is restricted as attached hereto as
pagesSA to and including SP

10. Other provisions,(if any):
Autresdispositions,s'll y a lieu:

The Corporation may be legally designated by the English version of its nameor the French version of its
name.

11. The statements required by subsection 178(2) ofthe Business Corporatlons Act are attached as Schedule "A".
Les déclarations exigées aux termesdu paragraphe 178(2) de la Lo/surles sociétésparactions constituent l'annexeA.

12.Acopyofthe amalgamationagreementor directors'resolutions(asthecasemaybe) is/areattachedas Schedule"B".
Unecople de la convention de fusionou les résolutionsdesadministrateurs (selon lecas)constitue(nt) l'annexeB.

07121 (20110s) Page s of/de 6
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OWNERSHIP RESTRICTIONS

1. INTERPRETATION AND DEFINITIONS

1.1. In this Schedule"B":

1.1.1.The terms "Commission", "company" and "person" have the meaningsgiven
to those terms, respectively, in the Securities Act (Ontario) ("OSA"),as now
enacted or as the same may be from time to time amended, varied, replaced,

i restated,re-enactedor supplemented.

1.1.2.The term "control" and the phrase "acting jointly or in concert" are to be

interpreted in amanner that is consistentwith the interpretation of that phraseas
usedin the OSAandMultilateral Instrument 62-104-RespectingTake-overBids
and Issuer Bids.

1.1.3.All terms other than those referred to in subsections 1.1.1and1.1.2andwhich
are not otherwise defined in this Schedule"B"have the meanings givento those
terms in the OSA or the Business Corporations Act (Ontario) ("OBCA"),
respectively, provided that in the event of any inconsistency between a
definition contained in the OSA and a definition contained in the OBCA, the
definition containedin the OSA shall prevail.

1.1.4.Except where the context requires the contrary,words importing the singular
shallinclude the plural andvice versa andwords importing gendershall include
masculine,feminineandneuter genders.

1.2. In this Schedule"B":

"Autorité" meansQuébec'sAutorité desmarchésfinanciers;

"directors' determination, "as determined by the directors of the Corporation"
and similar expressionsmean a determination made by the directors of the Corporation
in accordancewith section 12;

"excess Voting Shares" means Voting Shares beneficially owned or over which
control or direction is exercisedin contravention of the shareconstraint;

"Ontario Order" meansthe order of the Commission issuedunder section21.11(4)of
the OSA on July 4,2012 in the matter of the SecuritiesAct, R.S.O.1990,ChapterS.5,
as amended, (Act) and in the matter ofMaple Group Acquisition Corporation and TMX
Group Inc. and TSX Inc. and Alpha Trading Systems Limited Partnership, Alpha
Trading SystemsInc.,Alpha Market Services Inc. andAlpha Exchange Inc. and in the
matter of Alberta Investment Management Corporation, Caisse de dép et placement
du Québec,Canada Pension Plan Investment Board, CIBC World Markets Inc.,
Desjardins Financial Corporation, Dundee Capital Markets Inc.,Fonds de solidarité
des travailleurs du Québec(RT.Q.),The Manufacturers Life Insurance Company,
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National BankFinancial & Co.Inc., Ontario Teachers' Pension Plan Board, Scotia

Capital Inc. and TD Securities Inc.,requiring restrictions on share ownership of the
Corporation, among other things, as the same may from time to time be amended,
varied,replaced,restatedor supplemented;

"Québec Orders" means AMF Decision No. 2012-PDG-0075, AMF Decision No.
2012-PDG-0078, AMF Decision No.2012-PDG-0079 and AMF Decision No.2012-
PDG-0080,requiring restrictions on shareownership of the Corporation, amongother
things,as the same may from time to time be amended,varied, replaced,restatedor
supplemented;

"Québec Undertakings" meansthe written undertakings dated April 30,2012given
by the Corporation to the Autorité in support of the applications filed by the
Corporation to obtain the QuébecOrders, in which the Corporation agrees,among
other things, that it is subject to restrictions on shareownership of the Corporation,as
the same may from time to time be amended, varied, replaced, restated or
supplemented;

"Regulation" meansRegulation 261/02madepursuant to section 21.11(5)of the OSA
prescribing the percentage ownership a person or company may own in TSX Inc.,as
the same may from time to time be amended,varied, repiaced, restated or
supplemented;

"sell-down notice" has the meaning set out in section 5.1;

"share constraint" hasthe meaning set out in section3.3;

"shareholder default" hasthemeaningsetout in subsection5.1.4;

"shareholder'sdeclaration" means a declaration madein accordancewith section 13;

"suspension"has the meaning set out in section 6.1and "suspend","suspended" and
similar expressionshavecorrespondingmeanings;and

"Voting Share" means any share of the Corporation carrying a voting right either
under all circumstances or under some circumstances that have occurred and are
continuing.

1.3. For greater certainty, no person or company is presumed to be acting jointly or in
concert with any other person or company for purposesof this Schedule"B"solely by
reason that one of them has given the other the power to vote or direct the voting of
Voting Sharesof a class or seriesof Voting Sharesat a meeting of the holdersof that
classor seriesunder a revocableproxy where:

1.3.1.the proxy is solicited solely by means of an information circular issuedin a
public solicitation of proxies that is made in respectof all Voting Sharesof that
classor seriesand in accordancewith applicable law;
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1.3.2.the proxy is solicited but no informationcircularis required to be issuedunder
the OSAor the OBCA;or

1.3.3.the proxy is not solicited.

1.4. For thepurposesof this Schedule"B":

1.4.1.where two or more persons or companies acting jointly or in concert
beneficially own or exercise control or direction over Voting Shares,the
number of Voting Sharesbeneficially owned or over which control or direction
is exercised by each person or company shall include the number of Voting
Sharesbeneficially owned or over which control or direction is exercisedwith
those other personsor companies;and

1.4.2.referencesto shares"of" a person or company are to sharesbeneficially owned
or over which control or direction is exercisedby that person or company.

2. REGULATION

2.1. The Corporation has imposed the restrictions on the transfer and ownership of the
Voting Shares set out in this Schedule "B" for the purposes of ensuring that the
Corporation or any of its subsidiaries:

2.1.1.is not in breach of sections21 and 21.11of the OSA, the Ontario Orders,the
QuébecOrders or the QuébecUndertakings;

2.1.2.may continue to be recognized by the Commission,the Autorité and other
federaland provincial regulators to carry on business as a stock exchangein
Ontario and Québec which recognition is necessary under the OSA and
applicableQuébecsecurities legislation for the Corporation or its subsidiariesto
engagein its undertaking; and

2.1.3.may continue to be recognized,or exempted from any requirement to be
recognized, by any securities regulatory authority as an exchange or self

regulatory organization under applicable securities legislation,which is
necessaryto its undertaking.

2.2. In the event that the provisions of anyof:

2.2.1.subsection 21.11(1)of the OSA, as modified from time to time by the
Regulation or the Ontario Orders,

2.2.2.the Regulation and the Ontario Orders as they pertain to restrictions on the
ownership of, or the exerciseof control or direction over,the Voting Shares,or

2.2.3.the QuébecUndertakings and the QuébecOrders as they pertain to restrictions
on the ownership of, or the exercise of control or direction over,the Voting
Shares,
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are from time to time amended,varied,replaced,restated, re-enacted or supplemented
(the "Amendments"),and those Amendments are inconsistent with this Schedule"B",
those Amendments are deemed to be incorporated in this Schedule"B" from their
effective date, without, for greater certainty, any approval by the shareholders,and
those Amendments supersedethe provisions of this Schedule "B" to the extent of the
inconsistency.

2.3. On the date that the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries is not required to constrain
the transfer or ownership of its sharesfor the purposes identified in section 2.1or
otherwise, this Schedule "B" shall be deemed to be deleted in its entirety from the
Articles of the Corporation and shall be of no further force or effect as and from that
date.

2.4. In the event that this Schedule "B" is amendedas a result of modifications in other
instruments as provided for in sections2.2,3.1and 3.2or is deemed to be deleted in
accordancewith section 2.3,the directors of the Corporation shall restate the Articles
of Incorporation of the Corporation,as amended from time to time, to reflect the
amendment or deletion within thirty (30) daysof such amendmentor deletion, without,
for greater certainty, any approval by the shareholders. The Corporation shall give
written notice of the restatement of Articles to each registered holder of sharesof the
Corporation as of the close of businesson the effective date of the restatement,within
fifteen (15) days of the effective date.The accidental failure or omission to give the
notice to oneor more of the holders shall not affect the validity of the provisions of this
section2.4.

3. SHARE CONSTRAINT

3.1. Without the prior approval of the Commission, no person .or company and no
combination of personsor companiesacting jointly or in concert shallbeneficially own
or exercise control or directionover more than ten per cent (10%) of any classor series
of Voting Sharesor any other percentage asmay befrom time to time prescribedby the
OSA,the Regulation,or the Ontario Orders.

3.2. Without thepriorapprovalof theAutorité,no personor companyandnocombination
of persons or companies acting jointly or in concert shall beneficially own or exercise
control or direction over more than ten per cent (10%) of any classor seriesof Voting
Sharesor any other percentage as maybe from time to time prescribedby the Québec
Undertakings or the QuébecOrders.

3.3. The prohibitions set out in sections 3.1and 3.2are referred to collectively in this
Schedule"B" as the "share constraint". For greater certainty, in the event that, at any
time, the level of ownership prescribedby the provisions of section 3.1andsection3.2
is not identical, the directorsshall haveregard to the most stringent prohibition of
section 3.1and section 3.2when making any directors' determination pursuant to this
Schedule"B".
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4. CONTRAVENTION OF THE SHARE CONSTRAINT

4.1. In the event of a directors' determination, whether based on a review of the central
securitiesregister of the Corporation or otherwise, that any person or company or any
combination of personsor companiesis in contravention of the shareconstraint:

4.1.1.the Corporation shall not accept any subscription for Voting Sharesfrom that
, person or company or any personor company forming part of thatcombination;

4.1.2.the Corporation shall not issue any Voting Sharesto that person or company or
any person or company forming part of that combination;

4.1.3.the Corporation shall not register or otherwise recognize the transfer of any
Voting Shares to that person or company or any person or company forming
part of that combination;

4.1.4.no person may, in person or by proxy, exercise the right to vote any of the
Voting Sharesof that person or company or any person or company forming
part of that combination;

4.1.5.subject to section 11.1,the Corporation shall not declare or pay any dividend,
andor make any other distribution:

4.1.5.1. on any excess Voting Shares of that person or company or any
personorcompany forming part of such combination; or

4.1.5.2.if there is a directors' determination that the contravention of the

shareconstraint was intentional, on all of the Voting Sharesof that
person or company or any person or company forming part of such
combination unless there is a directors' determination that it would

be in the best interestsof the Corporation to make the distribution in
respectof somepart or all of the non-excess Voting Shares;

and any entitlement to that dividend or other distribution shall be forfeited; and

4.1.6.the Corporation shall send a sell-down notice to the registered holder of the
Voting Sharesof that person or company or any person or company forming
part of suchcombination.

4.2. In the event of a directors' determination, whether based on a review of the central
securities register of the Corporation or otherwise,that any person or company or
combination of persons or companies,after any proposed subscription for or issue or
transfer of Voting Shares,would be in contravention of the share constraint, the
Corporation shall not:

4.2.1.acceptthe proposedsubscription for Voting Shares from;

4.2.2.issuethe proposedVoting Sharesto; or
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4.2.3.register or otherwise recognizethe proposed transfer of any Voting Sharesto;

that person or company or any person or company forming part of that combination.

4.3. In the event of a directors' determination that during anyprior period or at any prior
time any person or company or any combination of persons or companiesis or was in
contravention of the shareconstraint, the directors of the Corporation may,where there
is a directors' determination that it would be in the best interests of the Corporation,
also makea directors' determination that:

4.3.1.any votes cast,in person or by proxy during that period or at that time in respect
of the Voting Sharesof that person or company or any person or company
forming part of that combination shall be disqualified and deemednot to have
beencast; and

4.3.2.subject to section 11.1,each such person or company or each person or
company forming part of such combination is liable to the Corporation to
restore to the Corporation the amount of any dividend paid or distribution
received during that period:

4.3.2.1. on the excessVoting Sharesof that person or company and of each
other personor company forming part of that combination; or

4.3.2.2.in the event of a directors' determination that the contravention of
the share constraint was intentional, on all of the Voting Sharesof
that person or company or any person or company forming part of
that combination.

5. SELL-DOWN NOTICE

5.1. Any notice (a "sell-downnotice") required to be sent to a registered holder of Voting
Sharesunder subsection4.1.6:

5.1.1.shall specify in reasonabledetail, based on the information then available to the
directors of the Corporation, the nature of the contravention of the share
constraint, the numberof Voting Sharesdetermined to be excessVoting Shares
and the consequencesof the contravention specified in section4;

5.1.2.shall request an initial or further shareholder's declaration;

5.1.3.shall specify a date,which shall be not less than 45 days after the date of the
sell-down notice,by which the excessVoting Sharesare to be sold or disposed
of; and

5.1.4.shall state that unlessthe registered holder either:

5.1.4.1.sells or otherwise disposes of the excess Voting Sharesby the date
specified in the sell-down notice on a basis that doesnot result in
any contravention of the share constraint and provides to the
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directors of the Corporation, in addition to the shareholder's
declaration requested under subsection 5.1.2,written evidence
satisfactory to the directors of the Corporation of that sale or other
disposition; or

5.1.4.2.provides to the directors of the Corporation, in addition to the
shareholder's declaration requestedunder subsection 5.1.2,written
evidencesatisfactory to the directors of the Corporation that no sale
or otherdisposition of excessVoting Sharesis required;

that default (a "shareholder default") shall result in the consequenceof
suspension under section 6 and may result in the consequence of sale in
accordancewith section 7 or redemption in accordancewith section 8,in each
case without further notice to the registered holder, and shall specify in
reasonabledetail the nature andtiming of those consequences.

5.2. In the event that, following the sendingof a sell-down notice, written evidence is
submitted to the directors of the Corporation for purposes of subsection 5.1.4.2,the
directors of the Corporation shall assess the evidence as soon as is reasonably
practicable and shall give a second notice to the person or company submitting the
evidence as soon as is reasonably practicable after receipt of the evidence stating
whether the evidence has or has not satisfied the directors of the Corporation that no
sale or other disposition of excess Voting Shares is required. If the evidence has
satisfied the directors of the Corporation, the sell-down notice shali be cancelledand
the second notice shall so state.If the evidence has not satisfied the directors of the

Corporation, the secondnotice shall reiterate the statementsrequired to be made in the
sell-down notice under subsections5.1.3and 5.1.4.In either case, the 45 day period
referred to in subsection 5.1.3shall be automatically extendedto the third businessday
following the date that the second notice is given if the date that the secondnotice is
given is beyond the 45day period.

6. SUSPENSION

6.1. In the event of a shareholderdefault in respectof any registeredholderof Voting
Shares,then, without further notice to the registered holder:

6.1.1.all of the Voting Sharesof the registered holder shall be deemedto be struck
from the securities register of the Corporation;

6.1.2.no personor companymay,in person or by proxy,exercisethe right to vote any
of those Voting Shares;

6.1.3.subject to section 11.1,the Corporation shall not declare or.pay any dividend,or
make any other distribution, on any of those Voting Sharesand any entitlement
to a dividend or other distribution shall be forfeited;

6.1.4.the Corporation shall not send any form of proxy, information circular or
financial statements of the Corporation or any other general communication
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from the Corporation to any person or company in respect of those Voting
Shares;and

6.1.5.no person or company may exercise any other right or privilege ordinarily
attachedto those Voting Shares.

(All of the foregoing consequencesof a shareholder default are referred to in this
Schedule"B"as a "suspension".)Notwithstanding the foregoing, a registeredholder of
suspendedVoting Shares shall have the right to transfer those Voting Shareson any
securities register of the Corporation on a basisthat doesnot result in contraventionof
the shareconstraint.

6.2. The directors of the Corporation shall cancel any suspensionof Voting Sharesof a
registered holder and reinstate the registered holder to the securities register of the
Corporation for all purposes if they make a directors'determination that,following the
cancellation andreinstatement,none of thoseVoting Shareswill be beneficially owned,
controlled or directed in contravention of the share constraint. For greatercertainty,
any reinstatement shall permit, from and after the reinstatement, the exercise of all
rights and privileges attachedto the Voting Sharesso reinstated, but subject to section
11,1,shallhaveno retroactive effect.

7. SALE

7.1. In the event of a shareholder default in respect of any registered holder of Voting
Shares,the Corporation may choosebydirectors' determination to sell,on behalfof the
registered holder, the excessVoting Sharesof that registered holder,without further
notice to that registeredholder,on the terms set out in this section 7 andsection9.

7.2. The Corporation may sell any excessVoting Sharesin accordancewith this section7:

7.2.1.on the Toronto Stock Exchange;or

7.2.2.if the Voting Sharesare not then listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange,on any
other stock exchange or organized market on which the Voting Sharesare then
listed or traded as the directors of the Corporationmay chooseby directors'
determination; or

7.2.3.if the Voting Sharesare not then listed on any stock exchangeor traded on any
organized market,in any other manner as the directors of the Corporation may
chooseby directors'determination.

7.3. The net proceedsof sale of excessVoting Sharessold in accordancewith this section7
shall be the net proceedsafter deduction of any commission, tax and other costsof sale
(including, but limited to, the Corporation's reasonablelegal fees).

7.4. TheCorporation has the requisite legal power andauthority for all purposesof a saleof
excessVoting Sharesin accordancewith this section, as if it were the registeredholder
andbeneficial owner of the Voting Sharesbeing sold.
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8. REDEMPTION

8.1. In the event of a shareholder default in respect of any registered holder of Voting
Sharesand in the event of a directors' determination either that the Corporation has
used reasonableefforts to sell excessVoting Shares in accordancewith section 7 but
that the sale is impracticable or that it is likely that the sale would becontrary to the
best interests of the Corporation, the Corporation may choose by directors'
determination, subject to applicable law, to redeem the excess Voting Sharesof the
registered holder,without further notice to the registered holder,on the termsset out in
this section 8 andsection9,

8.2. The redemption price paid by the Corporation to redeem any excessVoting Sharesin
accordancewith this section 8 shall be:

8/2.1.the averageof the closing prices per shareof the Voting Sharesonthe Toronto
Stock Exchange (or, if the Voting Sharesare not then listed on the Toronto
Stock Exchange or if the requisite trading of Voting Shareshas not occurredon

' the Toronto Stock Exchange,any other stock exchange or any other organized
market on which the requisite trading has occurred as the directors of the

Corporation may choose by directors' determination) over the last 10 trading
days on which at leastone board lot of Voting Shareshastraded on the Toronto
Stock Exchange (or other stock exchange or other organized market) in the
period ending on the trading day immediately preceding the redemptiondate; or

8.2.2.if the requisite trading of Voting Shareshas not occurred on any stock exchange
or other organized market,on any basis the directors of the Corporation may
chooseby directors' determination;

less any commission, tax and other costs of redemption (including, but not limited to,
the Corporation's reasonablelegal fees).

9. PROCEDURES RELATING TO SALE AND REDEMPTION

9.1. In the event of any sale or redemption of excess Voting Shares in accordancewith
sections 7 or 8, respectively, the net proceeds of sale or the redemption price;
respectively, constitute trust funds and the Corporation shall deposit the funds in a
special trust account in any bank or trust corporation in Canada selectedby it. The
Corporation may commingle the trust funds with other such trust funds.The amount of
the deposit,together with any income eamedthereon from the beginning of the month
next following the date of the receipt by the Corporation of the proceeds of sale or
redemption, less any taxeson the income and the reasonable costs of administration of
the trust fund, shall be payable to the registeredholder of the excess Voting Shares sold
or redeemedon presentation and surrenderby the registered holder to the Corporation
or to the trust corporation to which the trust funds are transferred in accordancewith
section 9.6of the certificate or certificates representing the excess Voting Sharesif
such certificate or certificates have been issuedor, if no certificate hasbeenissued,
other evidenceof ownership of the excess Voting Sharessatisfactory to theCorporation
or its registrar and transfer agent.A receipt signed by the registered holder shall be a
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complete discharge of the Corporation, or the trust corporation to which the trust funds
are transferred in accordancewith section 9.6,in respect of the trust funds and income
earnedon thesetrust funds paid to the registeredholder.

9.2. From and after any deposit made under section 9.1,the registered holdershallnot be
entitled to any of the remaining rights of a registered holder in respectof the excess
Voting Sharessold or redeemed,other than the right to obtain a certificate or other
evidence of ownership representing the excessVoting Shares for the purposeonly of
tendering it to receive trust funds in respect of the excess Voting Sharessold or
redeemed and to receive the trust funds on presentationand surrenderof the certificate
or certificates or other evidence of ownership satisfactory to the Corporation or its
registrar and transfer agent representing the excessVoting Sharessold or redeemed.

9.3. If a part only of the Voting Sharesrepresented by any certificate is sold or redeemedin
accordancewith section7 or 8,respectively, the Corporation shall,on presentationand
surrender of that certificate and at the expenseand request of the registeredholder,
issuea new certificate representingthe balanceof the Voting Shares.

9.4. As soon as is reasonablypracticable after,and, in any event,not later than 30 days
after, a deposit made under section 9.1,the Corporation shall send a notice to the
registered holder of the excessVoting Sharessold or redeemed and the notice shall
state:

9.4.1.that a specified number of Voting Shareshas been sold or redeemed,as thecase
may be;

9.4.2.the amount of the net proceedsof saleor the redemption price,respectively;

9.4.3.the nameand addressof the bankor trust company at which the Corporationhas
made the deposit of the net proceeds of sale or the redemption price,
respectively;

9.4.4.all other relevant particulars of the saleor redemption, respectively; and

9.4.5.that to receive the net proceeds of sale or the redemption price, the registered
holder must present and surrender to the Corporation the certificate or
certificates representing the excessVoting Sharesso sold or redeemedif such
certificate or certificates have been issuedor, if no certificate hasbeen issued,
other evidence of ownership of the excess Voting Shares satisfactory to the
Corporation or its registrarand transfer agent.

The accidental failure or omission to give the notice to the registered holder shall not
affect the validity of the sale or redemption of Voting Sharescompleted in accordance
with section 9.

9.5. For greater certainty, the Corporation may sell or redeem excess Voting Shares in
accordancewith section 7 or 8,respectively, despite the fact that the Corporation does

not possessthe certificate or certificates representing the excessVoting Sharesat the
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time of the sale or redemption.If, in accordancewith section 7, the Corporationsells
excessVoting Shareswithout possessionof the certificate or certificates representing
the excess Voting Shares,the Corporation shall issue to the purchaserof suchexcess
Voting Sharesor its nominee a new certificate or certificates or other evidence of
ownership representingthe excessVoting Sharessold.If, in accordancewith section7
or section 8,the Corporation sells or redeemsexcessVoting Shareswithout possession
of the certificate or certificates representingthe excessVoting Sharesand,afterthe sale
or redemption, a person or company establishesthat it is a bona fide purchaserof the
excessVoting Sharessold or redeemed,then,subject to applicable law:

9.5.1.the excess Voting Sharesbeneficially owned by the bona fide purchaser are
deemed to be,from the date of the sale or redemption by the Corporation,as the
case may be,validly issued and outstanding Voting Shares in addition to the
excessVoting Sharessold or redeemed; and

9.5.2.notwithstanding section 9.2,the Corporation is entitled to the trust funds
deposited under section 9.2and,in the caseof a sale in accordancewithsection
7,shall add the amount of the deposit to the statedcapital accountfor the class
andseries,if applicable, of Voting Sharesissued.

9.6. The Corporation may transfer any trust fund established under this section 9 and its
administration to a trust corporation in Canadaregistered as such under the laws of
Canada,a province or a territory, and the Corporation is then dischargedof all further
liability in respect of the trust fund.The trust funds described in section9,1 together
with any income earned on the trust funds, less any taxes and reasonablecosts of
administration, that has not been claimedby the person or company entitled under
section 9 to receive such proceedsof sale or redemption for a period of 10 years after
the date of thesale or redemption is forfeited to the Ontario Crown.

10. EXCEPTIONS

10.1.Notwithstanding section 2, the share constraint does not apply in respectof Voting
Shares that are held:

10.1.1.by one or more persons or companies acting in relation to the Voting Shares
solely in their capacity as underwriters for the purpose of distributing the
Voting Sharesto the public;

10.1.2.by any person or company or combination of persons or companiesby way of
security only provided such person or company does not exercise the votes
attaching to such Voting Sharesand does not otherwise exercise control or
direction over such Voting Shares, but only in respect of such person or
company or combination of persons or companies;

10.1.3.by any person or company or combination of persons or companies who
beneficially owns or exercisescontrol or direction over such sharesby virtue of
having realized on a security interest in the Voting Sharesbut who is in the
processof disposing of the Voting Shares,for a reasonableperiod of time to be
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determinedby a directors' determinationto facilitate such disposition,provided
that during such periodof time the numberof votes attached to those Voting
Sharesshall be reducedto a number that is the largest whole number of votes

that may be attached to the Voting Shareswhich that person or company or
combination of personsor companiescould beneficially own or exercisecontrol
or direction over from time to time in compliance with the shareconstraint;or

10.1.4.for greater certainty, by any person or company that is acting in relation to the
Voting Sharessolely in its capacityasan intermediary in the payment of funds
or the holding or delivery of securities, or both, in connection with trades in
securities and that provides centralized facilities for the clearing of trades in
securities,but only in respectof thatperson or company.

11. SAVING PROVISIONS

11.1. Notwithstanding any otherprovision of this Schedule"B":

11.1.1.the directors of the Corporation may chooseby directors'determination to pay a
dividend or to make any other distribution on Voting Shares that would
otherwisebe prohibited by any other provision of this Schedule"B"where there
is a directors' determination that the contravention of the shareconstraint that

gave riseto theprohibitionwasinadvertent or of a technical nature or it would
be in the best interests of the Corporation to pay the dividend or make the
distribution; and

11.1.2.where a dividend hasnot beenpaidor anyother distribution hasnot beenmade
on Voting Sharesasa result of a directors' determination of a contravention of
the shareconstraint, or wherethe amount of a dividend or any other distribution
has been restored to the Corporation under subsection 4.3.2as a result of a
directors' determination of a contravention of the share constraint, the directors

of the Corporation shalldeclare and the Corporation shall pay the dividend,
make the distribution, or refund the restoredamount to the affected shareholder,

respectively, if there is a subsequent directors' determination that no
contraventionoccurred.

11.2.In the event that the Corporation suspendsor redeems Voting Shares in accordance
with section 6 or 8,respectively, or otherwise redeems,purchasesfor cancellation or
otherwise acquires Voting Shares,and the result of that action is that any person or
company or any combination of personsor companies who, prior to that action,were
not in contravention of the shareconstraint are,after that action, in contravention(the
"Mfected Shareholders"),then, notwithstanding any other provision of this Schedule
"B",

11.2.1.subject to section 11.2.3,the sole consequenceof that action to eachAffected
Shareholder, in respect of the Voting Shares that Affected Shareholder
beneficially owned or over which control or direction is exercisedat the time of
that action,shall be that the number of votes attached to those Voting Shares
will be reducedto a number that is the largest whole number of votes that may
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be attached to the Voting Shares which that Affected Shareholder could
beneficially own or exercise control or direction over from time to time in
compliance with the shareconstraint,as determined by directors' determination;

11.2.2.the directors of the Corporation shall identify by directors' determination, the
Affected Shareholders and the Corporation shall give written notice to each
Affected Shareholder so identified,within fifteen (15) days of the directors'
determination, of the fact that the Affected Shareholder is in contraventionof
the shareconstraint and is entitled to rely on the protection provided in section
11.2.1;and

11.2.3.the protection afforded to any Affected Shareholder in section 11.2.1is
effective from the datethe Affected Shareholder is in contraventionof the share
constraint as a result of the actions of the Corporation describedabove,up to
and including the datethat is 180daysafter that date.

The accidental failureor omission to give the notice referred to in section 11.2.2to one
or more of the Affected Shareholdersshall not affect the validity of theprovisions of
this section 11.2.

11.3.Notwithstanding any other provision of this Schedule"B",a contravention of the share
constraint shall have no consequencesexcept those that are expressly provided for in
this Schedule "B".For greater certainty but without limiting the generality of the
foregoing:

11.3.1.notransfer,issueor ownership of,andno title to, Voting Shares;

11.3.2.noresolution of shareholders(except to the extent that theresult isaffected as a
result of a directors' determination under subsection4.3.1);and

,11.3.3.no act of the Corporation, including any transfer of property to or by the
Corporation;

will be invalid or otherwise affected by any contravention of the share constraint.

12. DIRECTORS' DETERMINATIONS

12.1. The directors of the Corporation shall have the sole right and authority to administer
the provisions of this Schedule "B" and to make any determination required or
contemplated under this Schedule"B".In so acting, the directors of the Corporation
shall enjoy, in addition to the powers set out in this Schedule"B",all of the powers
necessaryor desirable, in their sole opinion,to carry out the intent andpurposeof this
Schedule"B" including, without limitation, the power to require:

12.1.1.the filing of a shareholder'sdeclarationunder section 13;

12.1.2.the production of all documents in the possession, power or control of the
maker of the shareholder'sdeclaration touching or concerning the subjectof the
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shareholder's declaration, together with certification that such production has
beenmade;

12.1.3.the response to such written interrogatories concerning the subject of the
shareholder'sdeclaration as the directors of the Corporation may determineto
ask the makerof the shareholder'sdeclaration; and

12.1.4.the attendance before the directors of the Corporation of the maker of the
shareholder'sdeclaration or such other persons or companiesrelated thereto as
the directors may determine, for the purpose of responding to questionsfrom
the directors of the Corporation concerning the subject of the shareholder's
declaration.

12.2. In the event of a directors' determination that a person or companyhasfailed to

provide a complete,accurate and timely responseto a request for information that the
directors of the Corporation havemadepursuant to their powers under section12.1,the
directors of the Corporation may draw an inference adverse to the interests of that
person or company.

12.3.The directors of the Corporation shall make, on a basis which is timely in the
circumstances,all determinations necessaryfor the administration of the provisions of
this Schedule"B"and,without limitation, if the directors of the Corporation consider
that there are reasonable grounds for believing that a contravention of the share
constraint hasoccurred or will occur,the directors of the Corporation shall make a
determination with respect to the matter. All directors' determinations shall be
conclusive, final and binding except to the extent modified by any subsequent
directors' determination. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the directors of the

Corporation may delegate, in whole or in part:

12.3.1.their power to make a directors' determination in respect of any particular
matter to a committee of the board of directors of the Corporation; and

12.3.2.any of their other powers underthis Schedule"B" in accordancewith sections
127and133(a)of theOBCA.

12.4.In administering the provisions of this Schedule "B",including, without limitation in
making any directors'determination required or contemplated under this Schedule"B",
the directors of the Corporation shall act honestly and in good faith with a view to the
best interests of the Corporation and shall exercise their business judgment. In this
connection, the directors of the Corporation shall not owe flduciary duties or any duty
of care to those who could be affected by their determinations, although the directorsof
the Corporation shall endeavourto make their determinations by way of a processthat
is fair in all the circumstances to those who could reasonably be expected to be
affected.

12.5. The directors of the Corporation shall not be consideredto be subject to a conflict of
interest in administering the provisions of this Schedule "B" and there shall be no
reasonable apprehension of bias by reason only that their own tenure as directors or
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officers of the Corporation could be affected directly or indirectly by a determination
they areto make pursuant to the provisions of this Schedule 'B".

12.6.In administering the provisions of this Schedule"B",the directors of the Corporation
may rely on any information on which the directors of the Corporation consider it
reasonable to rely in the circumstances. Without limitation, the directors of the
Corporation may rely upon any shareholder'sdeclaration, the securitiesregister of the
Corporation, the knowledge of any director, officer, employee or agent of the
Corporation or any advisor to the Corporation and the opinion of counsel to the
Corporation.

12.7.Provided that the directors of the Corporation haveacted honestly and in good faith,no
shareholder of the Corporation or any other interested person or company shall have
any claim or action against the Corporation or against any directoror officer of the
Corporation nor shall the Corporation have any claim or action againstany director or
officer of the Corporation arising out of or in relation to any act (including any
omission to act) performed under or in pursuanceof the provisions of this Schedule
"B",and,for greatercertainty, neither the Corporation nor any director or officer shall
be liable for any damagesor lossesrelated to or as a consequenceof any such act or
any breach or alleged breach of the provisions of this Schedule"B".To the extentthat,
in accordancewith sections12.1or 12.3,anyother person exercisesthe powers of the
directors of the Corporation under these provisions, this section 12.7applies mutatis
mutandis.

12.8. Any directors' determination required or contemplated by this Schedule"B"shall be
expressed and conclusively evidenced by a resolution of the directors of the
Corporation duly adopted.

13. SHAREHOLDER'S DECLARATIONS

13.1.For purposesof monitoring the compliance with and of enforcing the provisions of this
Schedule"B",the directors of the Corporation may require that any registeredholder or
beneficial owner of Voting Shares,or any other personor companyof whom it is, in
the circumstances,reasonableto makea request(including, without limitation, any
person who wishes to have a transfer of a Voting Share registered in the nameof, or to
have a share issued to, that person), file with the Corporation or its registrar and
transfer.agent a completed shareholder'sdeclaration.The directors of the Corporation
shall approve from time to time written guidelines with respect to the nature of the
shareholder'sdeclarationto berequested,the timesat which shareholder'sdeclarations
are to be requested and any other relevant matters relating to shareholder's
declarations.

13.2.A shareholder's declaration shall be in the form from time to time approved by the
directors of the Corporation under section 13.1and,without limitation,may berequired
to be in the form of asimple declaration in writing or a statutory declarationunder the
Evidence Act (Ontario).Without limitation, a shareholder'sdeclaration may berequired
to contain information with respectto:

BoX Exchange LLC Exhibit C-1 Page24



SP

13.2.1.whether the personor company is the beneficial owner of,or exercisescontrol
or direction over, particular Voting Shares or whether any other person or
company is the beneficial owner of, or exercisescontrol or direction over,those
Voting Shares;and

13.2.2.whether the person or company is acting jointly or in concert with any other
person or company,including whether the person or company and any other
person or company are parties to an agreementor an arrangement,apurposeof
which is to require them to act in concert with respect to their interests,direct or
indirect,in the Corporation.

14. MISCELLANEOUS

14.1.The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision, in whole or in part, of this
Schedule"B" for any reason shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other
provision or part thereof.

14.2. Subject to the OSA,the Regulation, the Ontario Orders, the QuébecOrders and the
QuébecUndertakings, the directors of the Corporation may make,amendor repealany
rules or by-laws they deemnecessaryor appropriate to administer the shareconstraint.

14.3, In addition to dealing with registeredholders of Voting Shares in the administration of
the provisions of this Schedule "B", the directors of the Corporation and the
Corporation may also dealwith thebeneficial owner of Voting Sharesif the identity of
the beneficial owner is known to the directors of the Corporation and the Corporation
asa result of a directors' determination or otherwise.
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These articles are signed induplicate.
Lesprésentsstatutssontsignésendoubleexempialre.

Nameand original signature of a director or authorized signing officerof each of the amalgamating corporations.
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a director or authorized signing officer can sign on behalf of the corporation. I Nomet signature originale d'un
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société,le nom du signataire et sa fonction (p.ex.: président, secrétaire).Seul un administrateur ou un dirigeant
habilité pout signer au nom de la sociétó.

TMX GROUP INC./GROUPE TMX INC.

Names of Corporations / Dénominat clale des sociétés

Byl Par

, Nicholas Santini Corporate Secretary

Elfnature i Signature Print name of signatory / Descriptfon of Offlee / Fonction
Nom du signatalre en lettresmoulées

TMX GROUP LIMITED / GROUPE TMX LIMITEE

Names of Corporations / Dénomination sociale des sociétés

B r Cheryl Graden SVP,Group Head of Legal

Si natiŠe i STn Print name of signatory / Description of Offlee / Fonction
Nom du signataire en lettres moulées

Names of Corporatlons / Dénomination sociate des soclétés

By i Par

Signature I Signature Printname of afgnatory / Description of Office / Fonction
Nom du signataire en lettres moulées

Names of Corporations / Dénomination soclale des sociétés

By/Par

Signature / Signature Print name of signatory / Description of Office / Fonction
Nom du signataire en lettres moulées

Names of Corporations / Dénomination sociale des sociétés

BylPar

Signature i Signature Print name of signatory / Description of Offlee/ Fonction
Nom du signataire en lettres moulées

07121(201105) Page sof/de6
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Step 15,Doc 5

CANADA ) IN THE MATTER OF the Business Corporations
) Act (Ontario) and the Articles of Amalgamation of

PROVINCE OF ONTARIO ) TMX Group Limited and TMX Group Inc.

)
TO WIT: )

I, Nicholas Santini, of the Town of Waterdown, in the Province of Ontario,
hereby certify that:

1. I am the Corporate Secretary of TMX Group Inc. and have knowledge of the matters
herein declared.

2. There are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(a) each amalgamating corporation is and the amalgamated corporation will be able
to pay its liabilities asthey become due;

(b) the realizable value of the amalgamated corporation's assetswill not be less than
the aggregateof its liabilitics and stated capital of all classes;and

(c) no creditor will be prejudiced by the amalgamation.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank- Signature page follows]
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DATED this AdLayof December,2017.

TMX GROUP INC.

By:
Maine: NièholasSantini,
Corporate Secretary

(Step 15,Doc 5 - Signature Page] BOX ExchangeLLC Exhibit C-1 Page28
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CANADA ) IN THE MATTER OF the Business Corporations
) Act (Ontario) and the Articles of Amalgamation of

PROVINCE OF ONTARIO ) TMX Group Limited and TMX Group Inc.
)
)

TO WIT: )

I, Cheryl Graden, of the City of Toronto, in the Province of Ontario, hereby
certify that:

1. I am the Senior Vice President, Group Head of Legal and Business Affairs, Enterprise
Risk Management and Government Relations and Corporate Secretary of TMX Group
Limited and have knowledge of the matters herein declared.

2. There are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(a) each amalgamating corporation is and the amalgamated corporation will be able
to pay its liabilities as they become due;

(b) the realizable value of the amalgamated corporation's assetswill not be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and stated capital of all classes;and

(c) no creditor will be prejudiced by the amalgamation.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank- Signature page follows]
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DATED this ay of December, 2017.

TMX GROUP LIMITE

By: A .
Name: Cheryl Graden,
Senior Vice President, Group Head
of Legal and Business Affairs,
Enterprise Risk Management and
Government Relations and

Corporate Secretary
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Step 15,Doc 3

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

OF

TMX GROUP INC.
(the "Corporation")

RECITALS:

A. The Corporation was amalgamated under the laws of the Province of Ontario by
certificate of amalgamation dated the 13th day of December,2017.

B. It is desirable that the Corporation amalgamate with TMX Group Limited (the
"Parentco") at 5:00 PM December 13,2017.

C. The Corporation is a wholly-owned subsidiary corporation of Parentco.

RESOLVED THAT:

1. the amalgamation of the Corporation with Parentco to take place at 5:00 PM is hereby
approved;

2. the by-laws of the amalgamated corporation shall be the by-laws of Parentco, until
amended or repealed;

3. (a) the shares of the Corporation shall be cancelled without any repayment of capital
in respect thereof;

(b) except as may be prescribed by the Business Corporations Act (Ontario), the
articles of amalgamation shall be the same as the articles of Parentco; and

(c) no securities shall be issued and no assets shall be distributed by the amalgamated
corporation in connection with the amalgamation.

4. any director or officer of the Corporation is hereby authorized to take any action and to
execute any document which, in the opinion of such person, is necessary or desirable to
give effect to the foregoing resolutions and to deliver all or any of such documents to the
Ministry of Consumer and Business Services; and

5. this resolution may be executed and delivered in any number of counterparts (including
counterparts by facsimile, electronic mail or portable document format (PDF)) and all
such counterparts taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same
resolution.

[Remainder ofpage intentionally left blank - Signature page follows]

24401911.4
BOX Exchange LLC Exhibit C-1 Page 31



The undersigned hereby certifies that the foregoing is a true copy
of a resolution o the Board of Directors of TMX Group Inc.dated
December 2 17 and is still in full force and effect as of the
date hereof, unamended.

DATED this 9 day of December, 2017.

NfchiolasSantini,Secretary

[Step 15,Doc 3 Signature Page - Authorizing the Amalgamation with TMXGL]
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RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

OF

TMX GROUP LIMITED
(the "Corporation")

RECITALS:

A. The Corporation was incorporated under the laws of the Province of Ontario by
certificate of incorporation dated April 28, 2011.

B. It is desirable that the Corporation amalgamate with TMX Group Inc. ("TMXGI") at
5:00PM on December 13,2017.

C. TMXGI is a wholly-owned subsidiary corporation of the Corporation.

RESOLVED THAT:

1. the amalgamation of the Corporation with TMXGI to take place at 5:00 PM December
13,2017 is hereby approved;

2. the by-laws of the amalgamated corporation shall be the by-laws of the Corporation, until
amended or repealed;

3. (a) the shares of TMXGI shall be cancelled without any repayment of capital in
respect thereof;

(b) except as may be prescribed by the Business Corporations Act (Ontario), the
articles of amalgamation shall be the same as the articles of the Corporation; and

(c) no securities shall be issued and no assetsshall be distributed by the amalgamated
corporation in connection with the amalgamation.

4. any director or officer of the Corporation is hereby authorized to take any action and to
execute any document which, in the opinion of such person, is necessary or desirable to
give effect to the foregoing resolutions and to deliver all or any of such documents to the
Ministry of Consumer and Business Services; and

5. this resolution may be executed and delivered in any number of counterparts (including
counterparts by facsimile, electronic mail or portable document format (PDF)) and all
such counterparts taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same
resolution.

[Remainder ofpage intentionally left blank - Signature page follows]
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The undersigned hereby certifies that the foregoing is a true

copy of a resolution of the Bogd of Directors of TMX Group
Limited dated December R, 2017 and is still in full force
and effect as of the date hereof,unamended.

DATED this I day of December, 2017.

Ch Grad Senior Vicek
President, Group Head of Legal and
Business Affairs, Enterprise Risk
Management and Government
Relations and Corporate Secretary
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AMENDED AND RESTATED BY -LAW NO.1

A by-law relating generally to the transaction of the business and affairs of
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BE IT ENACTED as a by-law of the Corporation effective July 31, 2012 as follows:

ARTICLE 1
INTERPRETATION

Section 1.1 Definitions.

(1) In the by-laws of the Corporation, unless the context otherwise requires:

"Act" means the Business Corporations Act, R.S.O.1990, c. B.16 and any statute that

may be substituted therefor, as from time to time amended, and includes the regulations
thereunder from time to time.

"affiliate" shall have the meaning ascribed thereto under the Securities Act.

"appoint" includes "elect" and vice versa.

"Articles" means the articles on which is endorsed the certificate of incorporation of the

Corporation, as from time to time amendedor restated.

"associate" shall have the meaning ascribed thereto under the Securities Act.

"board"means the board of directors of the Corporation and "director" means a member
of the board.

"by-laws" means this by-law and all other by-laws of the Corporation from time to time
in force and effect.

"cheque"includes a draft.

"Commission"meansthe Ontario Securities Commission or any successorthereto.

"Corporation" means the corporation incorporated under the Act on April 28, 201l by the
said certificate endorsed on the Articles and named Maple Group Acquisition Corporation (or, in

French, Corporation d'Acquisition Groupe Maple).

"day"means a clear day and a period of days shall be deemed to commence the day
following the event that began the period and shall be deemed to terminate at midnight of the last
day of the period except that if the last day of the period falls on a Sunday or holiday the period
shall terminate at midnight of the day next following that is not a Sunday or holiday.

"meeting of shareholders" includes an annual meeting of shareholders and a special
meeting of shareholders.

"person" means an individual, partnership, unincorporated organization, association or
syndicate, trust, trustee, executor, administrator, or other legal representative.

"recorded address" means in the case of a shareholder, the shareholder's address as

recorded in the securities register; and in the caseof joint shareholders the address appearing in
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the securities register in respect of suchjoint holding or the first address so appearing if there are
more than one; in the case of an officer, auditor or member of a committee of the board, his or
her latest address as recorded in the records of the Corporation; and, in the case of a director, his
or her latest address as recorded in the records of the Corporation or in the most recent notice

filed under the Corporations Information Act, R.S.O.1990, c. C.39,whichever is the more
current.

"Securities Act" means the Securities Act, R.S.O.1990, c.S.5and any statute that may be
substituted therefor, as from time to time amended, and includes the regulations, rules and orders
issued thereunder from time to time.

"signing officer" means, in relation to any instrument, any person authorized to sign the
sameon behalf of the Corporation by or pursuant to Section 2.4.

(1) Save as aforesaid, words and expressions defined in the Act have the same meanings
when used herein. Words importing the singular number include the plural and vice
versa, and words importing gender include the masculine, feminine and neuter genders.

(2) The division of this by-law into separate articles, sections, subsections and clauses, the

provision of a table of contents and index thereto, and the insertion of headings are for
convenience of reference only and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of
this by-law.

(3) All times mentioned in this by-law shall be local time in Toronto on the date concerned,
unless the subject matter or context otherwise requires.

ARTICLE 2
BUSINESS OF THE CORPORATION

Section 2.1 Registered Office.

Until changed in accordance with the Act, the registered office of the Corporation shall
be in the municipality or geographic township within Ontario initially specified in the Articles.

Section 2.2 Corporate Seal.

Until changed by the board, the corporate seal of the Corporation shall be in the form
impressed hereon.

Section 2.3 Financial Year.

Until changed by the board, the financial year of the Corporation shall end on the last day
of December in each year.

Section 2.4 Execution of Instruments.

Deeds, transfers, assignments, contracts, obligations, certificates and other instruments
may be signed on behalf of the Corporation by any one officer or director of the Corporation. In
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addition, the board may from time to time direct the manner in which and the person or persons

by whom any particular instrument or class of instruments may or shall be signed. Any signing
officer may affix the corporate seal to any instrument requiring the same.

Section 2.5 Banking Arrangements.

The banking business of the Corporation including, without limitation, the borrowing of
money and the giving of security therefor, shall be transacted with such banks, trust companies
or other bodies corporate or organizations as may from time to time be designated by or under
the authority of the board. Such banking business or any part thereof shall be transacted under
such agreements, instructions and delegations of powers as the board may from time to time
prescribe or authorize.

Section 2.6 Voting Rights In Other Bodies Corporate.

The signing officers of the Corporation may execute and deliver proxies and arrange for
the issuance of voting certificates or other evidence of the right to exercise the voting rights
attaching to any securities held by the Corporation. Such instruments, certificates or other
evidence shall be in favour of such person or persons as may be determined by the officers
executing such proxies or arranging for the issuance of voting certificates or such other evidence
of the right to exercise such voting rights. In addition, the board may from time to time direct the
manner in which and the person or persons by whom any particular voting rights or class of
voting rights may or shall be exercised.

Section 2.7 Divisions.

The board may cause the business and operations of the Corporation or any part thereof
to be divided or segregated into one or more divisions upon such basis, including without
limitation, character or type of businessesor operations, geographical territories, product lines or
goods or services as the board may consider appropriate in each case.From time to time the
board or, if authorized by the board, the chief executive officer may authorize, upon such basis
as may be considered appropriate in eachcase:

(a) Sub-Division and Consolidation. The further division of the business and
operations of any such division into sub-units and the consolidation of the
business and operations of any such divisions and sub-units;

(b) Name.The designation of any such division or sub-unit by, and the carrying on of
the business and operations of any such division or sub-unit under, a name other
than the name of the Corporation; provided that the Corporation shall set out its
name in legible characters in all contracts, invoices, negotiable instruments and
orders for goods or services issued or made by or on behalf of the Corporation;
and

(c) Officers. The appointment of officers for any such division or subunit, the
determination of their powers and duties, and the removal of any such officer so
appointed without prejudice to such officer's rights under any employment
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contract or in law,provided that any such officers shall not, as such, be officers of
the Corporation, unless expressly designated assuch.

ARTICLE 3
DIRECTORS

Section 3.1 Number of Directors and Quorum.

Until changed in accordance with the Act the board shall consist of such number of
directors within the minimum and maximum number of directors provided for in the Articles as
is determined by special resolution or, if such special resolution empowers the board to
determine the number, by a resolution of the board. Subject to the Act, the quorum for the
transaction of business at any meeting of the board shall consist of two-thirds of the number of
directors determined in the manner set forth above or such other number of directors as the board

may from time to time determine, including two directors who satisfy the criteria for public
venture expertise set out in the undertakings of the Corporation to the British Columbia
Securities Commission and the Alberta Securities Commission dated July 31, 2012 (as the same

may be amended, supplemented or replaced from time to time). If the Corporation has fewer
than three directors, all directors must be present to constitute a quorum.

Section 3.2 Action by the Board.

The board shall manage or supervise the management of the business and affairs of the
Corporation. Subject to the Act, the powers of the board may be exercised by resolution passed
at a meeting at which a quorum is present or by resolution in writing signed by all the directors
entitled to vote on that resolution at a meeting of the board. Where there is a vacancy in the
board, the remaining directors may exercise all the powers of the board so long as a quorum
remains in office. Where the Corporation has only one director, that director may constitute a
meeting.

Section 3.3 Meeting by Telephone.

Subject to the Act, if all the directors of the Corporation present at or participating in a
meeting consent, a meeting of the board or of a committee of the board may be held by meansof
telephone, electronic or other communication facilities, and a director participating in such a
meeting by such means is deemed for the purposes of the Act to be present at that meeting. Any
such consent shall be effective whether given before or after the meeting to which it relates and

may be given with respect to all meetings of the board and of committees of the board.

Section 3.4 Place of Meetings.

Meetings of the board may be held at any place within or outside Ontario and, in any
financial year of the Corporation, a majority of the meetings of the board need not be held in
Canada.
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Section 3.5 Calling of Meetings.

Meetings of the board shall be held from time to time at such time and at such place as
the board, the chair of the board, the chief executive officer, or any two directors may determine.

Section 3.6 Notice of Meeting.

Notice of the time and place of each meeting of the board shall be given in the manner
provided in Section 10.1to each director not less than forty-eight hours before the time when the
meeting is to be held. A notice of a meeting of directors need not specify the purpose of or the
business to be transacted at the meeting except where the Act requires such purpose or business
to be specified. A director may in any manner and at any time waive a notice of or otherwise
consent to a meeting of the board and, subject to the Act, attendance of a director at a meeting of
the board is a waiver of notice of the meeting.

Section 3.7 First Meeting of New Board.

Provided a quorum of directors is present, each newly elected board may without notice
hold its first meeting immediately following the meeting of shareholders at which such board is
elected.

Section 3.8 Adjourned Meeting.

Notice of an adjourned meeting of the board is not required if the time and place of the
adjourned meeting is announced at the original meeting.

Section 3.9 Regular Meetings.

The board may appoint a day or days in any month or months for regular meetings of the
board at a place and hour to be named.A copy of any resolution of the board fixing the place and
time of such regular meetings shall be sent to each director forthwith after being passed,but no

other notice shall be required for any such regular meeting except where the Act requires the
purpose thereof or the business to be transacted thereat to be specified.

Section 3.10 Chair of Meetings of the Board.

The chair of any meeting of the board shall be the first mentioned of such of the
following officers as have been appointed and who is a director and is present at the meeting:
chair of the board, vice-chair of the board, the chief executive officer or the president. If no such
officer is present, the directors present shall choose one of their number to be chair.

Section 3.11 Votes to Govern.

At all meetings of the board every question shall be decided by a majority of the votes
cast on the question. In caseof an equality of votes, the chair of the meeting shall be entitled to a
second or casting vote.
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Section 3.12 Conflict of Interest.

Directors and officers of the Corporation shall comply with the conflict of interest

provisions in the Act.

Section 3.13 Remuneration and Expenses.

The directors shall be paid such remuneration for their services as the board may from
time to time determine. The directors shall also be entitled to be reimbursed for travelling and
other expenses properly incurred by them in attending meetings of the board or any committee
thereof. Nothing herein contained shall preclude any director from serving the Corporation in
any other capacity and receiving remuneration therefor.

Section 3.14 Applicable Legislation.

For greater certainty, the provisions of this Article 3 are subject to any applicable law
relating to the board, including without limitation the Securities Act.

ARTICLE 4
COMMITTEES

Section 4.1 Committees of the Board.

The board may appoint from their number one or more committees of the board, however
designated, and delegate to any such committee any of the powers of the board except those
which pertain to items which, under the Act, a committee of the board has no authority to
exercise.

Section 4.2 Transaction of Business.

The powers of a committee of the board may be exercised by a meeting at which a
quorum is present or by resolution in writing signed by all members of such committee who
would have been entitled to vote on that resolution at a meeting of the committee. Meetings of

such committee may beheldat suchplaceor placesdesignatedin Section3.4.

Section 4.3 Advisory Bodies.

The board may from time to time appoint such advisory bodies as it may deem advisable.

Section 4.4 Procedure.

Unless otherwise determined by the board, each committee and advisory body shall have
power to fix its quorum at not less than a majority of its members, to elect its chair, and to
regulate its procedure.
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ARTICLE 5
OFFICERS

Section 5.1 Appointment.

The board may from time to time appoint a chair of the board, a vice-chair of the board,
chief executive officer, one or more presidents (to which title may be added words indicating
seniority or function), one or more vice-presidents (to which title may be added words indicating
seniority or function), a chief financial officer, a secretary, a treasurer and such other officers as
the board may determine, including one or more assistants to any of the officers so appointed.
The board may specify the duties of and, in accordance with this by-law and subject to the
provisions of the Act and the Securities Act, delegate to such officers powers to manage the
business and affairs of the Corporation. Subject to Section 5.2,an officer may but need not be a
director and one person may hold more than one office.

Section 5.2 Chair and Vice-Chair of the Board.

The board may from time to time appoint a chair of the board and a vice-chair of the
board who shall be directors and may not be chief executive officer. If appointed, the board may
assign to them any of the powers and duties that are by any provisions of this by-law assigned to
the chief executive officer, and they shall, subject to the provisions of the Act, have such other

powers and duties as the board may specify. During the absenceor disability of the chair of the
board, his or her duties shall be performed and his or her powers exercised by the vice-chair of
the board.

Section 5.3 Chief Executive Officer.

The board may from time to time appoint a chief executive officer. If appointed, he or she
shall, subject to the authority of the board, have general supervision of the business and affairs of
the Corporation; and he or she shall,subject to the provisions of the Act, have such other powers
and duties as the board may specify.

Section 5.4 President.

A president shall have such powers and duties asthe board may specify.

Section 5.5 Vice-President.

A vice-president shall have such powers and duties as the board or the chief executive
officer may specify.

Section 5.6 Chief Financial Officer.

The chief financial officer shall keep proper accounting records in compliance with the
Act and shall be responsible for the deposit of money, the safekeeping of securities and the
disbursement of the funds of the Corporation; he or she shall render to the board whenever

required an account of all his or her transactions as chief financial officer and of the financial
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position of the Corporation; and he or she shall have such other powers and duties as the board or
the chief executive officer may specify.

Section 5.7 Secretary.

The secretary shall attend and be the secretary of all meetings of the board (or arrange for
another individual to so act), shareholders and committees of the board and shall enter or cause
to be entered in records kept for that purpose minutes of all proceedings thereat; he or she shall
give or cause to be given, as and when instructed, all notices to shareholders, directors, officers,
auditors and members of committees of the board; he or she shall be the custodian of the stamp

or mechanical device generally used for affixing the corporate seal of the Corporation and of all
books, papers, records, documents, and instruments belonging to the Corporation, except when
some other officer or agent has been appointed for that purpose; and he or she shall have such
other powers and duties as the board or the chief executive officer may specify.

Section 5.8 Treasurer.

The treasurer shall have such powers and duties as the board or the chief executive

officer may specify.

Section 5.9 Powers and Duties of Other Officers.

The powers and duties of all other officers shall be such as the terms of their engagement
call for or as the board or the chief executive officer may specify.Any of the powers and duties
of an officer to whom an assistant has been appointed may be exercised and performed by such
assistant, unless the board or the chief executive officer otherwise directs.

Section 5.10 Variation of Powers and Duties.

The board may from time to time and subject to the provisions of the Act, vary, add to or
limit the powers and duties of any officer.

Section 5.11 Term of Office.

The board, in its discretion, may remove any officer of the Corporation, without prejudice

to such officer's rights under any employment contract with the Corporation. Otherwise each
officer appointed by the board shall hold office until his or her successor is appointed, or until his
or her earlier resignation.

Section 5.12 Terms of Employment and Remuneration.

The terms of employment and the remuneration of an officer appointed by the board shall
be settled by it from time to time or by a committee of the board appointed for that purpose.

Section 5.13 Agents andAttorneys.

The Corporation, by or under the authority of the board, shall have power from time to

time to appoint agents or attorneys for the Corporation in or outside Canada with such powers of
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management, administration or otherwise (including the power to sub-delegate) as may be
thought fit, subject to the provisions of the Act.

ARTICLE 6
PROTECTION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND OTHERS

Section 6.1 Limitation of Liability.

Every director and officer of the Corporation in exercising his powers and discharging his
or her duties shall act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of the

Corporation and shall exercise the care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person
would exercise in comparable circumstances. Subject to the foregoing, no director or officer
shall be liable for the acts, neglects or defaults of any other director, officer or employee, or for

joining in any act for conformity, or for any loss, damage or expense happening to the
Corporation through the insufficiency or deficiency of title to any property acquired for or on
behalf of the Corporation, or for the insufficiency or deficiency of any security in or upon which
any of the monies of the Corporation shall be invested, or for any loss or damage arising from
the bankruptcy, insolvency or tortious acts of any person with whom any of the monies,
securities or effects of the Corporation shall be deposited, or for any loss occasioned by any error
of judgment or oversight on his or her part, or for any other loss,damage or misfortune whatever
which shall happen in the execution of the duties of his or her office or in relation thereto;

provided that nothing herein shall relieve any director or officer from the duty to act in
accordancewith the Act or any other applicable law or from liability for any breach thereof.

Section 6.2 Indemnity.

(a) Subject to the limitations contained in the Act, the Corporation shall indemnify a
director or officer, a former director or officer, or a person who acts or acted at the

Corporation's request as a director or officer of a body corporate of which the
Corporation is or was a shareholder or creditor, and his or her heirs and legal
representatives, against all costs, charges and expenses, including an amount paid
to settle an action or satisfy a judgment, reasonably incurred by him or her in
respectof anycivil, criminal or administrative action or proceeding to which he or
she is made a party by reason of being or having been a director or officer of the
Corporation or such body corporate, if:

(i) He or she acted honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests
of the Corporation; and

(ii) In the case of a criminal or administrative action or proceeding that is
enforced by a monetary penalty, he or she had reasonable grounds for
believing that his or her conduct was lawful.

(b) The Corporation shall also indemnify such person in such other circumstances as
the Act permits or requires. Nothing in this by-law shall limit the right of any
person entitled to indemnity to claim indemnity apart from the provisions of this
by-law.
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Section 6.3 Insurance.

The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance for the benefit of any person
referred to in Section 6.2for such liabilities and in such amounts as the board may from time to

time determine and as are permitted by the Act.

ARTICLE 7
SHARES

Section 7.1 Allotment of Shares.

Subject to the Securities Act, the Act and the Articles, the board may from time to time
allot or grant options to purchase the whole or any part of the authorized and unissued sharesof
the Corporation at such times and to such persons and for such consideration as the board shall
determine, provided that no shareshall be issueduntil it is fully paid as provided by the Act.

Section 7.2 Commissions.

The board may from time to time authorize the Corporation to pay a reasonable
commission to any person in consideration of the person's purchasing or agreeing to purchase
shares of the Corporation, whether from the Corporation or from any other person, or procuring
or agreeing to procure purchasers for any such shares.

Section 7.3 Registration of a ShareTransfer.

The registration of any transfer of shares is subject to the satisfaction of any restrictions
on transfer contained in the Articles and on compliance with any applicable legislation, including
the Securities Act.

Section 7.4 Transfer Agents.

The board may from time to time appoint, for each class of securities and warrants issued
by the Corporation, (a) a trustee, transfer agent or other agent to keep the securities register and
the register of transfers and one or more personsor agents to keepbranchregistersand (b) a
registrar, trustee or agent to maintain a record of issued security certificates and warrants, and,
subject to the Act, one person may be appointed for the purposes of both clauses (a) and (b)
above in respectof all securities and warrants of the Corporation or any class or classes,thereof.
The board may at any time terminate such appointment.

Section 7.5 Non-Recognition of Trusts.

Subject to the provisions of the Act and the Articles, the Corporation may treat the
registered holder of a share as the person exclusively entitled to vote, to receive notices, to
receive any interest, dividend or other payments in respect of the share, and otherwise to exercise
all the rights and powers of an owner of the share.
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Section 7.6 Share Certificates.

Subject to the Articles, every shareholder is entitled upon request to a share certificate in
respectof the sharesheld by the shareholder that complies with this Act or to a non-transferable
written acknowledgement of the shareholder's right to obtain a share certificate from the

Corporation in respect of the shares of the Corporation held by the shareholder.

If a share certificate contains a printed or mechanically reproduced signature of a person

as permitted by the Act, the Corporation may issue the share certificate notwithstanding that the
person has ceased to be a director or an officer of the Corporation, and the share certificate is as
valid as if the person were a director or an officer at the date of its issue.

Section 7.7 Replacement of Share Certificates.

The board or any officer or agent designated by the board may in its or his or her
discretion direct the issue of a new share or other such certificate in lieu of and upon cancellation
of a certificate that has been mutilated or in substitution for a certificate claimed to have been

lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken on payment of such reasonable fees and on such
terms as to indemnity, reimbursement of expenses and evidence of loss and of title as the board
may from time to time prescribe, whether generally or in any particular case.

Section 7.8 Joint Shareholders.

If two or more persons are registered as joint holders of any share, the Corporation shall
not be bound to issuemore than one certificate in respect thereof, and delivery of such certificate

to one of such persons shall be sufficient delivery to all of them. Any one of such persons may
give effectual receipts for the certificate issued in respect thereof or for any dividend, bonus,
return of capital or other money payable or warrant issuable in respect of such share.

Section 7.9 DeceasedShareholders.

In the event of the death of a holder, or of one of the joint holders, of any share, the

Corporation shall not be required to make any entry in the securities register in respect thereof or
to make any dividend or other payments in respect thereof, except upon production of all such
documents as may be required by law and upon compliance with the reasonable requirements of
the Corporation and its transfer agents.

Section 7.10 Applicable Legislation

For greater certainty, the provisions of this Article 8 are subject to any applicable
legislation relating to the sharesof the Corporation, including without limitation the Securities
Act.
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ARTICLE 8
DIVIDENDS AND RIGHTS

Section 8.1 Dividends.

Subject to the provisions of the Act and the Articles, the board may from time to time
declare dividends payable to the shareholders according to their respective rights and interests in
the Corporation. The board may if it sees fit establish a dividend policy from time to time.

Section 8.2 Dividend Cheques.

A dividend payable in money may be paid by cheque drawn on the Corporation's bankers
or one of them, subject to the provisions of the Articles, to the order of each registered holder of
shares of the class or series in respect of which it has been declared and mailed by prepaid
ordinary mail to such registered holder at the registered holder's recorded address, unless such
holder otherwise directs. In the case of joint holders the cheque shall, unless such joint holders
otherwise direct, be made payable to the order of all of such joint holders and mailed to them at
their recorded address. The mailing of such cheque as aforesaid, unless the same is not paid on
due presentation, shall satisfy and discharge the liability for the dividend to the extent of the sum
represented thereby plus the amount of any tax which the Corporation is required to and does
withhold.

Section 8.3 Non-Receipt of Cheques.

In the event of non-receipt of any dividend cheque by the person to whom it is sent as
aforesaid, the Corporation shall issue to such person a replacement cheque for a like amount on
such terms as to indemnity, reimbursement of expenses, and evidence of non-receipt and of title
as the board may from time to time prescribe, whether generally or in any particular case.

Section 8.4 Unclaimed Dividends.

Subject to applicable law and the Articles, any dividend unclaimed after a period of six
years from the date on which the same has been declared to be payable shall be forfeited and
shall revert to the Corporation.

ARTICLE 9
MEETINGS OF SHAREHOLDERS

Section 9.1 Annual Meetings.

The annual meeting of shareholders shall be held at such time in each year and, subject to
Section 9.3,at such place as the board, the chair of the board, the vice-chair of the board, chief
executive officer or the president may from time to time determine, for the purpose of
considering the financial statements and reports required by the Act to be placed before the
annual meeting, electing directors, appointing an auditor (unless the Corporation is exempted
under the Act from appointing an auditor), and for the transaction of such other business as may
properly be brought before the meeting.
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Section 9.2 Special Meetings.

The board, the chair of the board, the vice-chair of the board, the chief executive officer
or the president shall have power to call a special meeting of shareholdersat any time.

Section 9.3 Place of Meetings.

Subject to the Act and the Articles, meetings of shareholders shall be held at such place
in or outside Ontario as the directors determine or, in the absenceof such a determination, at the

place where the registered office of the Corporation is located.

Section 9.4 Electronic Meetings.

A meeting of shareholders may be held by telephonic or electronic means and a
shareholder, or a proxyholder or a shareholder's representative appointed in accordance with
these by-laws, who, through those means, votes at a meeting or establishes a communications
link to a meeting shall be deemed to be present at that meeting.

Section 9.5 Chair, Secretary and Scrutineers.

The chair of any meeting of shareholders shall be the first mentioned of such of the
following officers as have been appointed and who is present at the meeting: chair of the board,
vice-chair of the board, the chief executive officer or the president. If no such officer is present

within fifteen minutes from the time fixed for holding the meeting, the persons present and
entitled to vote shall choose by vote one of their number to be chair. If the secretary of the
Corporation is absent, the chair shall appoint some person, who need not be a shareholder, to act
as secretary of the meeting. If desired, one or more scrutineers, who need not be shareholders,
may be appointed by a resolution or by the chair with the consent of the meeting.

Section 9.6 PersonsEntitled to be Present.

The only persons entitled to be present at a meeting of shareholders shall be those entitled
to vote thereat, the directors and auditor of the Corporation and others who, although not entitled

to vote, are entitled or required under any provision of the Act or the Articles or bylaws to be
present at the meeting. Any other person may be admitted only on the invitation of the chair of
the meeting or with the consent of the meeting.

Section 9.7 Quorum.

Subject to the Act and to Section 9.13, a quorum for the transaction of business at any
meeting of shareholdersshall be two persons present in person, each being a, shareholder entitled
to vote thereat or a duly appointed proxyholder or representative for an absent shareholder so
entitled. If a quorum is present at the opening of any meeting of shareholders, the shareholders
present or represented by proxy may proceed with the business of the meeting notwithstanding
that a quorum is not present throughout the meeting. If a quorum is not present at the opening of
any meeting of shareholders, the shareholders present or represented by proxy may adjourn the
meeting to a fixed time and place but may not transact any other business.
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Section 9.8 Proxyholders and Representatives.

(1) Every shareholder entitled to vote at a meeting of shareholders may appoint a
proxyholder, or one or more alternate proxyholders, who need not be shareholders, to act
as the shareholder's representative at the meeting in the manner and to the extent
authorized and with the authority conferred by the proxy. A proxy shall be in such form
as may be prescribed from time to time by the directors or in such other form as the chair
of the meeting may accept and as complies with all applicable laws and regulations.

(2) Alternatively, every such shareholder which is a body corporate or association may
authorize by resolution of its directors or governing body an individual to represent it at a
meeting of shareholders and such individual may exercise on the shareholder's behalf all
the powers it could exercise if it were an individual shareholder. The authority of such an
individual shall be established by depositing with the Corporation a certified copy of such
resolution, or in such other manner as may be satisfactory to the secretary of the

Corporation or the chair of the meeting. Any such proxyholder or representative need not
be a shareholder.

(3) Alternatively, an executor, administrator, committee of a mentally incompetent person,
guardian or trustee and,where a corporation is such executor, administrator, committee,
guardian or trustee of a testator, intestate, mentally incompetent person, ward or cestui
que trust, any duly appointed representative of such corporation, upon filing with the
secretary of the meeting sufficient proof of his or her appointment, shall represent the
shares in his, her or its hands at all meetings of shareholders of the Corporation and may
vote accordingly as a shareholder in the same manner and to the same extent as the
shareholder of record. If there be more than one executor, administrator, committee,

guardian or trustee, the provisions of this by-law respecting joint shareholders shall
apply.

Section 9.9 Joint Shareholders.

If two or more persons hold sharesjointly, any one of them present or duly represented
by proxy at a meeting of shareholders may, in the absenceof the other or others, vote the shares;
but if two or more of those persons are present in person or represented by proxy and vote, they
shall vote as one on the sharesjointly held by them.

Section 9.10 Votes to Govern.

At any meeting of shareholders every question shall, unless otherwise required by the
Act, the Articles, the by-laws or by law, be determined by a majority of the votes cast on the
question. In case of an equality of votes, the chair of the meeting shall be entitled to a second or
casting vote.

Section 9.11 Adjournment.

The chair at a meeting of shareholders may, with the consent of the meeting and subject
to such conditions as the meeting may decide, adjourn the meeting from time to time and place to

place.If a meeting of shareholders is adjourned for less than thirty days, it shall not be necessary
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to give notice of the adjourned meeting, other than by announcement at the earliest meeting that
is adjourned. Subject to the Act, if a meeting of shareholders is adjourned by one or more
adjournments for an aggregate of thirty days or more, notice of the adjourned meeting shall be
given as for an original meeting. Any business may be brought before or dealt with at any
adjourned meeting which might have been brought before or dealt with at the original meeting in
accordance with the notice calling such original meeting.

Section 9.12 Resolution in Writing.

A resolution in writing signed by all the shareholders entitled to vote on that resolution at
a meeting of shareholders is as valid as if it had been passed at a meeting of the shareholders
unless a written statement or written representation with respect to the subject matter of the
resolution is submitted by a director or the auditor, respectively, in accordance with the Act.

Section 9.13 Only One Shareholder.

Where the Corporation hasonly one shareholder or only one holder of any class or series
of shares,the shareholder present in person or duly represented by proxy constitutes a meeting.

ARTICLE 10
NOTICES

Section 10.1 Method of Giving Notices.

Any notice (which term includes any communication or document) to be given (which
term includes sent, delivered, or served) pursuant to the Act, the regulations thereunder, the
Articles, the by-laws or otherwise to a shareholder, director, officer, auditor or member of a
committee of the board shall be sufficiently given if delivered personally to the person to whom

it is to be given; or if delivered to the person's recorded address; or if mailed to the person at the
person's recorded address by prepaid ordinary or air mail; or if sent to the person at the person's
recorded address by any means of prepaid transmitted or recorded communication. A notice so
delivered shall be deemed to have been given when it is delivered personally or to the recorded
address as aforesaid; a notice so mailed shall be deemed to have been given when deposited in a

post office or public letter box and deemed to have been received on the fifth day after mailing;
and a notice so sent by any means of transmitted or recorded communication shall be deemed to
have been given when dispatched or delivered to the appropriate communication company or
agency or its representative for dispatch. The secretary may change or cause to be changed the
recorded address of any shareholder, director, officer, auditor or member of a committee of the
board in accordance with any information believed by the secretary to be reliable.

Section 10.2 Notice to Joint Holders.

If two or more persons are registered as joint holders of any share, any notice shall be
addressed to all of such joint holders but notice addressed to one of such persons shall be
sufficient notice to all of them.
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Section 10.3 Undelivered Notices.

If any notice given to a shareholder pursuant to Section 10.1 is returned on three
consecutive occasions becausehe or she cannot be found, the Corporation shall not be required
to give any further notices to such shareholder until the shareholder informs the Corporation in
writing of the shareholder'snew address.

Section 10.4 Omissions and Errors.

The accidental omission to give any notice to any shareholder, director, officer, auditor or
member of a committee of the board or the non-receipt of any notice by any such person or any
error in any notice not affecting the substance thereof shall not invalidate any action taken at any
meeting held pursuant to such notice or otherwise founded thereon.

Section 10.5 Persons Entitled by Death or Operation of Law.

Every person who, by operation of law, transfer (subject to the Articles, the Securities
Act and the Act), death of a shareholder or any other means whatsoever, shall become entitled to

any share, shall be bound by every notice in respect of such share which shall have been duly
given to the shareholder from whom the shareholder derives title to such share prior to the
shareholder'sname and address being entered on the securities register (whether such notice was

given before or after the happening of the event upon which the shareholder became so entitled)
and prior to the shareholder furnishing to the Corporation the proof of authority or evidence of
the shareholder'sentitlement prescribed by the Act.

ARTICLE 11
VARIOUS

Section 11.1 Exchange of Information, Agreements.

The Corporation may provide to domestic or foreign exchanges or self-regulatory

organizations or domestic or foreign securities enforcement or securities regulatory authorities
information and other forms of assistance for market surveillance, investigative, enforcement and

other regulatory purposes.

The Corporation may enter into agreements with domestic or foreign exchanges or self-

regulatory organizations or domestic or foreign securities enforcement or securities regulatory
authorities providing for the exchange of information and other forms of mutual assistance for
market surveillance, investigative, enforcement and other regulatory purposes.

Section I1.2 Subject to Applicable Laws.

The provisions of this by-law are subject to any applicable legislation, including without
limitation the Securities Act.
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Québec:
CERTIFICATDE FUSION

Loi sur les compagnies,Partie IA
(L R.Q.,chap.C-38)

J'atteste par les présentes que les compagnies mentionnées

dans les statuts de fusion ci-joints ont fusionné le 1ER MAI

2008, en vertu de la partie IA de la Loi sur les compagnies, en

une seule compagnie sous le nom

BOURSE DE MONTRÉAL INC.

et sa ou sesversion(s)

MONTRÉALEXCHANGE INC.

Comme indiqué dans les statuts de fusion ci-joints.

Déposéau registre le 1er mai 2008
sous le numéro d'entreprise du Quebec1164845340

Registraite desentreprises
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negistraire Statuts de fusion
ries entreprises

Québec ea tor.no,com-posgo., c.me,samesi

Marquer la cased'un X

s'il s'agit d'une fusion simplifiée E

i. Nom- InscrirelenomdelaCDmpagnielasuede lafusionetsaversion$11yalieu.

BOURSE DE MONTRÉAL INC.
and its version MONTRÉAL EXCHANGE INC.

Marquerlecased'unX sivousdemande2un numéromabicule(compagnieanuméro)au lieud'unnom. G

2.Districtjudiciaire duQuébec ou lacompagnieétablitson siège- Inscrireledistrictjudiciairetal qu'étabildansla l.oisurta dMsiontemloriale(L.R.O.,c.D-11).
Vouspouvezvoustenseigneraupalaisde justiceouauprèsdeServicesQuébec
ou àfadressesuivante:www.justine.gouv.qc.callranealstrecherche/districtasp. MONTRfAL

3.Nombreprécisounombresminimal . 4.Dated'e*éeen vigueur ""'
et maximald'administrateurs Minimum: 1 Maximum: 24 sielleestpostkieure àconedudép desstattits.

5.Décrirelecapital-actionsautoriséet les limitesimposées- Saufindicationcontrairedansles slatuts. lacompagniea un capital-actions illimitéet sesactionssontsansvaleur

nominale.(Voirla sectiona Deseríptionducapital-actions» dansl'informatlongénérale.)
The annexed Appendix 1 is incorporated in this foran .

6..Restrictionssur le transfertdesactionset autresdispositions,lecaséchéant
The annexed Appendix 2. is incorporated in this form

7.Limitesimposéesàsonactivité.le caséchéant
N/A

8.Nomet numérod'entrepriseduQuébec(NEQ)dechaquecompagnie qui fusionne
Fairesignerunadministrateurautorisévis-à-víslenomdechaquecompagnie.

Nomdescompagnies Num db'eneE )* SignaturedeIadministrateurautorisé

1· 9196-6184 OUÊBEC INC. 1 1

2.BOURSE DE MONTRfAL INC. 1 1 6 4 8 4 5 3 4 o /

3, 1 1

4. , 1 1

Si l'espaceprévuest insuffisant,joindre uneannexerempile en deux exemplaires,
identifierla sectioncorrespondanteetnuméroterlespagess'ily a lieu.

RETOURNERLESDEUXEXEMPLAIRESAVEC VOTREPAIEMENT.
NEPASTÉLÉCOPIER.
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APPENDIX 1

Unlimited number of classA common shareswithout par value;
Unlimited number of classB common shareswithout parvalue;
Unlimited number of classC common shareswithout par value;

. Unlimitednumber of classA preferred shareswithout par value; .
Unlisnited number of classB preferred shareswithout parvalue;
Unlimited number of classC preferred shareswithout par value; and
Unlimited number of classD preferred shareswithout par value.

I. The classA common shares,classB common sharesand classÓcommon sharesshallhave
attachedthereto the following rights,privileges,restriciions andconditions:

. (a) · Each classA common shareand.eachclassB common-share shall entitle the holder
thereof to one (1) vote at all meetings of the shareholdersof the Company (except
meetings at which only holders of another specified class of sharesare entitled to
.vote pursuant to the provisions hereof or pursuant to the provisions of the
CompaniesAct (hereinafter referred to as the "Act")). The holdersof the class C
common sharesshall not be entitled to receiye notice of, nor to attend or vote at

meetings of the shareholdersof the Company (except as required by the provisions
hereofor by the Act).

(b) The holders of the class A common shares shall be entitled to receive non-
cumulative dividends,as andwhen declared by the board of directors, subject to the

rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching ° to the class A preferred
shares,the class B preferred shares,the class C preferredshares,the class D
preferred shares and to any other class of shares ranking priot to the. class A
òommon shares.Any dividendspaidon the classA commonshares,when paid in

. money,shallbepayableonly in the lawful currencyof Canada.

(c) The board of directors may, in ·its discretion, declare dividends on the class A
common shares without having to concuxTently declare dividends on the class B
common sharesor on the classC common shares.

(d) The holders of the class B common sharesshall be entitled to receive non-
· cumulative dividends,as andwhen declaredby the board of directors,subject to the
. rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching to the class A preferred

shares,the class B preferred shares,the class C preferred shares,the class D
. . preferred shares and to any other .class of shares ranking prior to the class B

common shares.Any dividends paid on the class B common.shares, when paid in
money,shall lie payalile only in the lawful currency of Canada òr in the lawful
currency of the United Statesof America.

•Mtl#: 1593916.3 BOX ExchangeLLC Exhibit C-2 Page3
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(e) · The board of directors may, in its discretion, declare dividends on the class B
common shares without having to concurrently declare dividends on the class A
commonsharesor on the classC commonshares.

(f) The holder or holders of issued and outstanding classB common sharessiiall have
the option to convert all or part of their class B common shares into class A
commori shares, at the rate of one (1) class'A common sharefor .each class B
common shareconverted.

(g) The holder 'or holders of classB common shareswho wish to convert their shares ,
into classA common sharesshall submit to the head office of the Company or the
office of its transfer agent a written notice indicating the nutnber of classB common
shares they wish to convert. Certificates representing class B common shares
submitted for conversion shall be attached to the notice which shall bear the

signature of the personsmentioned in the register of securities of the Company as
being the holders of the shares,or the sigiinture . of their duly authorized
representatives. Upon receipt of the above-mentioned notice and certificates, the
Company shall issue a certificate representing the class A common sharesresulting
from the conversion. In the event of partial conversion of classB coinmon shares
represented by the certificates tendered,the Company shall issue without charge a
new certificate representing the classB common shateswhich were not·converted.

(h) · On the date of conversion, the converted classB common sharesshallautomatically
become classA common sharesand the Company shall modify its issued andpaid-

up share capital account maintained for the classA common shares and the classB
common sharesaccording to the provisions of the Act.

(i) The holders of the class C common shares shall be entitled to receive non-
cumulativedividends,as and whendeclared by the board of directors,subject to the
rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching to the class A preferred
shares,the class B preferred shares, the class C preferred shares,the class D

. preferred shares and to any other class of shares ranking prior to the class C
common shares.Any dividends paid on the class C common shares,when paid in
money,shall be payable in the currency of any country.

(j) The board of directors may, in its discretion, declare dividends on the class C
common shares without having to concurrently declare dividends on the classA
commonsharesor on the classB common shares.

(k) The holders of issued and outstanding classC cominon sharesshall have the option
to convert all or part of their classC common sharesinto class B common shares,at
the rate of one (1) class B common share for each class C common share converted.

(1) The holder or holders of class C commonshares who. wish to convert their shares
into class B common sharesshall submitto the headoffice of the Company or the
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office of its transfer agent a written notice indicating the number of classC common
shares they wish to convert. Certificates representing class C common shares
submitted for conversion shall be attached to the notice which shall bear the

signature of the peisons mentioned in the register of securities of the Company as.
being the holders of the shares, or the signature of their duly authorized
representatives. Upon receipt of the above-mentioned notice and .certificates, the
Company shall issue a certificate representing the classB common sharesresulting .
from the conversion. In the event of partial conversion of class C commonshares

representedby the certificates tendered,the Company shall issue without charge a
newcertificate representing the class C common shareswhich were not converted.

(m) On the date of conversion, the converted classC common sharesshallautomatically
become class B commoii sharesand the Companyshall modify its issuedand paid-

up share capital account inaintained for the class B common sharesand the class C
commonsharesaccording to the provisions of the Act.

(n) In the event of the liquidation,dissolution or winding-iip of the Company,whether
voluntary or involuntary, or other distribution of assets of the Comisanyamong
shareholders for the purpose of winding-up its affairs, subject to the rights,
privileges,restrictions.and conditions attaching to the class A pfeferred shares,the
class B preferred shares, the class C preferred shares,the classD preferred sharés
and to any other class of shares ranking prior to the classA common shares, the '
class B common sharesor the class C common shares,the holders of the class A
common shares, the holders of the class B common shares.and the holders of the
class'C common sharesshall be entitled to receive the remainingproperty of the

Company; the classA common shares,the classB commonsharesand the class C
common shares shall rank equally on a per share basis with respect to the
distribution of assetsin the event of the liquidation,dissolution or winding-up of the
Company,whether voluntary or involuntary,or anyother distribution of the assets
of the Company among shareholders for the purpose of winding-up its affairs.

II. The class A preferredshares shall have attached theretothe following rights; privileges,
restrictions and conditions:

(a) Subject to the provisions of the Act or as otherwise expressly provided herein, the
holders of the class A preferred sharesshall not be entitled to receive notice of, nor

. to attendor vote at meetings of the shareholdersof the Company.

(b) The holders of the classA preferred sharesshall beentitled to receive during each
year,as and whendeclaredby the boardof directors,but always in preferenceand

- priority to any payment of dividends on the other shares of the Company,
cumulative dividencis at a fixed rate of five and one half percent (5.$%) per year
calculated daily on the class A preferred redemption price (as hereinafter in
paragraph II. (g) defined)of eachsuchsharepayable in money,propertyor by the
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issue.of fully paid sharesof any class of the Company. The holders of the classA
preferred shares shall not be entitled to any dividend.in excess of the dividend
hereinbeforeprovided for.

(c) In thé event of the liquidation,dissolution or winding-up of the Company,whether
voluntary or involuntary, or other distribution of assetsof the Company among .
shareholders for the purpose of winding-up its affairs, the holders of the class A
preferred shares shall be entitled to receive for each.class A preferred share,in
preferenceandpriority to any distribution of the property or assetsof the Company .
to the holdersof the other sharesof the Company,an amount equal to the classA

preferred redemption price plusall accrued andunpaid dividends thereon,but shall
not be entitled to shareany further in the distribution of the property or assetsof the
Company.

(d). The Company may,in the manner hereinafter provided,redeem at any time all, or
from tirheto time any part, of the outstanding class A preferred shareson payment ·

for eachclassA preferred shareto be redeemedof the classA preferred redemption

price plus all accrued and unpaid dividends thereon (in paragraphs II. (e) and(f)
called the "redemptionprice").

(e) Before redeeming any class A preferred shares,the Company shall mail or deliver
to eachperson who, at the date of such mailing or delivery, shall be a registered
holder .of class A preferred shares to be redeemed,notice of the intention of the
Òompanyto redeem such sharesheld by suchregistered holder; suchnotice shallbe
deliveréd to, or mailéd by ordinary prepaid post addressedto, the last addressof
such holder as it appearson the records of the Company,or in the event of the
addressof any suchholder not appearing on the records.of the Company, then to
the last addressof such holder known to the Company,at least one (1) day before
the date specified for redemption; such notice shall set out the redemption price,
the date on which the redemption is to take place and,if part only of the classA

preferred sharesheld by the person to whom it is addressedis to beredeemed,the'
number thereof so to be redeemed;. on or after the date so specified for redemption

the Company shall pay or cause to be paid the redemption price to the registered
holders of the class A preferred shares to be redeemed on presentation and
surrendórof the certificates for theclassA preferredsharesso called for redemption
at the head office of the Company or at such other place or places as may be

specified in such notice, and the certificates for such elassA preferred sharesshall
thereupon be cancelled, and the class A preferred shares represented thereby shall
thereupon be redeemed; from and after the date specified for redemption in such
notite, the holders of the classA preferred sharescalled for redemption shallcease

· .to be entitled to dividends in respect of such shares and shall not be entitled to

. exeröise any of the rights of the holders thereof, except the right .to receive the
redemption price, unless payment of the redemption price shallnot be made by the
Company in accordancewith the foregoing provisions,in which casethe rights of
the holders of such sharesshallremainunaffected; on or before the date specified

Mtl#:1593916.3
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for redemption,the Company shallhave the right to deposit the redemption priceof
the class A preferred shares called for redemption in a special.account with any
charteredbank or trust company in Canadanamed in thenotice of redemption,to be
paid, without interest, to or to the order of the respective holders of such class,A
:preferred shares called for redemption, upon presentation and surrender of the
certificates representing the same and,upon such deposit heing made or upon the
date specified for redemption,whichever is later, the classA preferred.shares in
respect whereof such deposit shall have been made, shall be deemed to be
redeemedand the rights ofthe respective holders thereof,after such deposit or after
such redemptiondate,as tlie casemay be,shallbe limited to receiving,out of the
moneys so deposited,without interest, the redemption price applicable to their
respective, class A preferred shares against presentation and surrender of the
certificates representing such classA preferred shares. If less than all the class A
preferred sharesare to be redeemed,the sharesto be redeemed shall be redeemed

' pro rata, disregarding fractions, unless the holders of the classA preferred shares
unanimous1 agree to the adoption of another method of selection of the class A
preferred sharesto be redeemed. If less than all the class.A preferredshares
representedby any·certificate be redeemed, a new certificate for the balance shall
be issued.

(f) The Company may purchase for cancellation at any time all, or from time to time
any part, of the class A preferred shares outstanding, by private contract at any

. price, with the unanimous consent of the holders of the class A preferred shares
, then outstanding, or by invitation for tenders addressed to all the holders of the

classA preferred sharesat the lowest price at which, in the opinion of the directors, .
such shares are obtainable but not exceeding the redemptionprice thereof..If less ·

than all the classA preferredsharesrepresented by any certificate be purchased for
cancellation, anew certificate for the balance shall be issued.

(g) For the purposes of the foregoing paragraphs 11.(b),·(c) and (d), the "classA .
· preferred redemptionprice"of eachclassA preferredshareshall be an amount

equal to (i) the monetary consideration received by the Company upon the issuance
of such share(denominated in the currency in which such consideration was paid to. ·

the Company),if suchsharehasbeenissuedfor money,lessany amount distributed
in respect of such share on a reduction of the issued.and paid-up sliare capital
account maintained in respect of the class A preferred shares;or (ii) the fair market
value of the consideration received by the Company (includirig,without limitation,
sharesof another class of the Company) upon the issuance of such share, if such
share has been issued for a consideration other than möney, less any amount
distributed in respect of such shareon a reduction of the issued and paid-up share
capital account maintained in respectof the classA preferred shares.Subject to the .

• provisions of the following sub-paragraph, such fair market value is to be
determined by the .directors on the basis of generally accepted accounting and
valuation principles.
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The fair market value detenninedas hereinabove provided for shallbe subject to
revision in accordance with any binding agreement with, or decision by, the

appropriate taxation authorities, or any judgment of .a court of competent
jurisdiction. In the event that any such agreement, decision or judgment shall result
in a final determination under the provisions of the appropriate taxation legislation
andthe amount thereby determined is an amount other than the amount for which
such sharewas originally issued as determined by the directors in accordancewith
the preceding sub-paragraph,such finally determined amount for the purpose of the
appropriate taxation legislation shall then be deemed to be the fair market value of .
the consideration received by the Company upon the issuance of such class A
preferred share.

(h) In the event that only part of the amount of the consideration received by the
Company for any classA preferred share issued by the Company is added to the
issued and paid up capital account for the class of shares of which such class A
preferred share fonns part, such class A preferred shareshall be deemed to have
been issued for the full amount of the consideration received,for all purposes of
these articles (except only the issued andpaidup capital of suchshares)including,
but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, dividend rights, redemption
rights.and rights upon liquidation anddissolution.

(i) The amount of $1 is the amount specified in respect of eachclassA preferred share
for purposesof Subsection 191(4)of the Income TaxAct (Canada).

(j) No change to anyof the provisions of paragraphs II. (a) to (i) or of this paragraph
(j) shall have any force or effect until a by-law hasbeenapprovedby a majority of
not less, than two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast by the holders of the classA
preferred shares,voting separately as a class at a meeting of such holders specially ·

called for that purpose,of by a resolution in writing signed by all the holdersof the
classA preferred shares,in addition to any other approval required by the Act.

III. The class B preferred sharesshall have attached thereto the following rights, privileges,
restrictions and conditiòns:

(a) Subject to the provisions of the Act or as otherwise expressly provided herein,the
holders of the classB preferred sharesshall not be entitled to receive notice of, nor
to attendor vote at meetings of the shareholdersof the Company.

(b) The holders of the class B preferred sharesshallbe entitled to receive during each
year,asandwhen declared by the boardof directors, but always in preferenceand
priority to any payment of dividends onthe class C preferred shares, the class D
preferred shares,the class A common shares,the class B common sharesand the
classC common sharesor any other sharesranking junior to the class B preferred
shares,cumulative dividends at a fixed rate of six percent (6°/o) per year calculated
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daily on the class B preferred redemption price (as hereinaner in paragraph IIL.(g)
defined) of eachsuch sharepayable in money,property or by the issue of fully paid .
shares of any class of the Company. The holders of the classB. preferred shares ·

shall not be entitled to any dividend in excessof the dividend hereinbefore pavided
for.

(c) . In the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company, whether
voluntary or involuntary, or other distribution of assetsof the Cómpany among
shareholders for the purpose of winding-up its affairs, the holders of the class B
preferred shares shall be entitled to receive for each class B preferred share,in
preference andpriority to any distribution of the property or assetsof the Company
to the holders the class C preferred shares,the classD preferred shares,the classA
common shares,the classB common sharesand the class C common sharesor any
other sharesrankiiig junior to the class B preferred shares,an amount equal to the
class.B preferred redemption price plus all accrued and unpaid dividends thereon,
but shall not be entitled to share any further in the distribution of the property or ·

assetsof the Company.

(d) The Company may, in the manner hereinafter provided,redeem at any time all, or
from time to time any part,of the outstanding classB preferred shareson payment
for eachclass B preferred share to be redeemed of the classB preferred redemption
price plus all accrued and unpaid dividends thereon (in paragraphs III.·(e) and (f)
called the "redemptionprice").

(e) · Before redeeming any class B preferred shares,the Companyshall mail or deliver
to each personwho,at the date of such mailing or delivery, shall be a registered
holder of class B preferred shares to be redeemed, iiotice of the intention of the
Company to redeemsuch sharesheld by such registeredholder;such notice shallbe
delivered to, or mailed by ordinary prepaid post addressedto, the last address of
such holder as it appears on the records of the Company, or in the event of the
addressof anysuchholdernot appearingonthe recordsof the Company,thento
the last address of such holder known to the Company, at least one (1) day before
the date specified for redemption; such notice shall set out the redemption price, '

the date on which the redemptionis to takeplace and,if part only of the class B
preferred sharesheldby the person to whom it is addressedis to be redeemed, the
number thereof so to be redeemed; on or after the date so specified for redemption .

the Company shall pay or cause to be paid the redemption price to the registered
holders of the classB preferi·ed sharesto be redeemed on presentation and
surrenderof the certificates for the classB preferred sharessocalled for redemption
at the head office of the Company or at such other place or places as may be
specified in suchnotice, andthe certificates for such class B preferred sharesshall
thereupon be cancelled, and the class B preferred sharesrepresented thereby shall
thereupon be redeemed; from and after the date.specified for redemption in such
notice,the holders of the class B preferred sharescalled for redemption shallcease
to be entitled to dividends in respect of such shares and shall not be entitled to ·
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exercise any of the rights of the holders thereof,except the right to receive the
redemption price,unless payment of the redemption price shall not be made by the
Company in accordancewith the foregoing provisions,in which casethe rights of
the holdersof such sharesshall remain unaffected; on ór before the date specified

for redemption, the Companyshall have the right to deposit the redemption price of
the class B preferred shares called for redemption in a special account with any
charteredbank or trust company in Canadanamed in the notice of redemption,to be.

paid,without interest,to or to the order of the respective holders of such class B
preferred shares called for redemption,upon presentation and surrender of the
certificates representing the same and,upon such deposit being made or upon the
date specified for redemption,whichever is later, the class B preferred shai·es in
respect whereof such deposit shall have been niade, shall .be deemed to be
redeemedandthe iights of the respective holders thereof,after such deposit or after
such redemption date,as the case may be, shall be limited to receiving, out of the
moneys so deposited,without interest, the redemption price applicable to their
respective class B preferred shares against presentation and. surrender. of the
certificates representing such class.B preferred shares. If lessthan all the class B
preferred shares are to be redeemed, the sharesto be redeenied shallbe redeemed
pro rata, disregarding fractions,unless the holders of the class B preferred shares

. unanimously agree to the adoption of another method of selection of the class B
preferred shares to be fedeemed. If less than all .the class B preferred shares
representedby any certificate be redeemed,a new certificate for the balance shall
be issued.

(f) . The Company may purchase for cancellation at any time all, or from time to time
any part, of the class B preferred sharesoutstanding, by private contract at any
price, with the unanimous consent of the holders of the class B preferred shares
then outstanding, or by invitation for tenders addressed to all the holders of the
classB preferredsharesat the lowest price at which, in the opinion of the directors,
.such shares are obtainable but not exceeding the redemption price thereof. If less

than all the class B preferred sharesrepresentedby anycertificatebe purchasedfor
cancellation,a new certificate for the baiance shall be issued.

(g) For the purposes of the foregoing paragraphs III. (b), (c) and (d), the "classB
.preferred redemption price" of each class B preferréd share shall be an amount
equal to (i) the monetary consideration received by the Company upon the issuance
of such share(denominated in the ourrencyin which such consideration waspaid to
the Company), if such sharehas been issued for money,lessanyamount distributed
in respect of such shareon a reduction of the issued and paid-up.share capital
account ruaintained in respectof the class B preferred shares;or (ii) the fair market
value of the consideration received by the Company (including,without limitation,
shares of another class of the Company) upon the issuance of such share, if such

· share has been issued for a consideration .other than money, less any amount
distributed in respect of such share on a reduction of the issued and paid-up share
capital account maintained in respect of the classB preferredshares.Subject to the·
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provisions of the following sub-paragraph, .such fair market value is to be
determined by the directors on the basis of generally accepted accounting and
valuation principles.

The fair market value determined as hereinabove provided for shall be subject to
revision in accordance with any binding agreement with, or decision by, the

appropriate taxation authorities, or any judgment of a court of competent
jurisdiction. In the event that anysuchagreement,decision or judgment shall result '

in a final determination under the provisions of the appropiiate taxation.legislation
and the amount thereby determined is an amount other than the amount for which
such sharewas originally issued as determined by the directors in accordancewith
the preceding sub-paragraph,such finally determined amount for the purpose of the
appropriate taxation legislation shall then be deemed to be the fair market value of
the consideration received by the Company upon the issuance of such class B
preferred share.

(h) In the event that only part of the amountof the consideration redeived by the
Company for any classB preferred share issued by the Company is added to the
issued and paid up capital account for the class of shares of which such class B
preferred share forms part, such class B preferred share shall be deemed to have .
been issue'dfor the full amount of the consideration received, for all purposés of
these articles (except only the issued and paid up capital of such shares) including,

. . but without limiting the generality of the foregoing,dividend rights, redemption
rights and rightsuponliquidation and dissolution.

(i) The amount of $1.00is the amount specified in respect of each class B preferred
sharefor purposesòf Subsection 191(4) of the Income Tax Act (Canada). '

. (j) No changeto any of the provisions of paragraphs III. (a) to (i) or of this paragraph
(j) shall have any force or effect until a by-law has been approved by a majority of
not less than' two-thirds (2/3) of the votes castby the holdersof the classB
preferred shares,voting separately as a class at a meeting of suchholders specially
called for that purpose,or by a resolution in writing signed by all the holders of the ·

classB preferred shares,in addition to any other approvatrequired by the Act.

. IV. The class C preferred shares shall ha.veattached thereto the following rights, privileges,
restrictions and conditions: '

(a) Each.class C preferred share shall entitle the holder thereof to one (1) vote at all
meetings of the shareholders of the Company (except meetings at which only
holders of another specified class of shares are entitled·to vote .pursuant to the

. provisions hereof or pursuant to the Act).
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(b) The holders of the class C preferred sharesshallhe entitled to receive during each
month,as and when declared by the board of directors, but always in preference
andpriority to any payment of dividends on the classD preferred shares,the class
A common shares,the classB common sharesand the class C common sharesor
any other shares ranking junior to the class C preferred shares,non-cumulative
dividends at a fixed rate of seventy-five hundredths percent (0.75%)per month
calculated on the classC preferred redemption price (ashereinafter in paragraph IV.
(h) defined) of eachsuch sharepayable in money,property or by the issue of fully
paid sharesof any classof the Company.. The holders of the class C preferred
sharesshall not be entitled to any dividend in excess of the dividend hereinbefore

provided for.

(c) In the event of theliquidation,dissolution or winding-up of the Company,whether
voluntary or involuntary, or other distribution of assets of·the Company among ·

shareholders for the purpose of winding-up its affairs, the holders of thé class C
preferred shares shall be entitled to receive for eachclass C preferred share,in
preference and priority to any distribution of theproperty or assetsof the.Company
to the holders of the classD preferred shares,the class.Acommon shares,the class
B common shares and the class C common shares or any other shares ranking

junior to the class C preferred shares,an amount equal-to the class C preferred
, redemption price plus all declared and unpaid dividends thereon,but shallnot be
entitled to .share any further in the distribution of the property or assets of the
Company.

(d) The Cömpany may, in the manner hereinafter provided,redeem at any time all, or
from time to time any part, of the outstanding class C preferred shareson payment
for eachclassC preferred shareto be redeemedof the classC preferred redemption
price plus all declared and unpaid dividends thereon (in paragraphs IV. (e), (f) and
(g) calledthe "redemptionprice").

(e) Before redeeming any class C preferred shares,the Companyshallmail or deliver
to each person who,at the date of such mailing or delivery,shall be a registered
holder of class C preferred shares to be redeemed, notice of the intention of the

Company to redeem such sharesheld by suchregistered holder; such notice shall be
deHvered to, or mailed by ordinary prepaid post addressedto, the last address of
such holder as it appearson the records of the Company,or in the event of the
addressof any such holder not appearing on the records of the Company,then to
the last addressof such holder known to the Company,at least one (1) day before

the date specifiedfor redemption; such notice shallset out the redemption price,
the date on which the redemption is to take place and,if part only of the class C

. preferred sharesheld by the person to whom it is addressedis to be redeemed,the
number thereof so to be redeemed; on or after the date so specified for redemption

the Company shall pay or cause to be paid the redemption price to the registered
holders of the class C preferred shares to be redeemed on presentation and
surrenderof the certificates for theclassC preferred sharesso called for redemption
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at the head office of the Company or at such other place or places as may be
specified in such notice, and the certificates for such class C preferred sharesshall
thereupon be cancelled,and the class C preferred sharesrepresented thereby shall
thereupon be redeemed; from and after the date specified for redemption in such
notice, the holders of the classC preferred.shares called for redemption shall cease
to be entitled to dividends in respect of such shares and shall not be entitled to

exercise any of the rights of the holdersthereof, except the right to receive the
redemption price,unlesspayment of the redemption price shállnot be made by the
Company in accordancewith the foregoing provisions,in which casethe rights of
the holders of such sharesshall remain unaffected; on or before the date specified

for redemption,the Company shall have the.right to deposit the redentption price of
the class-C preferred shares called for redemption in a special.account with any
charteredbank or trust company in Canadanamed in the notice of redemption, to be

paid,.without.interest, to or to the order of the respective holders of such classC
preferred .shares called for redemption,upon presentation and surrender of the
certificates representing the same and,upon such deposit being made or upon the
date specified for redemption,whichever is later, the class C preferred shares in
respect whereof such deposit shall have been made, shall be deemed to be
redeemedand the rights of the respective holders thereof,after sch deposit or after
such redemption date,as the casemay be,shall be limited to receiving, out of the
moneys so deposited, .without interest, the redemption price applicable to their
respective class C preferred shares against presentation and surrender of the
certificates representing such class C preferred shares. If less than all the classC

. preferred sharesare to be redeemed,the sharesto be redeemed shall be redeemed
pro rata,disregarding fractions, unless the holders of the class C preferred shares
unanimously agree to the adoption of another method of selection of the class C
preferred sliares to be redeemed. If less than all the class C preferred shares
representedby any certificate be redeemed,a new certificate for the balance shall
be issued.·

(f) A holder of class C preferred sharesshall be entitledto require theCompanyto
redeem at any time all, or from time to time any part,of the classC preferred sliares

registered in the name of such holder by tendering to the Company at its head office
the sharecertificate(s) representing the classC preferred shareswhich the registered .
holder desires to have the Companyredeem together with a request in writing

specifying (i) the number of class C preferred shares which the registered holder .
. desires to have redeemed by the Company and (ii) the business day (in this

paragraph referred to as the "redemptiondate") on which the holder desiresto have
the Companyredeemsuchclass C preferredshares,which redemptiondate shall
not be less than five (5) days after the day on which the request in writisig is given
to the Company. Upon receipt of the share certificate(s) representíng the class C
proferred shares which the registered holder desires to have the Company redeem
together with such a request,the Company shall on,or at its option, before, the

. redemption date redeem such class C preferred sharesby paying to the registered
holder thereof, for eachshare to be redeemed,.an amount equal to the redemption
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price in respect thereof, such payment shall be made by chequepayable at par at
any branch of the Company's bankers for the time being in Canada.The said class
C preferred sharesshall be deemedto be redeemedon the date of payment of the
redemption price and from and after suchdate such class C preferred sharesshall
cease to be entitled to dividends anelthe holders thereof shall not be entitled to
exercise any of the rights of the holders of class C preferred shares in respect
thereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall only be obliged to
redeem class C preferred sharesso tendered for redemption to the extent that such
redemption would not be contrary to any applicable law, and if such redemption of
any such classC preferred shares would be contrary to any applicable law, the
Company shall only be obliged to redeem such class C preferred shares to the
extent that the moneys applied thereto shallbe such amount (rounded to the next
lower multiple of one hundred dollars ($100.00))aswould not be contrary to such
law,in which casethe Company shall pay to eachholder his pro rata share of the
purchasemoneys allocable. If less than all the class C preferred sharesrepresented
by anycertificate be redeemed,a new certificate for the balance shall be issued.

(g) The Company may purchase for cancellation at any time all, or from time to time
any part, of the class C preferred shares outstanding, by private dontract at any ,

price, with the unanimous consent of the holders of the class C preferred shares
then outstanding, or by invitation for tenders addressed to all the holdersof the
classC preferred sharesat the lowest price at which, in the opinioh of the directors,
such sharesare obtainable but not exceeding the redemption price thereof. If less

. than all the 'class C prefeired sharesrepresentedby any certificate be purchased for
cancellation, a new certificate for the balance shall be issued.

(h) For the purposes of the foregoing paragraphs IV.(b), (c) and (d), the "classC
preferred redemption price" of each class C preferred share shall be an amount
equalto (i) the monetary considerationreceived by the Company.upon the issuance
of suchshare(denominated in the currency in which such consideration was paid to
the Company), if such sharehas been issued for money,lessany amount distributed
in respect of such share on .a rediiction of the issued and paíd-up share capital
account maintained in respect of the classC preferred shares;or (ii) the fair market
yalue of the consideration received by the Company (including,without limitation,.
sharesof another class of the Company) upon the issuanceof such share,if such
share has been issued for a consideration other than money, less any amount

· distributed in respect of such shareon a reduction of the issued andpaid-up share
capital accountmaintained in respectof the classC preferred shares.Subject to the

, provisions of the following sub-paragraph, such fair market value is to be
determined by the directors on the basis of generally accepted accounting and

. valuation principles.

The Tairmarket value determined as hereinabove provided for shall be subject to
revision in accordance with any binding agreement with, or decision by, the .
appropiiate taxation authorities, or any judgment of a court of competent
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jurisdiction. In the event that any such agreement,decisionor judgment shall result
in a faal determination under the provisions of-the appropriate taxation legislation
and the amount thereby determined is an amount other than the amount for which
such sharewas originally issued as determined by the directors in accordancewith
the preceding sub-paragraph,such finally determined amount for the purpose ofthe
appropriate taxation legislation shallthen be deemedto be the fair market value of
the consideration received by the Company upon the issuance of such classC
preferred share.

(i) In the event that only part·of the amount of.the consideration received by the
Company for any class C prefened share issued by the Company is added to the
issued and paid up capital account for the class of shares of which such classC
preferred share forms part, such class C preferred share shall be deemed to have
been issued for the full amount of the consideration received,for all purposes of
these articles (except only the issued and paidup capital of such class C preferred
shares) including, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, dividend

, rights,redeinption rights and rights uponliquidation anddissolution.

(j) No changeto any of the provisions of paragraphs.IV. (a) to (i) or of this paragraph
. (j) shall have any force or effect until a by-law has been apjorovedby a majority of

not less than two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast by the holders of the class C
preferred shares,voting separatelyas a class at a meeting of such holdersspecially
called for that purpose, or by a resolution in writing signed by all the holders of the
classC preferred shares,in addition to anyother approval required by the Act.

V. The class. D preferred shares shall have attached thereto the following. rights, privileges,
restrictions andconditions:

(a) . Subject to the provisions of the Act or as otherwise expressly provided herein, the
holders of the classD preferred sharesshallnot be entitled to receive notice of, nor
to attend or vote atmeetings of the shareholdersof the Company.

(b) The holders of the classD preferred sharesshallbe entitled to receive during each
- month,as and when declaredby the board of directors,but alwaysin preference

andpriority to any payment of dividends on the classA commonshares,the classB
common sharesandthe classC commonsharesor.anyothersharesranking junior
to the class D preferred shares,non-cumulative dividends at a fixed rate of one .
percent (1%) per month calculated on the class D preferred redemption price (as
hereinaftèr in paragraph V. (b) defined) of each such share payable in money,
property or by the issue of fully paid shares of any class of the Company. The
holders of the class D preferred shares shall not be entitled to any dividend in
excessof the dividend hereinbefore provided for.
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(c) In the event of the liquidation,dissolution or winding-up of the Company,whether
voluntary or involuntary, or other distribution of assetsof the Company among
shareholders for the purpose of winding-up its affairs, the holders of the class D
preferred shares shall be entitled to receive for eacli class D preferred share,in
preferenceand priority to any distribution of the property or assetsof the Company
to the holders of the class A common shares,the class B common sharesand the .
class C common sharesor any other sharesranking'junior to the classD preferred
shares,an amount equal to the classD preferred redemption price plus all declared
and unpaid dividends thereon, but shall not be entitled to share any further in the·

distribution of the property or assets of the Company.

(d) The Company may, in the manner hereinafter provided,redeem at any time all, or
from time to time anypart,of the outstanding classD preferred shareson payment ·

for eachclassD preferred shareto be redeemedof the classD preferred redemption
price plus all declared andunpaid dividends therepn (in paragraphsV.(e), (f) and
(g) called the "redemptionprice").

(e) Before redeeming any class D preferred shares,the Company shall mail or deliver
to eachperson who, at the date of such inailing or delivery, shall be a registered ·

holder of class D preferred. shares to be redeemed,notice of the intention of the
Company to redeemsuch sharesheldby suchregisteredholder;suchnotice shall be
delivered to, or mailed by ordinary prepaid post addressedto,'the last addressof
such holder as it appears on the records of the Company,or in the event of the
addressof any such holder not appearing on the records of the Comparty,then to,
the last addressof such holder known to the Company, at least one (1) day before
the date specified for redemption; such notice shall set out the redemption price, .
the date on which the redemption is to take place and,if part only of the class D
preferred sharesheld by the person to whom it is addressedis to be redeemed,the

· numberthereofso to be redeemed;onorafter the date so specified for redemption
the Companyshall pay or cause to be paid the redemption price to the registered
holders of the class D preferred shares to be redeemed on presentation and
surrenderof the certificates for the classD preferred sharesso called for redemption
at the head office of the Company or at such other place or places as may be
specified in such notice, and the cettificates for such classD preferred sharesshall
thereupon be cancelled, and the class D preferred sharesrepresented thereby shall
thereupon be redeemed; from and after.the date specified for redemption in such
notice, theholdersof the classD preferred sharescalled for redemptionshallcease
to be entitled to dividends in respect of such sharesand shall not be entitled to
exercise any of the rights of the holders thereof, except the right to receive the.
redemption price,unlesspayment of the redemption price shall not be made by the
Company in accordancewith the foregoing provisions,in which case the rights of .
the holders of such shares shall remaiu unaffected; on or before the date specified'

for redemption,the Coriipany shall have theright to deposit the redemptionprice of
the class D preferred shares called for redemption in a special account with any
charteredbankor trust company in Canadanamed in thenotice of redemption, to be
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paid,without interest, to or to the order of the-respective holders of.such classD
preferred shares called for redemption, upon presentation and surrender of the
certificates representing the same and,upon such deposit being made or upon the
date specified for redemption,whichever is later, the class D pi-eferred sharesin
respect whereof such deposit shall have been made, shall be deemed to be .
redeemedand the rights of the respective holders thereof,after such deposit or after
such redemption date, as the casemay be,shall be limited to receiving,out of the
moneys so deposited,without interest, the redemption price applicable to their .
respective class D preferred sliares against presentation and 'surrender of the
certificates representing such class D preferred shares.If less than all.the classD
preferred sharesare to be redeemed,the sharesto be redeemed shallbe redeemed
pro rata,disregarding fractions,unless the holders of the class D preferredshares
unanimously agree to the adoption of another method of selection of the class D

.preferred shares to be redeemed. If less than all the class D preferred shares
representedby any certificate be redeemed, a new certificate for the balance shall
be issued.

. (f) A holder of class D preferred shares shall be entitled to require the Company to
redeem at any time all, or from time to time any part,of the classD preferred shares
registered in thename of suchholderby tendering to the Company at its head office
the share certificate(s) representing the class D preferred shares which the

registered holder desires to have the Company redeem together with a request in
writing specifying (i) the number of.class D preferred shareswhich the registered
holder desires to have redeemedby th.eCompany and (ii) the business day (in this

paragraph referred to as the "redemption date")on which the holder desiresto have
the Company redeem such class D preferred shares,which redemption date shall
not be less.than five (5) days after the day on which the request in writing is given
to the Company. Upon receipt of the share certificate(s) representing the class D
preferred shareswhich the registered holder desires to have the Company redeem
together with such a request, the Company shall on, or at its option, before, the
redemption date redeem such class D preferred shäresby paying to the registered
holder thereof,for each shareto be redeemed, an amount equal to the redemption
price in respect thereof; such payment shalTbe made by cheque payable at par at
any branch of the Company's bankers for the time being in Canada.The saidclass
D preferred shares shallbe deemed to be redeemedon the date of payment of the
redemption price and from and aftersuch date such class D preferred sharesshall
cease to be entitled to dividends and the holders thereof shall not be entitled to

· exercise any of the rights of the .holders of classD preferred shares in respect
thereof. Notwithstanding the .foregoing, the Company shall only be óbliged to
redeem class D preferred sharesso tendered for redemption to the extent that such
redemption would riot be contrary to any applicable law, and if such redemption of
any such class D preferred shares would be, contrary to any applicable law, the
Company shall only be obliged to redeem such class D preferred shares to the
extent that the moneys applied thereto shall be such amount (roundedto the next

lower multiple of one hundred dollars ($100,00)) as would not be contrary to such
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. law, in which casethe Company shallpay to each hólder his pro rata share of the
purchasemoneys allocable. If less than all the classD preferred sharesrepresented

. by any certificate be redeemed,anewcertificate for the balanceshall be issued.

(g) · The Company may purchase for caricellation at any time all, or from time to time
any part, of the class D preferred shares outstanding,by private contract at any
price,.with the unanimous consent of the holders of the class D preferred shares
then outstanding, or by invitation fòr tenders addressed to all the holders of the

' classD preferred sharesat the.lowest price at which, in the opinionof the directors,
suohsharesare obtainable but not exceeding the redemption price ihereof. If less
thanall the classD preferred sharesrepresentedby anycertificate be purchased for
cancellation,a new certificate for the balance shallbe issued.

(h) For the pmposes·of the foregoing.paragraphs V. (b), (c) and (d), the "classD
preferred redemption price" of each class D preferredshare shall be an amount
equal to (i) the monetary consideration received by the Company upon the issuance
of such share(denominated in the currency in which such oonsiderationwas paid to
the Company),if such sharehas beenissued for money, lessany amount distributed.
in respect of such share on a reduction of the issued and paid-up share capital .
account maintained in respect of the class D preferred shares;or (ii) the fairmarket
valueof the consideration received by the-Company (including,without limitation,
shares of another classof the Company) upon the issuance of such share, if such
share has been issued for a consideration other than money, less any amount
distributed in respect of such share on a reduction of the issued andpaid-up share
'capital accountmaintained in respectof the classD preferred shares.Subject to the
provisions of the. following sub-paragraph, such fair market value is to be
determined by the directors on the basis of generally accepted accounting and
valuation principles.

The fair market value determined as hereinabove provided for shall be subject to
revision in accordance with any binding agreement with, or decision by, the
appropriate taxation authorities, or any judgment of· a court of competent
jurisdiction. In the event that any such agreement,decision or judgment shall result
in a final determination under the provisións of the appropriate taxation legislation
andthe amount thereby determinedis an amount otherthan the amount for which
such sharewas originally issued as determined by the directors in accordancewith
the preceding sub-paragraph,such finally determined amount for the jourposeof the
appropriate taxation legislation shall then be deemedto be the fair market value of
the consideration received by the Company upon the issuance of such class D

preferredshare.

(i) in the event that only part of the amount of the consideration received by the
Company for any classD preferred share issued by the Companyis added to the
issued and paid up capital account for the class of shares of which such class D
preferred shate forms part, such class D preferred share shall be deemed to have
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been issued for the fulÏ amount of the consideration received,.for all purposes of
these articles (except only the issued and paid up capital of such shares)including,
but without limiting the generality of the foregoing,dividend rights, redemption
rights and rights upon liquidation anddissolution.

(j) No changeto any of the provisions of paragraphs'V.(a) to (i) or of this paragraph
(j) shall have any force or effect until a by-law has been approvedby a majority of
not less than two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast by the holders of the class D
preferred shares,voting separately asa class at a meeting of such holders specially
called for that purpose,or by a resolution in writing signed by all the holders of the
class D preferred shares,in addition to any other approval required by the Act.
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APPENDIX 2

RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER OF SHARES AND OTHER PROVISIONS

(1) No securities of the Company,other than non-convertible debt securities, shall be
transferred without the approval of the directors evidenced by a resolution duly
adoptedby them.

(2) The directors may,when they deem it expedient:.

(a) borrow money upon the credit of theCompany;

(b) . issue debenturesor other securities of the Company,and pledgeor sell the
samefor such sums andat suchprices asmay be deemedexpedient;

(c) hypothecate the immovable and movable property or otherwise affect .the
movable property ofthe Company.

(3) The shareholdersmay participate andvote at a shareholders'meeting by any means
allowingall the patticipants to communicate with eachother.

(4) The annualmeeting of the shareholdersmay beheld outside Québec.

(5) The election of the directors may be held outside Québec.
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BOURSE DE MONTRÉAL INC.

GENERAL BY-LAWS

ARTICLE 1

DEFINITIONS

SECTION 1.1 DEFINITIONS In this by-law and all other by-laws of the Company,
unless the context otherwise requires:

(a) "Act" means the Companies Act (Quebec)(R.S.Q.1977,c.C-38), as amended by
the Act modifying the Companies Act and other statutory dispositions, S.Q.1979,
c. 31, as from time to time further amended, and every statute that may be
substituted therefor and, in the case of such amendment or substitution, any
reference in the by-laws of the Company to any provision of the Act shall be read
as referring to the amendedor substituted provisions therefor;

(b) "approved participant" refers to a firm or other person that has entered into an
agreement with the Company to accessthe trading facilities of its markets;

(c) "articles" means the articles of amalgamation of the Company attached to the
certificate of ainalgamation dated May 1,2008, as from time to time amended;

(d) "by-laws" means these general by-laws and any other by-law of the Company
from time to time in force and effect;

(e) words importing the singular number shall include the plural and vice versa;
words importing the masculine gender shall include the feminine and neuter
genders and vice-versa; words importing persons shall include bodies corporate,
corporations, companies, partnerships, syndicates, trusts and any number or
aggregateof individuals;

(f) the headings used in the by-laws are inserted for reference purposes only and are
not to be considered or taken into account in construing the terms or provisions
thereof or to be deemed in any way to clarify, modify or explain the effect of any
such terms or provisions; and

(g) all terms contained in the by-laws and which are defined in the Act shall have the
meanings given to such terms in the Act.

In the case of any conflict between the Act, the unanimous shareholder
agreement, if any, the articles and the by-laws of the Company, the Act shall prevail over the
unanimous shareholder agreement, the articles and the by-laws, the unanimous shareholder
agreement shall prevail over the articles and the by-laws and the articles shall prevail over the
by-laws.
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ARTICLE 2

SHAREHOLDERS

SECTION 2.1 ANNUAL MEETINGS Subject to the Act, the annual meeting of
sharcholders of the Company shall be held at such place, on such date and at such time as the
Board of Directors may determine from time to time, in or outside the Province of Québec.
Annual meetings of shareholders may be called at any time by order of the Board of Directors,
the Chairman of the Board or, provided they are directors of the Company, the President or any
Vice-President.

SECTION 2.2 SPECIAL GENERAL MEETINGS Subject to the Act, special general
meetings of shareholders shall be held at such place, in or outside the Province of Québec,on

such date and at such time as the Board of Directors may determine from time to time or at any
place where all the shareholders of the Company entitled to vote thereat are present in person or
represented by proxy or at such other place as all the shareholders of the Company shall approve
in writing.

Special general meetings of shareholders may be called at any time by
order of the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board or, provided they are directors of the
Company, the President or any Vicc-President.

SECTION 2.3 NOTICE OF MEETING Notice specifying the place, date, time and
purpose of any meeting of sharcholders shall be given to all the shareholders entitled thereto at

least 15 days prior to the date fixed for the meeting. The notice may be mailed, postage prepaid,
to the shareholders at their respective addressesas they appear on the books of the Company or
delivered by hand or transmitted by any means of telecommunication.

If the convening of a meeting of shareholders is a matter of urgency,
notice of such meeting may be given not less than 72 hours before such meeting is to be held.

In the caseof joint holders of a share or shares, the notice of meeting shall
be given to all of suchjoint holders but notice to one of such persons shall be sufficient notice to
all of them.

Irregularities in the notice or in the giving thereof as well as the
unintentional omission to give notice to, or the non-receipt of any such notice by, any of the
shareholders shall not invalidate any action taken by or at any such meeting. Furthermore, the
involuntary omission of the general nature of an item of business which should have been
mentioned in the notice of the meeting as being on the agenda of the meeting, does not prevent
such item of business from being considered and voted upon at the meeting, unless a shareholder
suffers prejudice or his interests are injured as a result. A certificate signed by the secretary or
any other duly authorized officer of the Company or any registrar or transfer agent for sharesof
the Company, shall constitute conclusive evidence of the expedition of a notice of meeting to the
shareholders and the shareholders shall be bound by such certificate.
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SECTION 2.4 CHAIRMAN The Chairman of the Board, or, in his absence, the
President, if he is a director, or, in his absence, one of the Vice-Presidents who is a director of
the Company (to be designated by the meeting in the event of more than one such Vice-President
being present) shall preside at all meetings of shareholders.

If all of the aforesaid officers be absent or decline to act, the persons
present and entitled to vote may choose one of their number to act as chairman of the meeting. In
the event of an equality of votes, the chairman of any meeting shall not be entitled to a casting
vote in respect of any matter submitted to the vote of the meeting.

SECTION 2.5 QUORUM, VOTING AND ADJOURNMENTS Holders of not less

than 51% of the outstanding sharesof the sharecapital of the Company carrying voting rights at
any meeting, present in person or represented by proxy, shall constitute a quorum for any
meeting of shareholdersof the Company.

The acts of the holders of a majority of the shares so present or
represented and carrying voting rights thereat shall be the acts of all the shareholders except as to
matters on which the vote or consent of the holders of a greater number of shares is required or
directed by the Act, the articles or the by-laws of the Company.

Should a quorum not be present at any meeting of shareholders, those
present in person and entitled to be counted for the purpose of forming a quorum shall have
power to adjourn the meeting from time to time and from place to place without notice other than

announcement at the meeting until a quorum shall be present. At any such adjourned meeting,
provided a quorum is present, any business may be transactedwhich might have been transacted
at the meeting adjourned.

SECTION 2.6 RIGIIT TO VOTE At all meetings of shareholders, each shareholder
present and entitled to vote thereat shall have on a show of hands one vote and,upon a poll, each
shareholder present in person or represented by proxy shall be entitled to one vote for each share
carrying voting rights registered in his name in the books of the Company unless, under the
terms of the articles of the Company some other scale of voting is fixed, in which event such
scaleof voting shallbe adopted.Any shareholderor proxy may demanda ballot (either beforeor
on the declaration of the result of a vote upon a show of hands) in respect of any matter

submitted to the vote of the shareholders. However, no shareholder in arrears in respect of any
call may vote at a shareholders'meeting.

In the case of joint holders of a share or shares, any one of the joint
holders present at a meeting of shareholders has the right, in the absence of the other or others, to

vote in respect of such share or shares, but if more than one of such persons are present or
represented by proxy and vote, they shall vote together as one on the share or shares jointly held
by them.
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SECTION 2.7 SCRUTINEERS The chairman at any meeting of shareholders may
appoint one or more persons, who need not be shareholders, to act as scrutineer or scrutineers at
the meeting.

SECTION 2.8 ADDRESSES OF SHAREHOLDERS Every shareholder shall furnish to
the Company an address to which all notices intended for such shareholder shall be given, failing
which, any such notice may be given to him at any other address appearing on the books of the
Company. If no address appears on the books of the Company, such notice may be sent to such
address as the person sending the notice may consider to be the most likely to result in such
notice promptly reaching such shareholder.

SECTION 2.9 RESOLUTION IN WRITING IN LIEU OF MEETING A resolution

in writing signed by all the shareholders entitled to vote on that resolution at a meeting of
shareholders is as valid as if it had been passed at a meeting of the shareholders.

A copy of every such resolution shall be kept with the minutes of the
meetings of shareholders. .

SECTION 2.10 PARTICIPATION BY TELEPHONE Subject to the Act, the
shareholders of the Company may participate and vote at a shareholders' meeting by any means
allowing all the participants to communicate with each other.

ARTICLE 3

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 3.1 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS AND TERM OF OFFICE Except as
herein otherwise provided, each director shall be elected at an annual meeting of shareholders or
at any special general meeting of shareholders called for that purpose, by a majority of the votes
cast in respect of such election. It shall not be necessary that the voting for the election of
directors of the Company be conducted by ballot unless voting by ballot is requested by a
shareholder or proxy. Each director so elected shall hold office until the election of his successor

unless he shall resign or his office become vacant by death, removal or by ceasing to be qualified
to act as a director.

SECTION 3.2 ACTS OF DIRECTORS All acts done by the directors or by any person
acting as a director, until their successors have been duly elected or appointed, shall,
notwithstanding that it be afterwards discovered that there was some defect in the election of the

directors or such person acting as aforesaid or that they or any of them were disqualified, be as
valid as if the directors or such other person, as the casemay be,had been duly elected and were
qualified to be directors of the Company.

SECTION 3.3 POWER TO ALLOT STOCK AND GRANT OPTIONS Subject to the
provisions of the articles of the Company, the shares of the Company shall be at all times under
the control of the directors who may by resolution, from time to time, accept subscriptions, allot,
issue, grant options in respect of or otherwise dispose of the whole, or any part of the unissued
sharesof the share capital of the Company on such terms and conditions, for such consideration
not contrary to the Act or to the articles of the Company and at such times prescribed in any
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resolutions. The directors may, from time to time, make calls upon the shareholders in respect of
any moneys unpaid upon their shares.Each shareholder shall pay the amount called on his shares
at the time and place fixed by the directors.

SECTION 3.4 POWER TO DECLARE DIVIDENDS The directors may from time to
time as they may deem advisable, declare and pay dividends, in species or in kind, out of any
funds or property available for dividends to the shareholders according to their respective rights
and interest therein.

Any dividend in specie may be paid by cheque made payable to and
mailed to the address on the books of the Company of the shareholder entitled thereto and in the

case of joint holders to that one of them whose name stands first in the books of the Company,
and the mailing of such cheque shall constitute payment unless the cheque is not paid upon
presentation.

The directors may provide that the amount of any dividend lawfully
declared shall be paid, in whole or in part, in fully paid and non-assessable sharesin the capital
stock of the Company.

Before declaring a dividend or a distribution of profits of the Company,
the directors may transfer such sums as they may in their discretion decide to one or several
reserve funds which may be used at the discretion of the directors for all purposes for which the
profits of the Company may be legally applied.

SECTION 3.5 PLACE OF MEETINGS AND NOTICES All meetings of the Board of
Directors shall be held at such place, on such date and at such time as may be determined from
time to time by the Board of Directors or at any place where all the directors are present.

Any meeting of the Board of Directors may be called at any time by or on
the order of the Chairman of the Board or, provided they are directors of the Company, the
President or any Vice-President or by any two directors.

Notice specifying the place, date and time of any meeting of the Board of
Directors shall be given to each of the directors, at least 48 hours prior to the date fixed for such
meeting. The notice may be mailed, postage prepaid, to each director at his residence or usual
place of business, or delivered by hand or transmitted by any means of telecommunication.

In any case where the convening of a meeting of directors is a matter of
urgency, notice of such meeting may be given not less than l hour before such meeting is to be
held.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Section 3.5, immediately
after the annual meeting of shareholders in each year, a meeting of such of the newly elected
directors as are then present shall be held, provided they shall constitute a quorum, without
further notice, for the election or appointment of officers of the Company and the transaction of
such other business as may come before them.
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The powers of the Board of Directors may be exercised at a meeting at
which a quorum is present and at which the questions shall be decided by a majority of votes cast
or by resolution in writing signed by all directors who would have been entitled to vote on that

resolution at a meeting of the Board of Directors. A copy of every such resolution shall be kept
with the minutes of the proceedings of the board of directors.

SECTION 3.6 CHAIRMAN The Chairman of the Board or, in his absence, the
President, if he is a director, or, in his absence, one of the Vice-Presidents who is a director of
the Company (to be designated by the meeting in the event of more than one such Vice-President
being present) shall preside at all meetings of the directors. If all of the aforesaid officers are
absent or decline to act, the directors present may choose one of their number to act as chairman

of the meeting. In the event of an equality of votes, the chairman of any meeting shall be entitled
to cast one vote as a director, but not a second or casting vote in respect of any matter submitted
to the vote of the meeting.

SECTION 3.7 OUORUM A majority of the directors in office shall constitute a quorum.

SECTION 3.8 ADJOURNMENT Any meeting of the board of directors may be
adjoumed from time to time by the chairman of the meeting, with the consent of the meeting, to
such time and place as he may fix. No notice of an adjourned meeting need be given to any
director. Any adjoumed meeting shall be duly constituted if held in accordance with the terms of
the adjoumment and a quorum is present thereat. The directors who formed a quorum at the
original meeting are not required to form the quorum at the adjoumed meeting. If there is no
4uorum present at the adjourned meeting, the original meeting shall be deemed to have
terminated forthwith after its adjoumment.

SECTION 3.9 VACANCIES AND RESIGNATION In the caseof a vacancy occurring
in the Board of Directors, the directors then in office, by the affirmative vote of a majority of
said remaining directors, so long as a quorum of the Board remains in office, may from time to
time and at any time fill such vacancy for the remainder of the term.

ARTICLE 4

COMMITTEES

SECTION 4.I COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD The Board of Directors may appoint
from their number one or more committees of the Board of Directors, however designated, and
delegate to any such committee any of the powers of the Board of Directors except those which
pertain to items which, under the Act, a committee of the Board of Directors has no authority to
exeróise.

SECTION 4.2 TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS The powers of a committee of the
Board of Directors may be exercised at a meeting at which a quorum is present or by resolution
in writing signed by all members of such committee wfio would have been entitled to vote on
that resolution at a meeting of the committee. Meetings of such committee may be held at such
place or places designated in Section 3.5.
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SECTION 4.3 ADVISORY BODIES The Board of Directors may from time to time
appoint such advisory bodies as it may deem advisable.

SECTION 4.4 PROCEDURE Unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors,
each committee and advisory body shall have power to fix its quorum at not less than a majority .
of its members, to elect its chairman, and to regulate its procedure.

SECTION 4.5 LIMITS ON AUTHORITY The Board of Directors may not delegate to
any committee the authority to:

(a) Submit to the shareholders any question or matter requiring the approval of the
shareholders;

. (b) Fill a vacancy among the directors or in the office of auditor or appoint or remove
any of the chief executive officer, however designated, the chief financial officer,
however designated, the chairman or the president of the Company;

(c) Issue securities except in the manner and on the terms authorized by the directors;

(d) Declare dividends;

(c) Purchase, redeem or otherwise acquire sharesissued by the Company;

(f) Approve a take-over bid circular, directors' circular, or issuer bid circular referred
to in the Securities Act (Québec);

(g) Approve any financial statements referred to in the Securities Act (Québec); or

(h) Adopt, amend or repeal by-laws;

ARTICLE 5

OFFICERS

SECTION 5.1 OFFICERS The directors shall elect or appoint a President, shall appoint
a Secretary and may also elect or appoint as officers a Chairman of the Board, one or more Vice-
Presidents, one or more Assistant-Secretaries, a Treasurer and one or more Assistant-Treasurers.

Such officers shall be elected or appointed at the first meeting of the Board of Directors after
each annual meeting of shareholders. There may also be appointed such other officers as the
Board of Directors may from time to time deem necessary. Such officers shall respectively
perform such duties in addition to those specified in the by-laws of the Company, as shall from
time to time be prescribed by the Board of Directors. The same person may hold more than one
office, provided, however, that the same person shall not hold the office of President and Vice-
President. None of such officers except the Chairman of the Board, need be a director of the
Company.
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SECTION 5.2 CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD The Chairman of the Board, if any,
shall preside at all meetings of directors and shareholders of the Company and he shall have such
other powers and duties as the Board of Directors may determine from time to time.

SECTION 5.3 PRESIDENT The President shall be the chief executive officer of the
Company and shall exercise a general control of and supervision over its affairs. He shall have
such other powers and duties as the Board of Directors may determine from time to time.

SECTION 5.4 VICE-PRESIDENT OR VICE-PRESIDENTS The Vice-President or

Vice-Presidents shall have such powers and duties as may be determined by the Board of
Directors from time to time. In case of the absence, disability, refusal or omission to act of the

President, a Vice-President designated by the directors may exercise the powers and perform the
duties of the President and,if such Vice-President exercises any of the powers or performs any
of the duties of the President, the absence, disability, refusal or omission to act of the President
shall be presumed.

SECTION 5.5 TREASURER AND ASSISTANT-TREASURERS The Treasurer shall
have general charge of the finances of the Company. He shall render to the Board of Directors,
whenever directed by the Board and as soon as possible after the close of each financial year, an
account of the financial condition of the Company and of all his transactions as Treasurer. He
shall have charge and custody of and be responsible for the keeping of the books of account
required under the laws governing the Company.He shall perform all the acts incidental to the
office of Treasurer or as may be determined by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Assistant-Treasurers shall perform any of the duties of the Treasurer
delegated to them from time to time by the Board of Directors or by the Treasurer.

SECTION 5.6 SECRETARY AND ASSISTANT-SECRETARIES The Secretary shall
attend to the giving of all notices of the Company and shall keep the records of all meetings and
resolutions of the shareholders and of the Board of Directors in a book to be kept for that
purpose. He shall keep in safe custody the seal of the Company, if any.He shall have charge of
the books containing the names and addressesof the shareholders and directors of the Company
and such other books and papers as the Board of Directors may direct. He shall perform such
other duties incidental to his office or as may be required by the Board of Directors from time to
time.

Assistant-Secretaries shall perform any of the duties of the Secretary
delegated to them froin time to time by the Board of Directors or by the Secretary.

SECTION 5.7 SECRETARY-TREASURER Whenever the Secretary shall also be the
Treasurer he may, at the option of the Board of Directors, be designated the "Secretary-
Treasurer".

SECTION 5.8 REMOVAL The Board of Directors may, subject to the law and the
provisions of any contract, remove and discharge any officer of the Company at any meeting
called for that purpose and may elect or appoint any other person in such officer's stead.
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ARTICLE 6

SHARE CAPITAL

SECTION 6.1 SHARE CERTIFICATES Certificates representing shares of the share
capital of the Company shall be approved by the Board of Directors.Sharecertificates shall bear
the signatures of two directors or two officers of the Company or of one director and one officer
of the Company.

SECTION 6.2 TRANSFER OF SIIARES A register of transfers containing the date and
particulars of all transfers of sharesof the share capital of the Company shall be kept either at the
head office or at such other office of the Company or at such other place in the Province of
Québec as may be determined, from time to time, by resolution of the Board of Directors. One or

more branch registers of transfers may be kept at any office of the Company or any other place
within the Province of Québec or elsewhere as may from time to time be determined by
resolution of the Board of Directors.

The date and particulars of all transfers of shares contained in a branch

register of transfers must also be entered in the register of transfers. Such register of transfers and
branch registers of transfers shall be kept by the Secretary or by such other officer or officers as
may be specially charged with this duty or by such agent or agents as may be appointed from
time to time for that purpose by resolution of the Board of Directors.

Registration of a transfer of shares of the capital of the Company in the
register of transfers shall constitute a complete and valid transfer. Subject to any provision to the
contrary contained in the Act, no transfer of sharesof the capital of the Company shall be valid
for any purpose until entry thereof is duly made in the register of transfers or in a branch register
of transfers. The directors may refuse to register any transfer of shares belonging to any
shareholder who is indebted to the Company. A share may not be transferred without the
consent of the directors if its price has not been fully paid. No shareshall be transferable until all
calls payable thereon up to the time of transfer have been fully paid.

Entry of the transfer of anyshare of the sharecapitalof the Companymay
be made in the register of transfers or in a branch register of transfers regardless of where the
certificate representing the share to be transferred shall have been issued.

• If the shares of the share capital of the Company to be transferred are
represented by a certificate, the transfer of such shares shall not be entered in the register of
transfers or the branch register of transfers unless or until the certificate representing the shares
to be transferred has been duly endorsed and surrendered for cancellation. If no certificate has
been issued by the Company in respect of such share, the transfer of such shares shall not be

entered in the register of transfers or the branch register of transfers unless and until a duly
executed sharetransfer power in respect thereof has been presented for registration.

SECTION 6.3 TRANSFER AGENTS AND REGISTRARS The Board of Directors

may appoint or remove from time to time transfer agentsor registrars of transfers of sharesof the
share capital of the Company and,subject to the laws governing the Company, make regulations
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generally, from time to time, with reference to the transfer of the sharesof the share capital of the
Company. Upon any such appointment being made, all certificates representing shares of the
share capital of the Company thereafter issued shall be countersigned by one of such transfer

agentsor one of such registrars of transfers and shall not be valid unless so countersigned.

SECTION 6.4 REPLACEMENT OF CERTIFICATES. Where a shareholder declares
under oath to the Company or the registrar, a branch registrar, transfer agent or a branch transfer
agent of the Company, that the share certificate which he held has been destroyed, stolen or lost,
and describes the circumstances under which this occurred, and provides, if so required, a bond
against any loss for which the Company may be held responsible with regard to the issue of a
new certificate, the president, or vice-president, the secretary or the treasurer, may issue a new
certificate in replacement of the one which has been destroyed, stolen or lost.

ARTICLE 7

FINANCIAL YEAR

The financial year of the Company shall end on December 31 in eachyear.
Such date may, however, be changed from time to time by resolution of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE 8

CONTRACTS

* All contracts, deeds, agreements, documents, bonds, debentures and other
instruments requiring execution by the Company may be signed by two directors or two officers

of the Company or by one director and one officer of the Company or by such persons as the
Board of Directors may otherwise authorize from time to time by resolution. Any such
authorization may be general or confined to specific instances. Save as aforesaid or as otherwise

provided in the by-laws of the Company, no director, officer, agent or employee shall have any
power or authority to bind the Company under any contract or obligation or to pledge its credit.

The Company may transact business with one or more of its directors or
with any firm of which one or more of its directors are members or employees or with any
corporation or association of which one or more of its directors are shareholders, directors,
officers or employees. The director who hasan interest in such transaction shall disclose it to the
Company and to the other directors making a decision in respect of such transaction and shall
abstain from discussing and voting on the question except if his vote is required to bind the
Company in respect of such transaction.

ARTICLE 9

DECLARATIONS

Any director or offi'cer of the Company or any other person nominated for
that purpose by any director or officer of the Company is authorized and empowered to give
instructions to an attorney to appear and make answer for and on behalf and in the name of the

Company to all writs, orders and interrogatories upon articulated facts issued out of any court
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and to declare for and on behalf and in the name of the Company any answer to writs of
attachment by way of garnishment in which the Company is garnishee. Any director, officer or
person so nominated is authorized and empowered to make all affidavits and sworn declarations
in connection therewith or in connection with any and all judicial proceedings to which the
Company is a party and to instruct an attomey to make demandsof abandonment or petitions for
winding-up or bankruptcy orders upon any debtor of the Company and to attend and vote at all
meetings of creditors of the Company's debtors and grant proxies in connection therewith. Any
such director, officer or person is authorized to appoint by general or special power or powers of
attorney any person or persons, including any person other than those directors, officers and
persons hereinbefore mentioned, as attorney or attorneys of the Company to do any of the
foregoing things.

ARTICLE 10

DIVISIONS

The Board of Directors may cause the business and operations of the

Company or any part thereof to be divided or segregated into one or more divisions upon such
. basis, including without limitation, character or type of businesses or operations, geographical
territories, product lines or goods or services as the Board of Directors may consider appropriate
in each case.

From time to time the Board of Directors or, if authorized by the Board of
Directors, the chief executive officer may authorize, upon such basis as may be considered
appropriate in eachcase:

(a) Sub-Division and Consolidation. The further division of the business and
operations of any such division into sub-units and the consolidation of the
business and operations of any such divisions and sub-units;

(b) Name.The designation of any such division or sub-unit by, and the carrying on of
the business and operations of any such division or sub-unit under, a name other
than the name of the Company; provided that the Company shall set out its name
in legible characters in all contracts, invoices, negotiable instruments and orders
for goods or services issued or made by or on behalf of the Company; and

(c) Officers. The appointment of officers for any such division or sub-unit, the
determination of their powers and duties, and the removal of any such officer so .

appointed without prejudice to such oflicer's rights under any employment
contract or in law, provided that any such officers shall not, as such, be officers of
the Company, unless expressly designated as such.

For greater certainty, there will be a division of the Company which
focuses primarily on market regulation created to oversee the Company's regulatory functions
and operations, and such division will be subject to supervision by a special committee
designated by the Board of Directors, the division being subject to the ultimate authority of the
Board of Directors and of the Autorité des marchésfinanciers. More than 50% of the members
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of such committee shall be independent members based on the standardsset forth in the Board of
Directors Independence Standards of the Company.

Such division will be established on a financially separate basis from the

other operations of the Company, may charge for its services, and may provide, with the prior
consent of the Autorité des marchés financiers, regulatory services to other exchanges, self-
regulatory organizations, trading facilities and/or other persons.

ARTICLE 11

INDEMNIFICATION

(a) To the extent permitted by law, every current or former director, officer,
employee or committee member of the Company and any of its subsidiaries and
his or her heirs, executors, and administrators, legal representatives and estate
(each, an "Indemnitee") shall from time to time, and at all times, be indemnified
and savedharmless out of the funds of the Company from and against

(i) all costs, charges and expenses (including an amount paid to settle an
action or satisfy a judgment and including legal and professional fees and
out of pocket expenses of attending trials, hearings and meetings)
whatsoever that such Indemnitee sustainsor incurs in or about any action,
suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal or administrative, and including
any investigation, inquiry or hearing, or any appeal therefrom, that is
threatened, brought, commenced or prosecuted against him, or in respect
of which he is compelled or requested by the Company to participate, for
or in respect of any act, deed, matter or thing whatsoever made,done or
permitted by him in or about the execution of the duties of his office as

they relate to the Company or any of its subsidiaries, including those
duties executed, whether in an official capacity or not, for or on behalf of
or in relation to any body corporate or entity which he serves or served at
the request of or on behalf of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

(ii) all other costs, charges and expenses that he sustains or incuis in or about

or in relation to the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries or any
body corporate or entity which he serves or served, whether in an official
capacity or not, at the request of or on behalf of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries;

except such costs, charges or expenses as are occasioned by his own wilful
neglect or default.

(b) Any indemnification hereunder (unless ordered by a court) shall be made by the
Company unless a determination is reasonably and promptly made by the Board
of Directors by a majority vote of a quorum of disinterested directors, or (if such
quorum is not obtainable or, even if obtainable, a quorum of disinterested
directors so directs) by independent legal counsel in a written opinion, that, based
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upon the facts known to the board or counsel at the time such determination is
made, such Indemnitec is not entitled to indemnification by reason of his own
wilful neglect or default.

(c) For greater certainty, it is confirmed that, to the extent permitted by law, the
Company shall indemnify all costs and expenses incurred in connection with any
action, suit, or proceeding contemplated herein, regardless of whether the
indemnitee has been successful or substantially successful on the merits, and
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, such Indemnitee shall be
indemnified against all expenses in connection with the dismissal of such action
or issue without prejudice or in connection with the settlement of such action or
issue without admission ofliability.

(d) To the extent permitted by law, and subject to subsection (e), below, all costs,
charges and expenses indemnified (including legal and professional fees and
including out of pocket expenses for attendance at trials, hearing and meetings)
shall be paid by the Company in advance of the final disposition of the matter,
provided that the Indemnitec shall undertake to repay such amount in the event

that it is ultimately determined, either pursuant hereto or by a court of competent
jurisdiction, that such Indemnitee is not entitled to indemnification.

(e). Any costs, charges or expenses(including legal and professional fees and out of
pocket expenses of attending trials, hearings and meetings) incurred or to be
incurred in any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal or

administrative, including any investigation, inquiry or hearing, or any appeal
therefrom, shall be paid by the Company promptly, and in any event, within
ninety days after receiving the written request of the Indemnitee, unless a
determination is reasonably and promptly made by the Board of Directors under
subsection (b) that such indemnitee is not entitled to indemnification or to an *
advancement of expenses.

(i) Any person entitled to indemnification hereunder or otherwise shall give notice to
the Company,where practical,of any action,suit or proceeding which may give
rise to a demand for indemnification.

(g) Any person entitled to and demanding indemnification, hereunder or otherwise,
shall cooperate.with the Company throughout the course of any action, suit or
proceeding, whether civil, criminal or administrative, including any investigation,
inquiry or hearing, to the fullest extent possible, including but not limited to,
providing the Company with the consent and authority, to be exercised at the sole
option of the Company, to take carriage of such person's defense.
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(h) The foregoing rights of indemnification and advancement of expenses shall not
affect any other rights to indemnification or be exclusive of any other rights to
which any person may be entitled by law or otherwise.

ARTICLE 12

RULES AND POLICIES

The Board of Directors or any committee appointed by it may from time
to time enact, amend, repeal and re-enact such rules, policies, guidelines, decisions, rulings,
orders, instructions and directions (collectively, the "Rules and Policies") not inconsistent with
the Securities Act (Québec)as it in its discretion may consider advisable for the regulation of the
use of the facilities and products of the Company, approved participants; individuals, listed
companies and other entities over which the Company hasjurisdiction.

The Board of Directors or any committee appointed by it may also issue,
establish, adopt, amend, repeal and re-issue, re-establish and re-adopt interpretations, procedures
and practices to supplement such Rules andPolicies.

Such Rules and Policies may represent the imposition of requirements in
addition to or more stringent than those imposed under the Securities Act (Québec) or by the
Autorité des marchésfinanciers, shall be binding on approved participants, listed companies and
other entities, as applicable, and may be adopted to, among other things, enhance the credibility
and reputation of the Company as a well-regulated market.

Such Rules and Policies shall be effective without the shareholders',
approved participants' or listed companies' approval, except as expressly otherwise provided
therein, but may be subject to prior review and approval or non-disapproval by the Autorité des
marchésfinanciers.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Rules and Policies may
deal with all matters related to market regulation, including without limitation:

(a) the financial affairs, partnership and/or corporate arrangements, business
relationships, operations, and standards of practice and business conduct
applicable to approved participants (and their current and former partners,
shareholders, associates, insiders, directors, officers, employees, agents and
representatives) in respect of their overall equity trading operations and market
activities, both through the Company's facilities and generally;

(b) requirements applicable to or in respect of derivative products;

(c) requirements applicable to or in respectof the securitics of listed companies;

(d) compliance reviews, examinations and investigations, and enforcement and
disciplinary matters;
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(e) trading ethics, trading rules, trading currencies, clearing and settlement and
market surveillance matters;

(f) the provision of information, cooperation and/or assistance;

(g) the payment of fees,costs, forfeitures, penalties, fines and/or other amounts;

(h) hearing practices, where applicable; and

(i) the requirements and procedures applicable to becoming an approved participant
(or a partner, shareholder, associate, insider, director, officer, employee, agent or
representative of an approved participant) or a listed company (or a partner,
insider, director or officer of a listed company).

ARTICLE 13

VARIOUS

SECTION 13.1 Exchange of Information, Agreements To the extent permitted by law,
the Company may provide to domestic or foreign exchanges or self-regulatory organizations or
domestic or foreign securities enforcement or securities regulatory authorities information and
other forms of assistance for market surveillance, investigative, enforcement and other regulatory
purposes.

The Company may enter into agreements with domestic or foreign
exchanges or self-regulatory organizations or domestic or foreign securities enforcement or
securities regulatory authorities providing for the exchange of information and other forms of

mutual assistance for market surveillance, investigative, enforcement and other regulatory
purposes.

SECTION 13.2 Approved Participant Agreements, Listed Company Agreements, etc.
In the discretion of the Company, approved participants may be required to enter into an
Approved Participant Agreement with the Company in order to obtain access to the Company's
facilities. Approved participants shall not by virtue thereof have any ownership or voting interest
in the Company, and shall be approved participants solely by virtue of their contractual
arrangements with the Company. Approved participants shall not, as such, be liable for any act,
default, obligation or liability of the Company.

In addition, in the discretion of the Company, listed companies and other
Personsmay be required to enter into agreementswith the Company.
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ARTICLE 14

BORROWING

The directors of the Company are hereby authorized, whenever they deem appropriate:

(a) to borrow money and obtain advancesupon the credit of the Company, from any
bank, corporation, firm, association or person, upon such terms, covenants and
conditions, at such time, in such sums, to such an extent and in such manner as
the Board of Directors in its discretion may deem expedient;

(b) to limit or increase the amount to be borrowed;

(c) to issue or cause to be issued bonds or other evidences of indebtedness of the

Company and to pledge or sell the same for such sums, upon such terms,
covenants and conditions and at such prices as may be deemed expedient by the
Board of Directors;

(d) to hypothecate the property, undertaking and assets,movable or immovable, now
owned or hereaner acquired, of the Company, to secure payment of any such
bonds or other evidences of indebtedness,or give part only of such guarantee for
such purposes;

(c) to hypothecate or otherwise encumber the property, undertaking and assets,
movable or immovable, now owned or hereaner acquired, of the Company, or
give all such guarantees, to secure the payment of loans made otherwise than by
the issue of bonds or other evidences of indebtedness, as well as the payment or
performance of any other debt, contract and obligation of the Company;

(f) as security for any discounts, overdrans, loans, credits, advances or other
indebtedness or liability of the Company, to any bank, corporation, firm or
person, and interest thereon, to hypothecate and give to any bank, corporation,
firm or person any or all of the Company property, undertaking and assets,
movable or immovable, now owned or hereafter acquired, and to give such
security thereon as may be taken by a bank under the provisions of the Bank Act,
and to renew, alter, vary or substitute such security from time to time, with
authority to enter into promises to give security under the Bank Act for any
indebtedness contracted or to be contracted by the Company to any bank;

(g) to delegate to such officer(s) or director(s) of the Company as the directors may
designate all or any of the foregoing powers to such extent and in such manner as
the directors may determine.

AND the powers of borrowing and giving security hereby authorized shall
be deemed to be continuing powers and not to be exhausted by the first exercise thereof, but may
be exercised from time to time hereafter, until the repeal of this by-law and notice thereof has
been given in writing.
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ENACTED on May 1,2008

Witness the signatures of the President

and the Secretary of the Company.

President

Secretary
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SRV 080774481 - 45 Ery2 CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

OF
MX US 1,INC.

FIRST: The name of the corporation is:

MX US 1,Inc.

SECOND: The address of its' registered office in the State of Delaware is 2711
Centerville Road,Suite 400,in the City of Wilmington, County of New Castle,19808.The name
of its registered agent at such addressis Corporation Service Company.

THIRD: The purpose of the corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for
which corporations may be organized under the General Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware (the "DGCL").

FOURTH: The total number of sharesof capital stock which the corporation shall have
authority to issue is three thousand (3,000) shares,and the par value of each of suchsharesis one
cent($0.01),amounting in the aggregateto thirty dollars ($30.00)of capital stock.

FIFTH: The name andmailing addressof the solé incorporator is asfollows:

NAME MAILING ADDRESS

Kathrine J.IzBlanc c/oBingham McCutchen LLP
One Federal Street

Boston, MA 02110

SIXTH: The following provisions are inserted for the management of the business and
for the conduct of the affairs of the corporàtion andfor defining and regulating the powers of the
corporation and its directors and stockholders and are in furtherance and not in limitation of the
powersconferred upon thecorporation by statute:

(a) The election of directors need not beby written ballot.

(b) The boardof directors shall have the power and authority:

(1) to adopt,amend or repealbylaws of the corporation, subject only to such
limitation, if any, as may be from time to time imposedby law or by the
bylaws;

(2) to the full extent permitted or not prohibited by law, and without the
consent of or other action by the stockholders,to authorize or create
mortgages,pledges or other liensor encumbrancesupon any or all of the
assets,Ital, personal or mixed, and franchises of the corporation,
including after-acquired property, andto exercise all of the powers of the

corporation in connection therewith; and

(3) subject to any provision of the bylaws of the corporation, to determine
whether, to what extent, at what times and places and under what
conditions and regulations the accounts, books and papers of the

Af/2542804.2
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corporation (other than the stock ledger),or any of them,shall be opento
the inspection of the stockholders,andno stockholder shall have any
right to inspect any account,book or paper of the corporation except as
conferred by statuteor authorizedby the bylaws of the corporation or by
the boardof directors.

SBVENTH: No director of the corporation shallbepersonally liable to the corporation or
to any of its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director,
notwithstanding any provision of law imposing such liability; provided.however, that to the
extent required from time to time by applicable law, this Article Seventh shall not eliminate or
limit the liability of a director,to the extent such liability is provided by applicable law, (i) for
any breach of the director's duty of loyalty-to the corporation or its stockholders, (ii) for acts or
omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of
law, (iii) under Section 174of Title 8 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Deiaware,
or (iv) for any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit. No
amendmentto or repeal of this Article Seventhshall apply to or have any effect on the liability or

alleged liability of any director for or with respect to any acts or omissions of suchdirector
occurring prior to the effective date of suchamendment or repeal.

ElGHTH: The Company will indemnify each director of the Company, his heirs,
executors, and administrators, and may indemnify each officer, employee, and agent of the
Company,such director's heirs, executors, administrators, and all other persons whom the
Company is authorized to indemnify under the provisions of the DGCL, to the maximum extent

permitted by law (a) against all expenses (including attorney's fees), judgments, fines, and
amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by such director in connection with
any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, or in
connection with any appeal therein, or otherwise, and (b) against all expenses (inciuding
attorney's fees) actually and reasonably incurred by suchdirector in connection with the'defense
or settlement of any action or suit by or in the right of the Company,or in connection with any
appeal therein, or otherwise; and no provision of this Article Eighth is intended to be construedas
limiting, prohibiting, denying or abrogating any of the general or specific powers or rights
conferred by the DGCL upon the Company to furnish, or upon any court to award, such
indemnification, or indemnification as otherwise authorized pursuant to the DGCL or any other
law now orhereafter in effect.

The Company'sBoardof Diredbrs may in its discretion authorize the Company to

purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director,officer,
employee or agent of the Company,or is or was serving at the request of the Company as a
director,officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or
other enterprise against any fiability assertedagainstsuchPerson or incurred by such Person in
any such capacity, or arising out of such Person's status as such,whether or not the Company
would have the power to indemnify such Person against such liability under the foregoing
paragraphof this Article Eighth.

NINTH: Subject to such limitations as may be from time to time imposed by other

provisions of this Certificate of Incorporation, by the bylaws of the Company, by applicable
statutory or other law,or by any contract or agreement to which the Company is or may become
party, the Company reserves the right to amend or repeal any provision contained in this
Certificate of Incorporation,in the menner now or hereafter prescribedby statute, and all rights
conferred upon stockholders herein are grantedsubject to this expressreservation.

N72542804.2
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THE UNDERSIGNED,being the sole incorporator bereinbefore named, for the purpose

of forming a corporation pursuant to the General Corporation Law of the Stateof Delaware, does
make this certificate, hemby declaring and certifying that this is my act and deed and the facts
stated herein aretrue, and accordingly havehereunto set my handthis 10th day of July,2008.

/s/ Kathrige MBlanc
Kathrine J.LeBianc
Sole incorporator
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CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF

MX US 1,INC.

FIRST: The name of the corporation is:

MXUS1,Inc.

SECOND: The address of its registered office in the State of Delaware is 2711
Centerville Road,Suite 400, in the City of Wilmington, County of New Castle, 19808. The name
of its registered agent at suchaddress is Corporation Service Company.

THIRD: The purpose of the corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for
which corporations may be organized under the General Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware (the "DGCL").

FOURTH: The total number of shares of capital stock which the corporation shall have

authority to issue is three thousand (3,000)shares, and the par value of each of such shares is one
cent ($0.01),amounting in the aggregate to thirty dollars ($30.00)of capital stock.

FIFTH: The name and mailing addressofthe sole incorporator is as follows:

NAME MAILING ADDRESS

Kathrine J.LeBlanc clo Bingham McCutchen LLP
One Federal Street

Boston, MA 02110

SIXTH: The following provisionsare inserted for the management of the business and
for the conduct of the affairs of the corporation and for defining and regulating the powers of the

corporation and its directors and stockholders and are in furtherance and not in limitation of the
powers conferred upon the corporation by statute:

(a) The election of directors need not beby written ballot.

(b) The board of directors shall have the power and authority:

(1) to adopt,amend or repeal bylaws of the corporation, subject only to such
limitation, if any,as may be from time to time imposed by law or by the
bylaws;

(2) to the full extent permitted or not prohibited by law, and without the
consent of or other action by the stockholders, to authorize or create
mortgages,pledges or other liens or encumbrances upon any or all of the
assets, real, personal or mixed, and franchises of the corporation,
including after-acquired property, and to exercise all of the powers of the

corporation in connection therewith; and

(3) subject to any provision of the bylaws of the corporation, to determine
whether, to what extent, at what times and places and under what
conditions and regulations the accounts, books and papers of the

Art2542804 2
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corporation (other than the stock ledger), or any of them, shall be open to
the inspection of the stockholders, and no stockholder shall have any
right to inspect any account, book or paper of the corporation except as
conferred by statute or authorized by the bylaws of the corporation or by
the board of directors.

SEVENTH: No director of the corporation shall be personally liable to the corporation or
to any of its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director,
notwithstanding any provision of law imposing such liability; provided, however, that to the
extent required from time to time by applicable law, this Article Seventh shall not eliminate or
limit the liability of a director, to the extent such liability is provided by applicable law, (i) for
any breachof the director's duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders, (ii) for acts or
omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of
law, (iii) under Section 174of Title 8 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware,
or (iv) for any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit. No
amendment to or repeal of this Article Seventh shall apply to or have any effect on the liability or
alleged liability of any director for or with respect to any acts or omissions of such director
occurring prior to the effective date of such amendment or repeal.

EIGHTH: The Company will indemnify each director of the Company, his heirs,
executors, and administrators, and may indemnify each officer, employee, and agent of the
Company, such director's heirs, executors, administrators, and all other persons whom the

Company is authorized to indemnify under the provisions of the DGCL, to the maximum extent
permitted by law (a) against all expenses (including attorney's fees), judgments, fines, and
amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by such director in connection with
any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, or in
connection with any appeal therein, or otherwise, and (b) against all expenses (including
attorney's fees) actually and reasonably incurred by suchdirector in connection with the defense
or settlement of any action or suit by or in the right of the Company,or in connection with any
appeal therein, or otherwise; and no provision of this Article Eighth is intended to be construed as
limiting, prohibiting, denying or abrogating any of the general or specific powers or rights
conferred by the DGCL upon the Company to furnish, or upon any court to award, such
indemnification, or indemnification as otherwise authorized pursuant to the DGCL or any other
law now or hereafter in effect.

The Company's Board of Directors may in its discretion authorize the Company to

purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer,
employee or agent of the Company, or is or was serving at the request of the Company as a
director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation,partnership, joint venture, trust or
other enterprise against any liability asserted against such Person or incurred by such Person in
any such capacity, or arising out of such Person's status as such,whether or not the Company
would have the power to indemnify such Person against such liability under the foregoing
paragraph of this Article Eighth.

NINTH: Subject to such limitations as may be from time to time imposed by other
provisions of this Certificate of Incorporation, by the bylaws of the Company, by applicable
statutory or other law,or by any contract or agreement to which the Company is or maybecome
party, the Company reserves the right to amend or repeal any provision contained in this
Certificate of Incorporation, in the manner now or hereafter prescribed by statute, and all rights
conferred upon stockholders herein are granted subject to this express reservation.
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THE UNDERSIGNED, being the sole incorporator hereinbefore named, for the purpose

of forming a corporation pursuant to the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, does
make this certificate, hereby declaring and certifying that this is my act and deed and the facts
stated herein are true, and accordingly have hereunto set my handthis 10th day of July,2008.

Kathrine J.LeBlanc
Sole Incorporator
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MXUS1,INC.

STATEMENT OF ORGANIZATION OF THE INCORPORATOR

July 10,2008

The undersigned, being the sole incorporator of MX US 1, Inc.,a Delaware
corporation (the "Corporation"), hereby certifies pursuant to Section 108 of the General
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware that:

1. The Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation was filed with the
Secretaryof State of the State of Delaware on July 10,2008 and is being recorded in the
office of the Recorder of New Castle County, Delaware.

2. The bylaws annexed hereto have been adoptedby me as the bylaws of the
Corporation.

3. That Joëlle Saint-Arnault has been elected by me as the sole Director of
the Corporation, to hold office until the first annual meeting of stockholders anduntil her
successorhas been duly elected and qualified.

e J.LeBlanc

A/725428132

BOX ExchangeLLC Exhibit C-3 Page 8



C MXUS1,INC.
BYLAWS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article I. - General. ..........................................................................................1
1.1.Offices............................................................................................1
1.2.Se3l.................................................................................................1
1.3.Fiscal Year.....................................................................................1

Article II. - Stockholders..................................................................................1
2.1.Place of Meetings...........................................................................1
2.2.Annual Meeting.............................................................................1
2.3.Quorum..........................................................................................1
2.4.Right to Vote; Proxies....................................................................2
2.5.Voting.............................................................................................2
2.6.Notice of Annual Meetings............................................................3
2.7.Stockholders' List..........................................................................3
2.8.Special Meetings............................................................................3
2.9.Notice of Special Meetings............................................................3
2.10.Inspectors.....................................................................................4
2.11. Stockholders' Consent in Lieu of Meeting..................................4

Article III. - Directors. .....................................................................................5
3.1.Number of Directors......................................................................5
3.2.Change in Number of Directors; Vacancies. ................................6
3.3. Resignation....................................................................................6
3.4.Removal.........................................................................................6
3.5.Place of Meetings and Books........................................................6
3.6.General Powers.............................................................................6
3.7.Executive Committee....................................................................6
3.8.Other Committees.........................................................................7
3.9.Powers Denied to Committees......................................................7
3.10.Substitute Committee Member. .................................................7
3.11.Compensation of Directors..........................................................8
3.12. Annual Meeting...........................................................................8
3.13. Regular Meetings. .......................................................................8
3.14.Special Meetings..........................................................................8
3.15.Quorum........................................................................................8
3.16.Telephonic Participation in Meetings........................................9
3.17. Action by Consent........................................................................9

Article IV. - Officers. ........................................................................................9
4.1.Selection; Statutory Officers.........................................................9

C 4.2.Time of Election.............................................................................9

M12542828.3

BOX ExchangeLLC Exhibit C-3 Page9



-ii-

C 4.3.Additional Officers. .......................................................................9
4.4.Terms of Office. .............................................................................9
4.5.Compensation of Officers..............................................................9
4.6.Chairman of the Board..................................................................10
4.7.President........................................................................................10
4.8.Vice-Presidents..............................................................................10
4.9.Treasurer.......................................................................................10
4.10.Secretary......................................................................................11
4.11.Assistant Secretary.....................................................................11
4.12.Assistant Treasurer.....................................................................11
4.13.Subordinate Officers. ..................................................................11

Article V. - Stock..............................................................................................12
5.1.Stock...............................................................................................12
5.2.Fractional Share Interests............................................................12
5.3.Transfers of Stock..........................................................................13
5.4.Record Date. ..................................................................................13
5.5.Transfer Agent and Registrar.......................................................13
5.6.Dividends.......................................................................................14
5.7.Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Certificates..........................................14
5.8.Inspection of Books........................................................................14

Article VI.- Miscellaneous Management Provisions......................................14
6.1.Checks, Drafts and Notes. ............................................................14
6.2.Notices...........................................................................................15
6.3.Conflict of Interest.........................................................................15
6.4.Voting of Securities owned by this Corporation...........................16

Article VII. - Indemnification..........................................................................16
7.1.Right to Indemnification...............................................................16
7.2.Right of Indemnitee to Bring Suit................................................17
7.3.Non-Exclusivity of Rights. ............................................................18
7.4.Insurance.......................................................................................18
7.5.Indemnification of Employees and Agents of the
Corporation............................................................................................18

Article VIII. - Amendments.............................................................................18
8.1.Amendments..................................................................................18

A/72542828.3

BOX ExchangeLLC Exhibit C-3 Page10



MXUS1,INC.

BYLAWS

Article 1.- General.

1.1.Offices. The registered office shall be in the City of Wilmington,
County of New Castle, State of Delaware. The Corporation may also have
offices at such other places both within and without the State of Delaware as
the Board of Directors may from time to time determine or the business of the
Corporation may require.

1.2.Seal. The seal of the Corporation, if any, shall be in the form of a
circle and shall have inscribed thereon the name of the Corporation, the year

of its organization and the words "Corporate Seal,Delaware".

1.3.Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be the
period from January through December.

Article 11.- Stockholders.

2.1.Place of Meetings. All meetings of the stockholders shall be
held at the office of the Corporation, except such meetings as the Board of
Directors expressly determine shall be held elsewhere or solely by means of
remote communication, in which cases meetings may be held upon notice as
hereinafter provided at such other place or places within or without the State
of Delaware or by remote communication as the Board of Directors shall have
determined and as shall be stated in such notice.

2.2.Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the stockholders shall
be held each year on such date and at such time as the Board of Directors
may determine. At each annual meeting, the stockholders entitled to vote
shall elect a Board of Directors by plurality vote by ballot and may transact

such other corporate business as may properly be brought before the meeting.
At the annual meeting, any business may be transacted, irrespective of
whether the notice calling such meeting shall have contained a reference

thereto, except where notice is required by law, the Certificate of
Incorporation of the Corporation (the "Certificate of Incorporation"), or these
bylaws.

2.3.Quorum. At all meetings of the stockholders the holders of a
majority of the stock issued and outstanding and entitled to vote thereat,
present in person or represented by proxy, shall constitute a quorum
requisite for the transaction of business except as otherwise provided by law,
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by the Certificate of Incorporation or by these bylaws. If, however, such
majority shall not be present or represented at any meeting of the
stockholders, the stockholders entitled to vote thereat, present in person or
by proxy, by a majority vote, shall have power to adjourn the meeting from
time to time without notice other than announcement at the meeting until

the requisite amount of voting stock shall be present. If the adjournment is
for more than thirty (30) days, or if after the adjournment a new record date
is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a notice of the adjourned meeting shall be
given to each stockholder of record entitled to vote at the meeting. At such
adjourned meeting, at which the requisite amount of voting stock shall be
represented, any business may be transacted which might have been
transacted if the meeting had been held as originally called.

2.4.Right to Vote; Proxies. Each holder of a share or shares of
capital stock of the Corporation having the right to vote at any meeting shall
be entitled to one vote for each such share of stock held by such holder. Any
stockholder entitled to vote at any meeting of stockholders may vote either in
person or by proxy, but no proxy which is dated more than three years prior
to the meeting at which it is offered shall confer the right to vote thereat
unless the proxy provides that it shall be effective for a longer period. A
proxy may be granted by a writing executed by the stockholder or his
authorized officer, director, employee or agent or by transmission or
authorization of transmission of a telegram, cablegram, or other means of
electronic transmission to the person who will be the holder of the proxy or to

a proxy solicitation firm, proxy support service organization or like agent
duly authorized by the person who will be the holder of the proxy to receive
such transmission, subject to the conditions set forth in Section 212 of the
Delaware General Corporation Law, as it may be amended from time to time
(the "Delaware GCL").

2.5.Voting. At all meetings of stockholders, except as otherwise
expressly provided for by statute, the Certificate of Incorporation or these
bylaws, (i) in all matters other than the election of directors, the affirmative
vote of a majority of shares present in person or by means of remote
communication or represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote on
such matter shall be the act of the stockholders and (ii) directors shall be
elected by a plurality of the votes of the shares present in person or by means
of remote communication or represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled
to vote on the election of directors. Except as otherwise expressly provided by
law, the Certificate of Incorporation or these bylaws, at all meetings of
stockholders the voting shall be by voice vote, but any stockholder qualified to
vote on the matter in question may demand a stock vote, by shares of stock,
upon such question, whereupon such stock vote shall be taken by ballot
which may be by electronic transmission by any stockholder present by
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means of remote communication, each of which shall state the name of the
stockholder voting and the number of shares voted by such stockholder, and,
if such ballot be cast by a proxy, it shall also state the name of the proxy.

2.6.Notice of Annual Meetings. Written notice of the annual

meeting of the stockholders, stating the time, the place, the means of remote
communication, if any, by which stockholders and proxy holders may be
deemed to be present in person and vote at such meeting, shall be sent not
less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the meeting. It shall
be the duty of every stockholder to furnish to the Secretary of the Corporation
or to the transfer agent, if any, of the class of stock owned by such
stockholder, his post-office address and to notify said Secretary or transfer
agent of any change therein.

2.7.Stockholders' List. A complete list of the stockholders entitled
to vote at any meeting of stockholders, arranged in alphabetical order and
showing the address of each stockholder, and the number of shares registered
in the name of each stockholder, shall be prepared by the Secretary and shall

be open to examination of any stockholder, for any purpose germane to the
meeting for a period of at least ten days before such meeting (i) on a
reasonably accessible electronic network, provided that the information
required to gain access to such list is provided with the notice of the meeting,
or (ii) during ordinary business hours at the principal office of the
corporation, and said list shall be open to examination during the whole time
of said meeting, at the place of said meeting, or, if the meeting held is by
remote communication, on a reasonably accessible electronic network and the
information required to access such list shall be provided with the notice of
the meeting.

2.8.Special Meetings. Special meetings of the stockholders for any
purposeor purposes,unless otherwise provided by statute, may be called by
the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board, if any, the President or

any Vice President.

2.9.Notice of Special Meetings. Written notice of a special meeting
of stockholders, stating the time, the place, the means of remote
communication, if any, by which stockholders and proxy holders may be
deemed to be present in person and vote at such meeting and the object
thereof, shall be sent not less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days
before such meeting, to each stockholder entitled to vote thereat, either in
paper form or electronic form pursuant to each stockholder's instructions on
record with the Corporation. No business may be transacted at such meeting
except that referred to in said notice, or in a supplemental notice given also
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in compliance with the provisions hereof, or such other business as may be
germane or supplementary to that stated in said notice or notices.

2.10.Inspectors.

1. One or more inspectors may be appointed by the Board of
Directors before or at any meeting of stockholders, or, if no such
appointment shall have been made, the presiding officer may make
such appointment at the meeting. At the meeting for which the
inspector or inspectors are appointed, he, she or they shall open and
close the polls, receive and take charge of the proxies and ballots, and
decide all questions touching on the qualifications of voters, the
validity of proxies and the acceptance and rejection of votes. If any
inspector previously appointed shall fail to attend or refuse or be
unable to serve, the presiding officer shall appoint an inspector in his

place.

2. At any time at which the Corporation has a class of voting
stock that is (i) listed on a national securities exchange, (ii) authorized

for quotation on an inter-dealer quotation system of a registered
national securities association, or (iii) held of record by more than

2,000 stockholders, the provisions of Section 231 of the Delaware GCL
with respect to inspectors of election and voting procedures shall apply,
in lieu of the provisions of paragraph (1) of this §2.10.

2.11.Stockholders' Consent in Lieu of Meeting. Unless
otherwise provided in the Certificate of Incorporation, any action required by
law to be taken at any annual or special meeting of stockholders of the

Corporation, or any action which may be taken at any annual or special
meeting of such stockholders, may be taken without a meeting, without prior
notice and without avote, if a consent or consents in writing, setting forth the
action so taken, shall be signed by the holders of outstanding stock having
not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to
authorize or take such action at a meeting at which all shares entitled to vote
thereon were present and voted and shall be delivered to the Corporation by
delivery to its registered office in the State of Delaware, its principal place of
business, or an officer or agent of the Corporation having custody of the book
in which proceedings of meetings of stockholders are recorded. Delivery
made to the Corporation's registered office shall be by hand or by certified or

registered mail, return receipt requested. Every written consent shall bear
the date of signature of each stockholder who signs the consent and no
written consent shall be effective to take the corporate action referred to
therein unless, within sixty days of the earliest dated consent delivered in the
manner required by this §2.11to the Corporation, written consents signed by
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a sufficient number of stockholders to take action are delivered to the
Corporation by delivery to its registered office in the State of Delaware, its
principal place of business, or an officer or agent of the Corporation having
custody of the book in which proceedings of meetings of stockholders are
recorded.

A telegram, cablegram or other electronic transmission consenting to
an action to be taken and transmitted by a stockholder or proxyholder, or by

a person or persons authorized to act for a stockholder or proxyholder, shall
be deemed to be written, signed and dated for the purposes of this section,

provided that any such telegram, cablegram or other electronic transmission
sets forth or is delivered with information from which the Corporation can
determine that the telegram, cablegram or other electronic transmission was
transmitted by the stockholder or proxyholder or by a person or persons
authorized to act for the stockholder or proxyholder and the date on which
such stockholder or proxyholder or authorized person or persons transmitted
such telegram, cablegram or electronic transmission. The date on which such
telegram, cablegram or electronic transmission is transmitted shall be
deemed to be the date on which such consent was signed. No consent given

by telegram, cablegram or other electronic transmission shall be deemed to
have been delivered until such consent is reproduced in paper form and until

such paper form shall be delivered to the Corporation by delivery to its
principal place of business or to an officer or agent of the Corporation having
custody of the book in which the proceedings of meetings of stockholders are
recorded. Any copy, facsimile or other reliable reproduction of a consent in
writing may be substituted or used in lieu of the original writing for any and
all purposes for which the original writing could be used, provided that such
copy, facsimile or other reproduction shall be a complete reproduction of the
entire original writing.

Prompt notice of the taking of the corporate action without a meeting

by less than unanimous written consent shall be given to those stockholders
who have not consented in writing.

Article 111.- Directors.

3.1.Number of Directors. Except as otherwise provided by law, the
Certificate of Incorporation or these bylaws, the property and business of the
Corporation shall be managed by or under the direction of a board of not less
than one nor more than thirteen directors. Within the limits specified, the
number of directors shall be determined by resolution of the Board of
Directors or by the stockholders at the annual meeting. Directors need not be
stockholders, residents of Delaware or citizens of the United States. The
directors shall be elected by ballot at the annual meeting of the stockholders
and each director shall be elected to serve until his successor shall be elected
and shall qualify or until his earlier resignation or removal; provided that in

M12542828.3
BOX ExchangeLLC Exhibit C-3 Page 15



-6-

the event of failure to hold such meeting or to hold such election at such
meeting, such election may be held at any special meeting of the stockholders
called for that purpose. If the office of any director becomes vacant by reason
of death, resignation, disqualification, removal, failure to elect, or otherwise,
the remaining directors, although more or less than a quorum, by a majority
vote of such remaining directors may elect a successor or successors who shall
hold office for the unexpired term.

3.2.Change in Number of Directors; Vacancies. The maximum
number of directors may be increased by an amendment to these bylaws
adopted by a majority vote of the Board of Directors or by a majority vote of
the capital stock having voting power, and if the number of directors is so
increased by action of the Board of Directors or of the stockholders or
otherwise, then the additional directors may be elected in the manner

provided above for the filling of vacancies in the Board of Directors or at the
annual meeting of stockholders or at a special meeting called for that
purpose.

3.3.Resignation. Any director of this Corporation may resign at any
time by giving notice in writing or by electronic transmission to the
Chairman of the Board, if any, the President or the Secretary of the
Corporation. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein,
at the time of receipt if no time is specified therein and at the time of
acceptance if the effectiveness of such resignation is conditioned upon its
acceptance. Unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such
resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

3.4.Removal. Any director or the entire Board of Directors may be
removed, with or without cause, by the holders of a majority of the shares
then entitled to vote at an election of directors.

3.5.Place of Meetings and Books. The Board of Directors may
hold their meetings and keep the books of the Corporation outside the State
of Delaware, at such places as they may from time to time determine.

3.6.General Powers. In addition to the powers and authority

expressly conferred upon them by these bylaws, the board may exercise all
such powers of the Corporation and do all such lawful acts and things as are
not by statute or by the Certificate of Incorporation or by these bylaws
directed or required to be exercised or done by the stockholders.

3.7.Executive Committee. There may be an executive committee of
one or more directors designated by resolution passed by a majority of the
whole board. The act of a majority of the members of such committee shall be
the act of the committee. Said committee may meet at stated times or on
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notice to all by any of their own number, and shall have and may exercise
those powers of the Board of Directors in the management of the business
affairs of the Company as are provided by law and may authorize the seal of
the Corporation to be affixed to all papers which may require it. Vacancies in
the membership of the committee shall be filled by the Board of Directors at a
regular meeting or at a special meeting called for that purpose.

3.8.Other Committees. The Board of Directors may also designate
one or more committees in addition to the executive committee, by resolution
or resolutions passed by a majority of the whole board; such committee or
committees shall consist of one or more directors of the Corporation, and to

the extent provided in the resolution or resolutions designating them, shall
have and may exercise specific powers of the Board of Directors in the
management of the business and affairs of the Corporation to the extent
permitted by statute and shall have power to authorize the seal of the
Corporation to be affixed to all papers which may require it. Such committee
or committees shall have such name or names as may be determined from
time to time by resolution adopted by the Board of Directors.

3.9.Powers Denied to Committees. Committees of the Board of
Directors shall not, in any event, have any power or authority to amend the
Certificate of Incorporation (except that a committee may, to the extent
authorized in the resolution or resolutions providing for the issuance of
shares adopted by the Board of Directors as provided in Section 151(a) of the
Delaware GCL, fix the designations and any of the preferences or rights of
such shares relating to dividends, redemption, dissolution, any distribution of
assets of the Corporation or the conversion into, or the exchange of such
shares for, shares of any other class or classes or any other series of the same
or any other class or classes of stock of the Corporation or fix the number of
shares of any series of stock or authorize the increase or decrease of the
shares of any series), adopt an agreement of merger or consolidation,
recommend to the stockholders the sale, lease or exchange of all or
substantially all of the Corporation's property and assets, recommend to the
stockholders a dissolution of the Corporation or a revocation of a dissolution
or to amend the bylaws of the Corporation. Further, no committee of the
Board of Directors shall have the power or authority to declare a dividend, to
authorize the issuance of stock or to adopt a certificate of ownership and
merger pursuant to Section 253 of the Delaware GCL,unless the resolution
or resolutions designating such committee expressly so provides.

3.10.Substitute Committee Member. In the absence or on the

disqualification of a member of a committee, the member or members thereof
present at any meeting and not disqualified from voting, whether or not he,

C she or they constitute a quorum, may unanimously appoint another member
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of the Board of Directors to act at the meeting in the place of such absent or
disqualified member. Any committee shall keep regular minutes of its
proceedings and report the same to the board as may be required by the
board.

3.11.Compensation of Directors. The Board of Directors shall
have the power to fix the compensation of directors and members of
committees of the Board. The directors may be paid their expenses, if any, of
attendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors and may be paid a fixed
sum for attendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors or a stated

salary as director. No such payment shall preclude any director from serving
the Corporation in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefor.
Members of special or standing committees may be allowed like
compensation for attending committee meetings.

3.12.Annual Meeting. The newly elected board may meet at such

place and time as shall be fixed and announced by the presiding officer at the
annual meeting of stockholders, for the purpose of organization or otherwise,
and no further notice of such meeting shall be necessary to the newly elected
directors in order legally to constitute the meeting, provided a quorum shall
be present, or they may meet at such place and time as shall be stated in a
notice given to such directors two (2) days prior to such meeting, or as shall
be fixed by the consent in writing of all the directors.

3.13.Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the board may be held
without notice at such time and place as shall from time to time be
determined by the board.

3.14.Special Meetings. Special meetings of the board may be called
by the Chairman of the Board, if any,or the President, on two (2) days notice
to each director, or such shorter period of time before the meeting as will
nonetheless be sufficient for the convenient assembly of the directors so
notified; special meetings shall be called by the Secretary in like manner and
on like notice, on the written request of two or more directors.

3.15.Quorum. At all meetings of the Board of Directors, a majority
of the total number of directors shall be necessary and sufficient to constitute

a quorum for the transaction of business, and the act of a majority of the
directors present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act
of the Board of Directors, except as may be otherwise specifically permitted or

provided by statute, or by the Certificate of Incorporation, or by these bylaws.
If at any meeting of the board there shall be less than a quorum present, a
majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a
quorum is obtained, and no further notice thereof need be given other than by
announcement at said meeting which shall be so adjourned.

h/72542828.3
BOX ExchangeLLC Exhibit C-3 Page 18



-9-

3.16.Telephonic Participation in Meetings. Members of the
Board of Directors or any committee designated by such board may

participate in a meeting of the board or committee by means of conference
telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all
persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and participation
in a meeting pursuant to this section shall constitute presence in person at
such meeting.

3.17.Action by Consent. Unless otherwise restricted by the
Certificate of Incorporation or these bylaws, any action required or permitted
to be taken at any meeting of the Board of Directors or of any committee
thereof may be taken without a meeting, if all members of the board or
committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in writing or by electronic
transmission and such consent is filed in paper form with the minutes of

proceedings of the board or committee.

Article IV.- Officers.

4.1.Selection; Statutory Officers. The officers of the Corporation
shall be chosen by the Board of Directors. There shall be a President, a
Secretary and a Treasurer, and there may be a Chairman of the Board of
Directors, one or more Vice Presidents, one or more Assistant Secretaries,
and one or more Assistant Treasurers, as the Board of Directors may elect.

Any number of offices may be held by the same person.

4.2.Time of Election. The officers above named shall be chosen by
the Board of Directors at its first meeting after each annual meeting of
stockholders. None of said officers need be a director.

4.3.Additional Officers. The board may appoint such other officers

and agents as it shall deem necessary, who shall hold their offices for such
terms and shall exercise such powers and perform such duties as shall be
determined from time to time by the board.

4.4.Terms of Office. Each officer of the Corporation shall hold office
until his successor is chosen and qualified, or until his earlier resignation or
removal. Any officer elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be
removed at any time by the Board of Directors.

4.5.Compensation of Officers. The Board of Directors shall have

power to fix the compensation of all officers of the Corporation. It may
authorize any officer, upon whom the power of appointing subordinate
officers may have been conferred, to fix the compensation of such subordinate
officers.
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4.6.Chairman of the Board. The Chairman of the Board of
Directors shall preside at all meetings of the stockholders and directors, and
shall have such other duties as may be assigned to the Chairman from time
to time by the Board of Directors.

4.7.President. Unless the Board of Directors otherwise determines,
the President shall be the chief executive officer and head of the Corporation.
Unless there is a Chairman of the Board, the President shall preside at all
meetings of directors and stockholders. Under the supervision of the Board of
Directors and of the executive committee, the President shall have the

general control and management of its business and affairs, subject, however,
to the right of the Board of Directors and of the executive committee to confer
any specific power, except such as may be by statute exclusively conferred on
the President, upon any other officer or officers of the Corporation. The
President shall perform and do all acts and things incident to the position of
President and such other duties as may be assigned to the Chairman from
time to time by the Board of Directors or the executive committee.

4.8.Vice-Presidents. The Vice-Presidents shall perform such of the
duties of the President on behalf of the Corporation as may be respectively
assigned to them from time to time by the Board of Directors or by the
executive committee or by the President. The Board of Directors or the
executive committee may designate one of the Vice-Presidents as the
Executive Vice-President, and in the absence or inability of the President to
act, such Executive Vice-President shall have and possess all of the powers
and discharge all of the duties of the President, subject to the control of the
board and of the executive committee.

4.9.Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have the care and custody of all
the funds and securities of the Corporation which may come into his hands as
Treasurer, and the power and authority to endorse checks,drafts and other
instruments for the payment of money for deposit or collection when
necessary or proper and to deposit the same to the credit of the Corporation
in such bank or banks or depository as the Board of Directors or the executive
committee, or the officers or agents to whom the Board of Directors or the
executive committee may delegate such authority, may designate, and the
Treasurer may endorse all commercial documents requiring endorsements for
or on behalf of the Corporation. The Treasurer may sign all receipts and
vouchers for the payments made to the Corporation. The Treasurer shall
render an account of his transactions to the Board of Directors or to the
executive committee as often as the board or the committee shall require the
same. The Treasurer shall enter regularly in the books to be kept by the
Treasurer for that purpose full and adequate account of all moneys received
and paid by the Treasurer on account of the Corporation. The Treasurer

A/72542828.3
BOX Exchange LLC Exhibit C-3 Page 20



-11-

C shall perform all acts incident to the position of Treasurer, subject to the
control of the Board of Directors and of the executive committee. The
Treasurer shall when requested, pursuant to vote of the Board of Directors
or the executive committee, give a bond to the Corporation conditioned for the
faithful performance of his duties, the expense of which bond shall be borne
by the Corporation.

4.10.Secretary. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all

meetings of the Board of Directors and of the stockholders; the Secretary
shall attend to the giving and serving of all notices of the Corporation.
Except as otherwise ordered by the Board of Directors or the executive
committee, the Secretary shall attest the seal of the Corporation upon all
contracts and instruments executed under such seal and shall affix the seal of
the Corporation thereto and to all certificates of shares of capital stock of the
Corporation. The Secretary shall have charge of the stock certificate book,
transfer book and stock ledger, and such other books and papers as the Board
of Directors or the executive committee may direct. The Secretary shall, in

general, perform all the duties of Secretary, subject to the control of the
Board of Directors and of the executive committee.

4.11.Assistant Secretary. The Board of Directors or any two of the
officers of the Corporation acting jointly may appoint or remove one or more
Assistant Secretaries of the Corporation. Any Assistant Secretary upon his

appointment shall perform such duties of the Secretary, and also any and all
such other duties as the executive committee or the Board of Directors or the
President or the Executive Vice-President or the Treasurer or the Secretary

may designate.

4.12.Assistant Treasurer. The Board of Directors or any two of the
officers of the Corporation acting jointly may appoint or remove one or more
Assistant Treasurers of the Corporation. Any Assistant Treasurer upon his

appointment shall perform such of the duties of the Treasurer, and also any
and all such other duties as the executive committee or the Board of Directors
or the President or the Executive Vice-President or the Treasurer or the
Secretary may designate.

4.13.Subordinate Officers. The Board of Directors may select such

subordinate officers as it may deem desirable. Each such officer shall hold
office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as the
Board of Directors may prescribe. The Board of Directors may, from time to
time, authorize any officer to appoint and remove subordinate officers and to

prescribe the powers and duties thereof.
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Article V.- Stock.

5.1.Stock. Each stockholder shall be entitled to a certificate or
certificates of stock of the Corporation in such form as the Board of Directors
may from time to time prescribe. The certificates of stock of the Corporation
shall be numbered and shall be entered in the books of the Corporation as

they are issued. They shall certify the holder's name and number and class
of shares and shall be signed by both of (i) either the Chairperson or Vice

Chairperson of the Board of Directors, or the President or Vice President, and
(ii) any one of the Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer or the Secretary or an
Assistant Secretary, and may, but need not, be sealed with the corporate seal
of the Corporation. If such certificate is countersigned (1) by a transfer agent
other than the Corporation or its employee, or, (2) by a registrar other than
the Corporation or its employee, the signature of the officers of the
Corporation and the corporate seal may be facsimiles. In case any officer or
officers who shall have signed, or whose facsimile signature or signatures
shall have been used on, any such certificate or certificates shall cease to be
such officer or officers of the Corporation, whether because of death,
resignation or otherwise, before such certificate or certificates shall have been
delivered by the Corporation, such certificate or certificates may nevertheless
be adopted by the Corporation and be issued and delivered as though the
person or persons who signed such certificate or certificates or whose
facsimile signature shall have been used thereon had not ceased to be such
officer or officers of the Corporation.

5.2.Fractional Share Interests. The Corporation may, but shall

not be required to, issue fractions of a share. If the Corporation does not
issue fractions of a share, it shall (i) arrange for the disposition of fractional
interests by those entitled thereto, (ii) pay in cash the fair value of fractions
of a share as of the time when those entitled to receive such fractions are
determined, or (iii) issue scrip or warrants in registered or bearer form which
shall entitle the holder to receive a certificate for a full share upon the
surrender of such scrip or warrants aggregating a full share. A certificate for
a fractional share shall, but scrip or warrants shall not unless otherwise

provided therein, entitle the holder to exercise voting rights, to receive
dividends thereon, and to participate in any of the assets of the Corporation
in the event of liquidation. The Board of Directors may cause scrip or
warrants to be issued subject to the conditions that they shall become void if
not exchanged for certificates representing full shares before a specified date,
or subject to the conditions that the shares for which scrip or -warrants are
exchangeable may be sold by the Corporation and the proceeds thereof
distributed to the holders of scrip or warrants, or subject to any other
conditions which the Board of Directors may impose.
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5.3.Transfers of Stock. Subject to any transfer restrictions then in

force, the shares of stock of the Corporation shall be transferable only upon
its books by the holders thereof in person or by their duly authorized
attorneys or legal representatives and upon such transfer the old certificates
shall be surrendered to the Corporation by the delivery thereof to the person
in charge of the stock and transfer books and ledgers or to such other person
as the directors may designate by whom they shall be cancelled and new
certificates shall thereupon be issued. The Corporation shall be entitled to
treat the holder of record of any share or shares of stock as the holder in fact
thereof and accordingly shall not be bound to recognize any equitable or other
claim to or interest in such share on the part of any other person whether or
not it shall have express or other notice thereof save as expressly provided by
the laws of Delaware.

5.4.Record Date. For the purpose of determining the stockholders
entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of stockholders or any

adjournment thereof, or to express consent to corporate action in writing
without a meeting, or entitled to receive payment of any dividend or other
distribution or the allotment of any rights, or entitled to exercise any rights
in respect of any change, conversion, or exchange of stock or for the purpose
of any other lawful action, the Board of Directors may fix, in advance, a
record date, which shall not be more than sixty (60) days nor less than ten
(10) days before the date of such meeting, nor more than sixty (60) days prior
to any other action. If no such record date is fixed by the Board of Directors,
the record date for determining stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at
a meeting of stockholders shall be at the close of business on the day next

preceding the day on which notice is given, or, if notice is waived, at the close
of business on the day next preceding the day on which the meeting is held;
the record date for determining stockholders entitled to express consent to
corporate action in writing without a meeting, when no prior action by the
Board of Directors is necessary, shall be the day on which the first written
consent is expressed; and the record date for determining stockholders for

any other purpose shall be at the close of business on the day on which the
Board of Directors adopts the resolution relating thereto. A determination of
stockholders of record entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of
stockholders shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting; provided,
however, that the Board of Directors may fix a new record date for the
adjourned meeting.

5.5.Transfer Agent and Registrar. The Board of Directors may

appoint one or more transfer agents or transfer clerks and one or more
registrars and may require all certificates of stock to bear the signature or
signatures of any of them.

Fl2542828.3
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5.6.Dividends.

1. Power to Declare. Dividends upon the capital stock of the

Corporation, subject to the provisions of the Certificate of
Incorporation, if any, may be declared by the Board of Directors at any
regular or special meeting, pursuant to law. Dividends may be paid in
cash, in property, or in shares of the capital stock of the Corporation,
subject to the provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation and the
laws of Delaware.

2. Reserves. Before payment of any dividend, there may be
set aside out of any funds of the Corporation available for dividends
such sum or sums as the directors from time to time, in their absolute
discretion, think proper as a reserve or reserves to meet contingencies,
or for equalizing dividends, or for repairing or maintaining any

property of the Corporation, or for such other purpose as the directors
shall think conducive to the interest of the Corporation, and the
directors may modify or abolish any such reserve in the manner in
which it was created.

5.7.Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Certificates. No certificates for
shares of stock of the Corporation shall be issued in place of any certificate

alleged to have been lost, stolen or destroyed, except upon production of such
evidence of the loss, theft or destruction and upon indemnification of the

Corporation and its agents to such extent and in such manner as the Board of
Directors may from time to time prescribe.

5.8.Inspection of Books. The stockholders of the Corporation, by a

majority vote at any meeting of stockholders duly called, or in case the
stockholders shall fail to act, the Board of Directors shall have power from
time to time to determine whether and to what extent and at what times and

places and under what conditions and regulations the accounts and books of
the Corporation (other than the stock ledger) or any of them, shall be open to
inspection of stockholders; and no stockholder shall have any right to inspect
any account or book or document of the Corporation except as conferred by
statute or authorized by the Board of Directors or by a resolution of the
stockholders.

Article VI.- Miscellaneous Management Provisions.

6.1.Checks, Drafts and Notes. All checks, drafts or orders for the

payment of money, and all notes and acceptances of the Corporation shall be
signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents as the Board of Directors
may designate.

AN2542828.3
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6.2.Notices.

1. Notices to directors and stockholders may be (i) in writing
and delivered personally or mailed to the directors or stockholders at
their addresses appearing on the books of the Corporation, (ii) by
facsimile telecommunication, when directed to a number at which the
director or stockholder has consented to receive notice, (iii) by
electronic mail, when directed to an electronic mail address at which
the director or stockholder has consented to receive notice, (iv) by other
electronic transmission, when directed to the director or stockholder.
Notice by mail shall be deemed to be given at the time when the same
shall be mailed.

2. Whenever any notice is required to be given under the

provisions of the statutes or of the Certificate of Incorporation of the
Corporation of the Corporation or of these bylaws, a written waiver
signed by the person or persons entitled to said notice, or waiver by
electronic transmission by the person entitled to said notice, whether
before or after the time stated therein or the meeting or action to
which such notice relates, shall be deemed equivalent to notice.
Attendance of a person at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice
of such meeting except when the person attends a meeting for the
express purpose of objecting, at the beginning of the meeting, to the
transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called
or convened.

6.3.Conflict of Interest. No contract or transaction between the

Corporation and one or more of its directors or officers, or between the
Corporation and any other corporation, partnership, association, or other
organization in which one or more of its directors or officers are directors or
officers, or have a financial interest, shall be void or voidable solely for this
reason, or solely because the director or officer is present at or participates in
the meeting of the board of or committee thereof which authorized the
contract or transaction, or solely because his or their votes are counted for
such purpose, if: (i) the material facts as to his relationship or interest and
as to the contract or transaction are disclosed or are known to the Board of
Directors or the committee and the board or committee in good faith
authorizes the contract or transaction by the affirmative vote of a majority of
the disinterested directors, even though the disinterested directors be less
than a quorum; or (ii) the material facts as to his relationship or interest and
as to the contract or transaction are disclosed or are known to the
stockholders of the Corporation entitled to vote thereon, and the contract or
transaction as specifically approved in good faith by vote of such
stockholders; or (iii) the contract or transaction is fair as to the Corporation

Afl2542828.3
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as of the time it is authorized, approved or ratified, by the Board of Directors,
a committee or the stockholders. Common or interested directors may be
counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a meeting of the Board of
Directors or of a committee which authorizes the contract or transaction.

6.4.Voting of Securities owned by this Corporation. Subject
always to the specific directions of the Board of Directors, (i) any shares or
other securities issued by any other Corporation and owned or controlled by
this Corporation may be voted in person at any meeting of security holders of
such other corporation by the President of this Corporation if he or she is
present at such meeting, or in the President's absence by the Treasurer of
this Corporation if he or she is present at such meeting, and (ii) whenever, in
the judgment of the President, it is desirable for this Corporation to execute a
proxy or written consent in respect to any shares or other securities issued by
any other Corporation and owned by this Corporation, such proxy or consent
shall be executed in the name of this Corporation by the President, without

the necessity of any authorization by the Board of Directors, affixation of
corporate seal or countersignature or attestation by another officer, provided
that if the President is unable to execute such proxy or consent by reason of
sickness, absence from the United States or other similar cause, the
Treasurer may execute such proxy or consent. Any person or persons
designated in the manner above stated as the proxy or proxies of this
Corporation shall have full right, power and authority to vote the shares or
other securities issued by such other corporation and owned by this
Corporation the same as such shares or other securities might be voted by
this Corporation.

Article Vll.- Indemnification.

7.1.Right to Indemnification. Each person who was or is made a

party or is threatened to be made a party to or is otherwise involved in any
action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or
investigative (a "Proceeding"), by reason of being or having been a director or
officer of the Corporation or serving or having served at the request of the
Corporation as a director, trustee, officer, employee or agent of another
corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise,
including service with respect to an employee benefit plan (an "Indemnitee"),
whether the basis of such proceeding is alleged action or failure to act in an

official capacity as a director, trustee, officer, employee or agent or in any
other capacity while serving as a director, trustee, officer, employee or agent,
shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Corporation to the fullest
extent authorized by the Delaware General Corporation Law, as the same
exists or may hereafter be amended (but, in the case of any such amendment,
only to the extent that such amendment permits the Corporation to provide
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broader indemnification rights than permitted prior thereto) (as used in this
Article 7, the "Delaware Law"), against all expense, liability and loss
(including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines, ERISA excise taxes or penalties
and amounts paid in settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by such
Indemnitee in connection therewith and such indemnification shall continue
as to an Indemnitee who has ceased to be a director, trustee, officer, employee
or agent and shall inure to the benefit of the Indemnitee's heirs, executors
and administrators; provided, however, that, except as provided in §7.2
hereof with respect to Proceedings to enforce rights to indemnification, the
Corporation shall indemnify any such Indemnitee in connection with a
Proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by such Indemnitee only if such
Proceeding (or part thereof) was authorized by the board of directors of the
Corporation. The right to indemnification conferred in this Article 7 shall be
a contract right and shall include the right to be paid by the Corporation the
expenses (including attorneys' fees) incurred in defending any such
Proceeding in advance of its final disposition (an "Advancement of
Expenses"); provided, however, that, if the Delaware Law so requires, an
Advancement of Expenses incurred by an Indemnitee shall be made only

upon delivery to the Corporation of an undertaking (an "Undertaking"), by or
on behalf of such Indemnitee, to repay all amounts so advanced if it shall
ultimately be determined by final judicial decision from which there is no
further right to appeal (a "Final Adjudication") that such Indemnitee is not
entitled to be indemnified for such expenses under this Article 7 or otherwise.

7.2.Right of Indemnitee to Bring Suit. If a claim under §7.1
hereof is not paid in full by the Corporation within sixty days after a written
claim has been received by the Corporation, except in the case of a claim for
an Advancement of Expenses, in which case the applicable period shall be
twenty days, the Indemnitee may at any time thereafter bring suit against
the Corporation to recover the unpaid amount of the claim. If successful in
whole or in part in any such suit, or in a suit brought by the Corporation to
recover an Advancement of Expenses pursuant to the terms of an

Undertaking, the Indemnitee shall be entitled to be paid also the expense of
prosecuting or defending such suit. In (i) any suit brought by the Indemnitee
to enforce a right to indemnification hereunder (but not in a suit brought by
the Indemnitee to enforce a right to an Advancement of Expenses) it shall be
a defense that, and (ii) in any suit by the Corporation to recover an
Advancement of Expenses pursuant to the terms of an Undertaking the
Corporation shall be entitled to recover such expenses upon a Final
Adjudication that, the Indemnitee has not met the applicable standard of
conduct set forth in the Delaware Law. Neither the failure of the Corporation
(including its board of directors, independent legal counsel, or its
stockholders) to have made a determination prior to the commencement of
such suit that indemnification of the Indemnitee is proper in the

A/72542828.3
BOX Exchange LLC Exhibit C-3 Page 27



-18-

circumstances because the Indemnitee has met the applicable standard of
conduct set forth in the Delaware Law, nor an actual determination by the
Corporation (including its board of directors, independent legal counsel, or its
stockholders) that the Indemnitee has not met such applicable standard of
conduct, shall create a presumption that the Indemnitee has not met the
applicable standard of conduct or, in the case of such a suit brought by the
Indemnitee, be a defense to such suit. In any suit brought by the Indemnitee
to enforce a right to indemnification or to an Advancement of Expenses
hereunder, or by the Corporation to recover an Advancement of Expenses
pursuant to the terms of an Undertaking, the burden of proving that the
Indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified, or to such Advancement of
Expenses, under this Article 7 or otherwise shall be on the Corporation.

7.3.Non-Exclusivity of Rights. The rights to indemnification and
to the Advancement of Expenses conferred in this Article 7 shall not be
exclusive of any other right which any person may have or hereafter acquire
under any statute, the Certificate of Incorporation, by-law, agreement, vote of
stockholders or disinterested directors or otherwise.

7.4.Insurance. The Corporation may maintain insurance, at its
expense, to protect itself and any director, officer, employee or agent of the
Corporation or another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other
enterprise against any expense, liability or loss, whether or not the
Corporation would have the power to indemnify such person against such
expense, liability or loss under this Article 7 or under the Delaware Law.

7.5.Indemnification of Employees and Agents of the
Corporation. The Corporation may, to the extent authorized from time to
time by the board of directors, grant rights to indemnification, and to the
Advancement of Expenses, to any employee or agent of the Corporation to the
fullest extent of the provisions of this Article 7 with respect to the
indemnification and Advancement of Expenses of directors and officers of the
Corporation.

Article Vill. - Amendments.

8.1.Amendments. The bylaws of the Corporation may be altered,
amended or repealed at any meeting of the Board of Directors upon notice
thereof in accordance with these bylaws, or at any meeting of the

stockholders by the vote of the holders of the majority of the stock issued and
outstanding and entitled to vote at such meeting, in accordance with the
provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation and of the laws of Delaware.
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e first State

I, HARRIET SMITH WINDSOR, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND CORRECT

COPY OF THE RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF "MK US 2, INC.", FILED IN

THIS OFFICE ON THE TWENTY-FIRST DAY OF AUGUST, A.D. 2006, AT

12:13 O'CLOCK P.H.

A FILED COPY OF THIS CERTIFICATE HAS BEEN FORWARDED TO THE

NEW CASTLE COUNTY RECORDER OF DEEDS.

o Harriet Smith Windsor, Secretary of State
4480847 8100 *o AUTHENTICATION: 6805693

080890648 DATE: 08-21-08
You may verify this certificate online
at corp.delaware.gov/authver.shtml
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FlIED 12:13 FM 08/21/2008
SRV 080890648 - 4480847 F1IE AMENDED AND RESTATED

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF

MX US2,INC.

MX US 2, Inc. (the "Corporation"), a corporation organized and existing under the

General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, as amended (the "DGCL"), does hereby
certify, pursuantto Sections228,242,and245of the DGCL,that:

(a) The name of the Corporation is MX US 2, Inc. The original Certificate
of Incorporation of the Corporation was filed with the Secretaryof State of the State of Delaware
on December27,2007.

(b) This Amended and RestatedCertificate of incorporation (this "Amended
AnÅRestatedCertificate p_fIncorporation"), which restates and amendsthe original Certificate of
Incorporation of the Corporation, was duly adoptedin accordancewith the povisions of Section
242 and 245 of the DGCL, and was approved by the written consent of the stockholders of the
Corporation given in accordancewith the provisions of Section228 of the DGCL;

The text of the Certificate of Incorporation is hereby amended and restated to
readas herein set forth in full:

FIRST: The name of the corporation is:

MXUS2,inc.

SECOND: The address of its registered office in the State of Delaware is 2711
Centerville Road,Suite 400,in the City of Wilmington, County of New Castle, 19808.Thename
of its registead agentat suchaddressis Corporation ServiceCompany.

THIRD: The purpose of the corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for
which corporations may be organized under the DGCL.

FOURTH: The total number of sharesof all classesof stockwhich the Corporation shall
have the authority to issue is 3,000shares,consisting of 2,000sharesof Common Stock,$0.01
par value per share ("Common .Stoc_is"),and 1,000shares of Preferred Stock, $0.01par value per
share, all of which are designatedas Series A Preferred Stock,$0.01par value per share (the
" eli..esA Preferred.61298").

111efollowing is a statement of the powers, designations, preferences, privileges, and
relative, participating, optional, andother specialrights of the CommonStock andSeriesA
Preferred Stock, respectively:

A. COMMONSTOCK

1. Increageor Decreasein Authorized Number.The number of authorized
sharesof Common Stock may be increasedor decreased (but not below the combined number of
sharesthereof then outstanding) by the affirmative vote of the holders of the majority of the stock

A/72551964.4
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of the Corporation entitled to vote, irmspective of the provisions of Section 242(b)(2) of the
DGCL.

2. Votina Rights. Except as otherwise requiredby law, and subject to the

voting rights provided to the holders of any series of Paferred Stock,the holders of Common
Stock shallhave full voting rights andpowersto vote on all matterssubmitted to stockholdersof
the Corporation for vote,consent or appmval,and eachholder of Common Stock shall be entitled
to one vote for eachshareof Common Stock held of record by suchholder.

3. Dividend.Liquidation and Other Rights. Each shareof Common Stock
issuedandoutstanding shall be identical in all respects with each other such share, and no
dividends shall be paid on any sharesof Common Stock unless the samedividend is paid on all
sharesof Common Stock outstanding at the time of such payment and all dividends due and
payable upon outstanding shares of SeriesA PreferredStock have first beenpaid in full. Except
for andsubject to thoserights expressly granted to the holders of Preferred Stock and except as
may be provided by the laws of the State of Delaware, the holders of Common Stock shall have
all other rights of stockholders, including, without limitation, (a) the right to receive dividends,
when and as decland by the Board of Directors, out of assetslawfully available therefor, and (b)
in the event of any distribution of assetsupon a liquidation or otherwise, the right to receive
ratably and equally all the assetsand funds of the Corporation remaining after the payment to the
holders of the Preferred Stock or of any other class or series of stock ranking senior to the
Common Stock upon liquidation of the specific pmferential amounts which they are entitled to
receiveuponsuch liquidation.

B. SERIES A PREFERRED STOCK

The rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions granted to and imposed upon the
SeriesA Preferred Stock are set forth in this Division B of Article Fourth. All cross-references
containedin this Division B of Article Fourth refer to other paragraphsand/or sectionswithin this
Division B of Article Fourth.

1. Ranking.The SeriesA PreferredStock shall rank senior to the Common

Stock or anyother class or seriesof capital stock of the Corporation for all purposes,including
without limitation as to dividends, and distribution of assetson liquidation, dissolution,or
winding-up of the Corporation.

2. Dividends.The holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to

receive dividends (payable in cash in the form of U.S.Dollars) with respect to any sharesof
Series A Preferred Stock held by them, on the last day of each calendar quarter, in an amount per

shareequalto 8% (the "Dividend Eg"), multipliedby the original issuepriceof such shares,
dividedby four (4). Suchdividendsshall becumulativeandshallaccumulateasof thedateon
which they become payable,whether or not (i) restrictions exist in respectof their payment, (ii)
the Corporation has funds legally available for payment of suchdividends, or (iii) suchdividends
are declared or authorized. Interest on such accrued but unpaid dividends shall accrue at the
Dividend Rate.

3. Liquidation Preference.In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or
winding-up of the Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, the assets of the Corporation
available for distribution to its stockholders,whether from capital, surplus or earnings, shall be
distributed in the following order of priority:

A/72551964.4
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(a) Tlie holders of SeriesA PreferredStock shall be entitled to receive, prior
and in pmference to any distribution to the holders of the CommonStock,an amount per share
equal to the original issuanceprice (subject to appropriate adjustmentuponthe occursenceof any
stock split, stock dividend,reversestock split or combination of the outstanding sharesof Series
A Preferred Stock after the original date of issueof such Series A Preferred Shares) and, in
addition, an amountequalto anydividends duebut unpaid on the SeriesA Preferred Stock. If the
assetsof the Corporation available for distribution to the holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall
be insufficient to permit the payment of the full preferential amount set forth herein, then the

holders of sharesof Series A Preferred Stock shall share in any distribution of the assetsof the
Corporation in proportion to the respectiveamountswhich would be payableto them in respectof
the sharesof the Series A Preferred Stock held by them upon such distribution if all amounts
payable onor with respectto such shares upon distribution were paid in full.

(b) After distribution to the holders of Series A Preferred Stock of the full

preferential amount set forth in Section 3(a) above, the remaining assets of the Corporation
available for distribution, if any,to the stockholdersof the Corporation shall be distributed to the
holders of sharesof Common Stock, to the exclusion of the holders of Series A Preferred Stock,
ratably basedon the number of shares of Common Stock then held by each in accordancewith
Article Fourth A.3.

(c) Unless the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Series A
Preferred Stock elect otherwise, a consolidation or merger of the Corporation with or into any
other corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity (other than any such
merger or consolidation in which the holders of capital stock of the Corporation immediately

prior to such merger or consolidation beneficially own, directly or indirectly, a majority of the
outstanding capital stock or equity interest of the surviving corporation, partnership, limited

liability company or other entity immediately after such merger or consolidation),or a sale or
other transfer of all or substantially all of the assetsof the Corporation will be regardedas a
liquidation,dissolution,orwinding-upof the affairs of the Corporation within the meaning of this
Section 3.

4. Voting Rights. Except asmay be required by the DGCL, the holders of
SeriesA PreferredStock shall have no voting rights exceptthat without the approval of holders of
at least two-thirds of the outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock,and solong asany shares
of SeriesA PreferredStockremainoutstandingthe Corporationshall not:

(a) create any class of stock ranking on par with or senior to the Series A
PreferredStock with tespect to either dividendsor distributionsof assets in liquidation,
dissolution orwinding-up of the Corporation; or

(b) amend the preferences, powers, rights or limitations of the Series A
PreferredStock.

FIFTH: The following provisions are inserted for the management of the businessand
for the conduct of the affairs of the corporation andfor defining andregulating the powersof the
corporation andits directors andstockholders and are in furtherance and not in limitation of the

powersconferred upon the corporation by statute:
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(A) The election of directors neednot be by written ballot.

(B) The board of directors shallhave the power and authority:

(1) to adopt, amend or repeal the bylaws of the corporation, subject only to
suchlimitation,if any,asmaybefrom time to time imposedby lawor by the bylaws;

(2) to the full extent permitted or not prohibited by law, and without the

consentof or other action by the stockholders, to authorize or createmortgages,pledges or other
tiens or encumbrancesuponany or all of the assets,real,personalor mixed,and franchisesof the
corporation, including after-acquired pmperty, and to exercise all of the powers of the corporation
in connection therewith; and

(3) subject to any provision of the bylaws of the corporation, to determine
whether,to what extent,at what times and places andunder what conditions andregulationsthe
accounts,books and papers of the corporation (other than the stock ledger),or anyof them,shall
be open to the inspection of the stockholders,and no stockholder shall have any right to inspect
any account, book or paper of the corporation except as conferred by statuteor authorized by the
bylaws of the corporation or by the boani of directors.

SIXTH: No director of the corporation shall bepersonally liable to the corporation or to

any of its stockholdersfor monetarydamagesfor breach of fiduciary duty as a director,
notwithstanding any provision of law imposing such liability; provided, however, that to the

extent requiredfrom time to time by applicable law,this Article Sixth shall not eliminate or limit
the liability of a director,to the extent suchliability is provided by applicable law, (i) for any
breach of the director's duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders, (ii) for acts or
omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of
law, (iii) under Section 174 of Title 8 of the DGCL, or (iv) for any transaction from which the
director derived an improper personal benefit No amendment to or repeal of this Article Sixth
shall apply to or have any effect on the liability or alleged liability of any director for or with

respect to any acts or omissions of such director occurring prior to the effective date of such
amendmentor repeal.

SEVENTH: The Corporation will indemnify each director of the Corporation,hisheirs,
executors, and administrators, andmay indemnify each officer, employee,and agent of the
Corporation, his heirs,executors,administrators,andall other personswhom the Corporation is
authorizedto indemnifyunder the provisions of the DGCL, to the maximum extent permitted by
law (a) against all expenses (including attorney'sfees),judgments,fines,andamountspaid in
settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with any action, suit or
proceeding,whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, or in connection with any
appealtherein, or otherwise, and(b) against all expenses(including attomey's fees)actually and
reasonably incuræd by him in connection with the defense or settlement of any action or suit by
or in the right of the Corporation, or in connection with any appeal therein,or otherwise;and no
provision of this Article Seventh is intended to be constmed as limiting, prohibiting,denying or
abrogating any of the general or specific powers or rights conferred by the DGCL upon the
Corporation to furnish,or upon any court to award,such indemnification, or indemnification as
otherwise authorizedpursuant to the DGCL or any other law now or hereafter in effect.

The Corporation'sBoard of Directors may in its discretion authorize the Corporation to
purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer,
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employeeor agent of the Corporation,or is or wasserving at the request of the Corporation asa
director,officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or
other enterpriseagainst any liability assertedagainsthim or incurred by him in any such capacity,
or arising out of his status as such,whether or not the Corporation would have the power to
indemnify him against suchliability under the foregoing paragraphof this Article Seventh.

EIQHTH: Subject to such limitations as may be from time to time imposed by other
provisions of this Certificate of Incorporation, by the bylaws of the Corporation, by applicable
statutory or other law, or by any contract or agreement to which the Corporation is or may
become party, the Corporation resetves the right to amend or repeal any provision contained in
this Certificateof Incorporation,in the mannernow or hereafterprescribedby statute,andall
rights conferred upon stockholders bettin aregrantedsubject to this expressreservation.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF,the Corporation has caused this Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation to be signed by its Presidentand Chief Executive Officer this 21st
day of August, 2008.

MX US 2,Inc.

By: /s/ Alain Miquelon
Name: Alain Miquelon
Title: President

N72551964A
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IN WffNESS WilEREOF, the Corporation hascausedthis Amended and Restated Certificate of

incorporation to be signed by its Posidem and Chief Executive Officer this 2_1dayofergust_, 2008.

MXUS2.Inc.

Ily:
Alai Miqu m
Presi ent

(Signature Page for the Amended andRestated Certificate of incorporation of MX US 2. Inc.l
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'Ilie first State

I, HARRIET SMITH WINDSOR, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A TRDE AND CORRECT

COPY OF THE CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF "MK US 2, INC.",

FILED IN THIS OFFICE ON THE TWENTY-SEVENTH DAY OF DECEMBER, A.D.

2007, AT 4:05 O'CLOCK P.M.

A FILED COPY OF THIS CERTIFICATE HAS BEEN FORWARDED TO THE

NEW CASTLE CODNTY RECORDER OF DEEDS.

Harriet Smith Windsor,Secretaryof State

4480847 8100 o, a AUTHENTICATION: 6267792

071367218 DATE: 12-27-07
Fou may verify this certificate online
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State of Delaware
Secretary of State

Divis.ion or Corporations
Delivered 04:03 PM 12/27/2007

2Ir2D 04:05 PM 12/27/2007
SRV 071367218 - 4480847 2TIE

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

MX US2,INC.

FIRST: The name of the corporation is:

MX US2,Inc.

SECOND: The address of its registered office in the State of Delaware is 271|
Centerville Road,Suite 400,in the City of Wilmington,County of New Castle,19808.The name
of its registered agent at such address is Corporation Service Company.

THIRD: The purpose of the corporation is to engagein any lawful act or activity for
which corporations may be organized under the General Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware.

FOURTH: The total number of sharesof capital stock which the corporation shall have

authority to issue is three thousand(3,000) shares,and the par value cf each of such shares is one
cent (S0.01),amounting in the aggregateto thirty doffars (S30.00)of capital stock.

FIFTH: The name andmailing addressofthe sole incorporator is as follows:

NAME MAILING ADDRESS

Kathrine J LeBlanc c/o Bingham McCutchen LLP
150Federal Street
Boston, MA 02110

SIXTH: The following provisionsare insertedfor the management of the business and
for the conduct of the affairs of the corporation and for defining and regulating the powers of the

corporation and its dircctors and stockholders and are in furthemnce and not in limitation of the
powers conferred upon the corporation by statute:

(a) The election of directors neednot beby written ballot.

(b) The board of directors shall havethe power andauthority:

(1) to adopt, amend or repeal by-laws of the corporation, subject only to
such limitation,if any,asmay be from time to time imposedby law or
by the by-laws;

(2) to the full extent permitted or not prohibited by law, and without the
consent of or other action by the stockholders, to authorize or create

mortgages,pledgesor other liens or encumbrancesuponanyor all of the
assets, real, personal or mixed, and franchises of the corporation,
including after-acquired property, and to exercise all of the powers ofthe

corporation in connection therewith; and

(3) subject to any provision of the by-laws of the corporation, to determine
whether, to what extent, at what times and places and under what
conditions and regulations the accounts, books and papers of the
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corporation (other than the stock ledger),or any of them, shall be open to
the inspection of the stockholders, andno stockholder shall have any
right to inspect any account, book or paper of the corporation except as
conferred by statuteor authorized by the by-laws of the corporation or by
the board of directors.

SEVENTH: No director of the corporationshallbe personally liableto the corporation or

to any of its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director,
notwithstanding any provisionof law imposing such liability; provided, however,that to the
extent required from time to time by applicable law, this Article Seventh shall not eliminate or
limit the liability of a director,to the extent such liability is provided by applicable law, (i) for
any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders, (ii) for acts or
omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of
law, (iii) under Section 174of Title 8 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware,
or (iv) for any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit. No
amendment to or repeal of this Article Seventh shall apply to or have any effect on the liability or
alleged liability of any director for or with respect to any acts or omissions of such director
occurring prior to the effective date of such amendmentor repeat

EIGHTH: The Company will indemnify each director of the Company, his heirs,
executors, andadministrators,and may indemnify each officer, employee,and agent of the
Company, his heirs, executors, administrators, and all other persons whom the Company is
authorized to indemnify under the provisions of the DGCL, to the maximumextent permitted by
law (a) against all expenses(including attorney's fees), judgments, fines. and amounts paid in
settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with any action, suit or

proceeding,whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, or in connection with any
appeal therein, or otherwisc, and (b) against all expenses (including attomey's fees) actually and
reasonably incurred by him in connection with the defenseor settlement of any action or suit by
or in the right of the Company, or in connection with any appeal therein, or otherwise; andno
provision of this Article Seventh is intended to be construedas limiting, prohibiting,denying or
abrogating any of the general or specific powers or rights conferred by the DGCL upon the
Company to fumish, or upon any court to award, such indemnification, or indemnification as
otherwise authorized pursuant to the DGCL or any other law now or hereafter in effect.

The Company'sBoardof Directors may in its discretion authorize the Company to
purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer,
employee or agent of the Company,or is or was serving at the request of the Company as a
director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or
other enterpriseagainstany liability assertedagainsthimor incurred by him in any such capacity,
or arising out of his status as such, whether or not the Company would have the power to
indemnify him againstsuch liability under the foregoing paragraphof this Artiefe Seventh.

NINTH: Whenevera compromiseor arrangementisproposed between theCompany and
its creditors or any class of them and/or betweenthe Company and its stockholders or any Class
of them, anycourt of equitablejurisdiction within the State of Delaware may,on the application
in a summary way of the Company or of any creditor or stockholder thereof or on the application
of any receiver or receivers appointed for the Company under the provisions of Section 291 of the
DGCL or on the application of trustees in dissolution or of any receiver or receivers appointed for
the Company under the provisions of Section 279 of tho DOCL, order a meeting of the creditors
or class of creditors, and/or of the stockholders or class of stockholders of the Company, as the
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casemay be, to be summoned in such a manner asthe saidcourt directs. If at least a majority of
the number representing three-fourths (3/4ths) in value of the creditors or classof creditors,
and/or of the stockholders or class of stockholders of the Company, as the casemay be,agree to
any compromiseor arrangement and to anyreorganization of the Company as a consequenceof
such compromise or arrangement, the compromise or arrangement and the said reorganization
will, if sanctioned by the court to which the saidapplicationhasbeen made,be binding on all
creditors or class of creditors, and/or stockholders or classof stockholders of the Company,asthe
casemay be,and also on the Company.

TENTH: Subject to such limitations as may be from time to time imposed by other

provisions of this Certificate of incorporation, by the by-laws of the Company,by applicable
statutory or other law,or by any contract or agreementto which the Company is or may become
party, the Company reserves the right to amend or repeal any provision contained in this
Certificate of incorporation, in the manner now or hereafter prescribed by statute, and all rights
conferred upon stockholders hereinare grantedsubject to this expressreservation.

THE UNDERSIGNED, being the sole incorporator hereinbefore named, for the purpose
of forming a corporation pursuant to the General Corporation Law of the Stateof Delaware, does
make this certificate, hereby declaring and certifying that this is my act and deed and the facts
stated herein are true, and accordingly have herounto set my hand this 27th day of December,
2007.

Kathrine J.LeBlanc
Sole Incorporator
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CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

MXUS2,INC.

FIRST: The name of the corporation is:

MX US 2,Inc.

SECOND: The address of its registered office in the State of Delaware is 2711
Centerville Road,Suite 400, in the City of Wilmington, County of New Castle,19808. The name

of its registered agent at such address is Corporation Service Company.

THIRD: The purpose of the corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for
which corporations may be organized under the General Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware.

FOURTH: The total number of shares of capital stock which the corporation shall have

authority to issue is three thousand (3,000)shares,andthe par valueof each of suchshares is one
cent ($0.01),amounting in the aggregate to thirty dollars ($30.00)of capital stock.

FIFTH: The name and mailing addressof the sole incorporator is as follows:

NAME MAILING ADDRESS

Kathrine J.LeBlanc c/o Bingham McCutchen LLP
150 Federal Street
Boston,MA 02110

SIXTH: The following provisionsare inserted for the management of the business and
for the conduct of the affairs of the corporation and for defining and regulating the powers of the

corporation and its directors andstockholders and are in furtherance andnot in limitation of the
powers conferred upon the corporation by statute:

(a) The electionof directorsneednot be by written ballot.

(b) The board of directors shall havethepower andauthority:

(1) to adopt, amend or repeal by-laws of the corporation,subject only to
such limitation, if any, as may be from time to time imposed by law or
by the by-laws;

(2) to the full extent permitted or not prohibited by law, and without the
consent of or other action by the stockholders,to authorize or create

mortgages, pledges or other liens or encumbrances upon any or all of the
assets, real, personal or mixed, and franchises of the corporation,
including after-acquired property,and to exercise all of the powers of the
corporation in connection therewith; and

(3) subject to any provision of the by-laws of the corporation, to determine
whether, to what extent, at what times and places and under what
conditions and regulations the accounts, books and papers of the
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corporation (other than the stockledger),or any of them,shall beopen to
the inspection of the stockholders,and no stockholder shall have any
right to inspect any account, book or paper of the corporation except as
conferred by statute or authorized by the by-laws of the corporation or by
the board of directors.

SEVENTH: No director of the corporation shall be personally liable to the corporation or

to any of its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director,
notwithstanding any provision of law imposing such liability; provided, however, that to the
extent required from time to time by applicable law, this Article Seventh shall not eliminate or
limit the liability of a director, to the extent such liability is provided by applicablelaw, (i) for
any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders,(ii) for acts or
omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of
law, (iii) under Section 174of Title 8 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware,
or (iv) for any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit. No
amendment to or repeal of this Article Seventh shall apply to or have any effect on the liability or

alleged liability of any director for or with respect to any acts or omissions of such director
occurring prior to the effective date of such amendment or repeal.

EIGHTH: The Company will indemnify each director of the Company, his heirs,
executors, and administrators, and may indemnify each officer, employee, and agent of the
Company, his heirs, executors,administrators, and all other persons whom the Company is
authorized to indemnify under the provisionsof the DGCL, to the maximum extent permitted by
law (a) against all expenses (including attorney's fees),judgments, fines, and amounts paid in

C settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with any action, suit or
proceeding,whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, or in connection with any
appeal therein, or otherwise, and (b) against all expenses (including attorney's fees) actually and
reasonably incurredby him in connection with the defense or settlement of any action or suit by
or in the right of the Company,or in connection with any appeal therein, or otherwise; and no
provision of this Article Seventh is intended to be construed as limiting, prohibiting, denying or
abrogating any of the general or specific powers or rights conferred by the DGCL upon the

Company to furnish, or upon any court to award, such indemnification, or indemnification as
otherwise authorized pursuant to the DGCL or any other law now or hereafter in effect.

The Company'sBoardof Directors may in its discretion authorize the Company to
purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer,
employee or agent of the Company, or is or was serving at the request of the Company as a
director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or
other enterprise against any liability asserted against him or incurred by him in any such capacity,
or arising out of his status as such, whether or not the Company would have the power to
indemnify him against such liability under the foregoing paragraph of this Article Seventh.

NINTH: Whenever a compromise or arrangement is proposed between the Company and

its creditors or any classof them and/or between the Companyand its stockholders or any Class
of them,any court of equitable jurisdiction within the State of Delaware may, on the application
in a summary way of the Companyor of any creditor or stockholder thereof or on the application
of any receiver or receivers appointed for the Company under the provisions of Section 291of the
DGCL or on the applicationof trustees in dissolution or of any receiver or receivers appointed for
the Company under the provisions of Section 279of the DGCL, order a meeting of the creditors
or classof creditors, and/or of the stockholders or class of stockholders of the Company,as the
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case may be, to be summoned in such a manner asthe saidcourt directs. If at least a majority of
the number representing three-fourths (3/4ths) in value of the creditors or class of creditors,
and/or of the stockholders or class of stockholders of the Company,as the case may be,agree to

any compromise or arrangement and to any reorganization of the Company as a consequence of
such compromise or arrangement, the compromiseor arrangement and the said reorganization
will, if sanctioned by the court to which the said applicationhas been made,be binding on all
creditors or class of creditors,and/or stockholders or classof stockholders of the Company,asthe

casemaybe, and alsoon the Company.

TENTH: Subject to such limitations as may be from time to time imposed by other

provisions of this Certificate of Incorporation, by the by-laws of the Company, by applicable
statutory or other law, or by anycontract or agreement to which the Companyis or may become
party, the Company reserves the right to amend or repeal any provision contained in this
Certificate of Incorporation, in the manner now or hereafter prescribed by statute, and all rights
conferred upon stockholders hereinare granted subject to this express reservation.

THE UNDERSIGNED, being the sole incorporator hereinbefore named,for the purpose
of forming a corporation pursuant to the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware,does
make this certificate, hereby declaring and certifying that this is my act and deed and the facts
stated herein are true, and accordingly have hereunto set my hand this 27th day of December,
2007.

Kathrine J.LeBlanc
SoleIncorporator
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MXUS2,INC.

STATEMENT OF ORGANIZATION OF THE INCORPORATOR

December 27,2007

The undersigned,being the sole incorporator of MX US 2,Inc.,a Delaware corporation
(the "Corporation"), hereby certifies pursuant to Section 108 of the General Corporation Law of
the Stateof Delaware that:

1. The Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation wasfiled with the Secretary
of State of the State of Delaware on December 27,2007and is being recorded in the office of the
Recorder of New Castle County, Delaware.

2. The by-laws annexed hereto have been adopted by me asthe by-laws of the
Corporation.

3. That Joelle Saint-Arnault has beenelected by me as the sole Director of the

Corporation, to hold office until the first annualmeeting of stockholders and until his or her
successor hasbeen duly elected and qualified.

Kathrine J.LeBlanc

A/72360457.2
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MX US 2,INC.

BY-LAWS

Article 1.- General.

1.1.Offices. The registered office shall be in the City of Wilmington,
County of New Castle, State of Delaware. The Corporation may also have
offices at such other places both within and without the State of Delaware as
the Board of Directors may from time to time determine or the business of the

Corporation may require.

1.2.Seal. The seal of the Corporation, if any, shall be in the form of a
circle and shall have inscribed thereon the name of the Corporation, the year

of its organization and the words "Corporate Seal, Delaware".

1.3.Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be the

period from January through December.

Article ll. - Stockholders.

2.1.Place of Meetings. All meetings of the stockholders shall be

held at the office of the Corporation in [State/Province/Country], except such
meetings as the Board of Directors expressly determine shall be held
elsewhere or solely by means of remote communication, in which cases

meetings may be held upon notice as hereinafter provided at such other place
or places within or without the State of Wisconsin or by remote
communication as the Board of Directors shall have determined and as shall
be stated in such notice.

2.2.Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the stockholders shall
be held each year on such date and at such time as the Board of Directors
may determine. At each annual meeting, the stockholders entitled to vote
shall elect a Board of Directors by plurality vote by ballot and may transact
such other corporate business as may properly be brought before the meeting.
At the annual meeting, any business may be transacted, irrespective of
whether the notice calling such meeting shall have contained a reference
thereto, except where notice is required by law, the Certificate of
Incorporation of the Corporation (the "Certificate of Incorporation"), or these
by-laws.

2.3.Quorum. At all meetings of the stockholders the holders of a
majority of the stock issued and outstanding and entitled to vote thereat,
present in person or represented by proxy, shall constitute a quorum

A/72360426113006914-0000327967
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requisite for the transaction of business except as otherwise provided by law,
by the Certificate of Incorporation or by these by-laws. If, however, such
majority shall not be present or represented at any meeting of the
stockholders, the stockholders entitled to vote thereat, present in person or

by proxy, by a majority vote, shall have power to adjourn the meeting from
time to time without notice other than announcement at the meeting until

the requisite amount of voting stock shall be present. If the adjournment is
for more than thirty (30) days, or if after the adjournment a new record date
is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a notice of the adjourned meeting shall be
given to each stockholder of record entitled to vote at the meeting. At such
adjourned meeting, at which the requisite amount of voting stock shall be
represented, any business may be transacted which might have been
transacted if the meeting had been held as originally called.

2.4.Right to Vote; Proxies. Each holder of a share or shares of

capital stock of the Corporation having the right to vote at any meeting shall
be entitled to one vote for each such share of stock held by him. Any
stockholder entitled to vote at any meeting of stockholders may vote either in
person or by proxy, but no proxy which is dated more than three years prior
to the meeting at which it is offered shall confer the right to vote thereat

unless the proxy provides that it shall be effective for a longer period. A
proxy may be granted by a writing executed by the stockholder or his
authorized officer, director, employee or agent or by transmission or
authorization of transmission of a telegram, cablegram, or other means of
electronic transmission to the person who will be the holder of the proxy or to
a proxy solicitation firm, proxy support service organization or like agent
duly authorized by the person who will be the holder of the proxy to receive
such transmission, subject to the conditions set forth in Section 212 of the
Delaware General Corporation Law, as it may be amended from time to time

(the "Delaware GCL").

2.5.Voting. At all meetings of stockholders, except as otherwise

expressly provided for by statute, the Certificate of Incorporation or these by-
laws, (i) in all matters other than the election of directors, the affirmative
vote of a majority of shares present in person or by means of remote
communication or represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote on
such matter shall be the act of the stockholders and (ii) directors shall be
elected by a plurality of the votes of the shares present in person or by means
of remote communication or represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled
to vote on the election of directors. Except as otherwise expressly provided by
law, the Certificate of Incorporation or these by-laws, at all meetings of
stockholders the voting shall be by voice vote, but any stockholder qualified to
vote on the matter in question may demand a stock vote, by shares of stock,

upon such question, whereupon such stock vote shall be taken by ballot

A/723604261/3006914-0000327967
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which may be by electronic transmission by any stockholder present by
means of remote communication, each of which shall state the name of the

stockholder voting and the number of shares voted by him, and, if such ballot
be cast by a proxy, it shall also state the name of the proxy.

2.6.Notice of Annual Meetings. Written notice of the annual

meeting of the stockholders, stating the time, the place, the means of remote
communication, if any, by which stockholders and proxy holders may be
deemed to be present in person and vote at such meeting, shall be sent not
less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the meeting. It shall
be the duty of every stockholder to furnish to the Secretary of the Corporation
or to the transfer agent, if any, of the class of stock owned by him, his post-
office address and to notify said Secretary or transfer agent of any change
therein.

2.7.Stockholders' List. A complete list of the stockholders entitled

to vote at any meeting of stockholders, arranged in alphabetical order and
showing the address of each stockholder, and the number of shares registered
in the name of each stockholder, shall be prepared by the Secretary and shall

be open to examination of any stockholder, for any purpose germane to the
meeting for a period of at least ten days before such meeting (i) on a
reasonably accessible electronic network, provided that the information
required to gain access to such list is provided with the notice of the meeting,
or (ii) during ordinary business hours at the principal office of the
corporation, and said list shall be open to examination during the whole time
of said meeting, at the place of said meeting, or, if the meeting held is by
remote communication, on a reasonably accessible electronic network and the

information required to access such list shall be provided with the notice of
the meeting.

2.8.Special Meetings. Special meetings of the stockholders for any
purpose or purposes, unless otherwise provided by statute, may be called by
the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board, if any, the President or

any Vice President.

2.9.Notice of Special Meetings. Written notice of a special meeting
of stockholders, stating the time, the place, the means of remote
communication, if any, by which stockholders and proxy holders may be
deemed to be present in person and vote at such meeting and the object
thereof, shall be sent not less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days
before such meeting, to each stockholder entitled to vote thereat, either in

paper form or electronic form pursuant to each stockholder's instructions on
record with the Corporation. No business may be transacted at such meeting

C except that referred to in said notice, or in a supplemental notice given also
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in compliance with the provisions hereof, or such other business as may be

germane or supplementary to that stated in said notice or notices.

2.10.Inspectors.

1. One or more inspectors may be appointed by the Board of
Directors before or at any meeting of stockholders, or, if no such

appointment shall have been made, the presiding officer may make
such appointment at the meeting. At the meeting for which the
inspector or inspectors are appointed, he or they shall open and close
the polls, receive and take charge of the proxies and ballots, and decide
all questions touching on the qualifications of voters, the validity of
proxies and the acceptance and rejection of votes. If any inspector
previously appointed shall fail to attend or refuse or be unable to serve,
the presiding officer shall appoint an inspector in his place.

2. At any time at which the Corporation has a class of voting
stock that is (i) listed on a national securities exchange, (ii) authorized

for quotation on an inter-dealer quotation system of a registered
national securities association, or (iii) held of record by more than

2,000 stockholders, the provisions of Section 231 of the Delaware GCL
with respect to inspectors of election and voting procedures shall apply,
in lieu of the provisions of paragraph (1)of this §2.10.

2.11.Stockholders' Consent in Lieu of Meeting. Unless

otherwise provided in the Certificate of Incorporation, any action required by
law to be taken at any annual or special meeting of stockholders of the

Corporation, or any action which may be taken at any annual or special
meeting of such stockholders, may be taken without a meeting, without prior
notice and without a vote, if a consent or consents in writing, setting forth the
action so taken, shall be signed by the holders of outstanding stock having
not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to
authorize or take such action at a meeting at which all shares entitled to vote
thereon were present and voted and shall be delivered to the Corporation by
delivery to its registered office in the State of Delaware, its principal place of
business, or an officer or agent of the Corporation having custody of the book
in which proceedings of meetings of stockholders are recorded. Delivery
made to the Corporation's registered office shall be by hand or by certified or
registered mail, return receipt requested. Every written consent shall bear
the date of signature of each stockholder who signs the consent and no
written consent shall be effective to take the corporate action referred to
therein unless, within sixty days of the earliest dated consent delivered in the
manner required by this §2.11to the Corporation, written consents signed by
a sufficient number of stockholders to take action are delivered to the
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Corporation by delivery to its registered office in the State of Delaware, its
principal place of business, or an officer or agent of the Corporation having
custody of the book in which proceedings of meetings of stockholders are
recorded.

A telegram, cablegram or other electronic transmission consenting to
an action to be taken and transmitted by a stockholder or proxyholder, or by
a person or persons authorized to act for a stockholder or proxyholder, shall
be deemed to be written, signed and dated for the purposes of this section,

provided that any such telegram, cablegram or other electronic transmission
sets forth or is delivered with information from which the Corporation can
determine that the telegram, cablegram or other electronic transmission was
transmitted by the stockholder or proxyholder or by a person or persons
authorized to act for the stockholder or proxyholder and the date on which
such stockholder or proxyholder or authorized person or persons transmitted

such telegram, cablegram or electronic transmission. The date on which such
telegram, cablegram or electronic transmission is transmitted shall be
deemed to be the date on which such consent was signed. No consent given

by telegram, cablegram or other electronic transmission shall be deemed to
have been delivered until such consent is reproduced in paper form and until

such paper form shall be delivered to the Corporation by delivery to its
principal place of business or to an officer or agent of the Corporation having
custody of the book in which the proceedings of meetings of stockholders are
recorded. Any copy, facsimile or other reliable reproduction of a consent in
writing may be substituted or used in lieu of the original writing for any and
all purposes for which the original writing could be used, provided that such
copy, facsimile or other reproduction shall be a complete reproduction of the
entire original writing.

Prompt notice of the taking of the corporate action without a meeting

by less than unanimous written consent shall be given to those stockholders
who have not consented in writing.

Article 111.- Directors.

3.1.Number of Directors. Except as otherwise provided by law, the
Certificate of Incorporation or these by-laws, the property and business of the
Corporation shall be managed by or under the direction of a board of not less
than one nor more than thirteen directors. Within the limits specified, the
number of directors shall be determined by resolution of the Board of
Directors or by the stockholders at the annual meeting. Directors need not be
stockholders, residents of Delaware or citizens of the United States. The
directors shall be elected by ballot at the annual meeting of the stockholders
and each director shall be elected to serve until his successor shall be elected
and shall qualify or until his earlier resignation or removal; provided that in
the event of failure to hold such meeting or to hold such election at such
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meeting, such election may be held at any special meeting of the stockholders
called for that purpose. If the office of any director becomes vacant by reason
of death, resignation, disqualification, removal, failure to elect, or otherwise,
the remaining directors, although more or less than a quorum, by a majority
vote of such remaining directors may elect a successor or successors who shall
hold office for the unexpired term.

3.2.Change in Number of Directors; Vacancies. The maximum

number of directors may be increased by an amendment to these by-laws

adopted by a majority vote of the Board of Directors or by a majority vote of
the capital stock having voting power, and if the number of directors is so
increased by action of the Board of Directors or of the stockholders or
otherwise, then the additional directors may be elected in the manner

provided above for the filling of vacancies in the Board of Directors or at the
annual meeting of stockholders or at a special meeting called for that

purpose.

3.3.Resignation. Any director of this Corporation may resign at any

time by giving notice in writing or by electronic transmission to the
Chairman of the Board, if any, the President or the Secretary of the

Corporation. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein,
at the time of receipt if no time is specified therein and at the time of
acceptance if the effectiveness of such resignation is conditioned upon its
acceptance. Unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such
resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

3.4.Removal. Any director or the entire Board of Directors may be

removed, with or without cause, by the holders of a majority of the shares
then entitled to vote at an election of directors.

3.5.Place of Meetings and Books. The Board of Directors may
hold their meetings and keep the books of the Corporation outside the State
of Delaware, at such places as they may from time to time determine.

3.6.General Powers. In addition to the powers and authority

expressly conferred upon them by these by-laws, the board may exercise all
such powers of the Corporation and do all such lawful acts and things as are
not by statute or by the Certificate of Incorporation or by these by-laws
directed or required to be exercised or done by the stockholders.

3.7.Executive Committee. There may be an executive committee of
one or more directors designated by resolution passed by a majority of the
whole board. The act of a majority of the members of such committee shall be
the act of the committee. Said committee may meet at stated times or on
notice to all by any of their own number, and shall have and may exercise
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those powers of the Board of Directors in the management of the business
affairs of the Company as are provided by law and may authorize the seal of

the Corporation to be affixed to all papers which may require it. Vacancies in
the membership of the committee shall be filled by the Board of Directors at a

regular meeting or at a special meeting called for that purpose.

3.8.Other Committees. The Board of Directors may also designate
one or more committees in addition to the executive committee, by resolution
or resolutions passed by a majority of the whole board; such committee or
committees shall consist of one or more directors of the Corporation, and to
the extent provided in the resolution or resolutions designating them, shall
have and may exercise specific powers of the Board of Directors in the
management of the business and affairs of the Corporation to the extent
permitted by statute and shall have power to authorize the seal of the
Corporation to be affixed to all papers which may require it. Such committee
or committees shall have such name or names as may be determined from
time to time by resolution adopted by the Board of Directors.

3.9.Powers Denied to Committees. Committees of the Board of

Directors shall not, in any event, have any power or authority to amend the
Certificate of Incorporation (except that a committee may, to the extent
authorized in the resolution or resolutions providing for the issuance of
shares adopted by the Board of Directors as provided in Section 151(a) of the
Delaware GCL, fix the designations and any of the preferences or rights of
such shares relating to dividends, redemption, dissolution, any distribution of
assets of the Corporation or the conversion into, or the exchange of such
shares for, shares of any other class or classes or any other series of the same
or any other class or classes of stock of the Corporation or fix the number of
shares of any series of stock or authorize the increase or decrease of the
shares of any series), adopt an agreement of merger or consolidation,
recommend to the stockholders the sale, lease or exchange of all or
substantially all of the Corporation's property and assets, recommend to the
stockholders a dissolution of the Corporation or a revocation of a dissolution
or to amend the by-laws of the Corporation. Further, no committee of the
Board of Directors shall have the power or authority to declare a dividend, to
authorize the issuance of stock or to adopt a certificate of ownership and
merger pursuant to Section 253 of the Delaware GCL, unless the resolution
or resolutions designating such committee expressly so provides.

3.10.Substitute Committee Member. In the absence or on the

disqualification of a member of a committee, the member or members thereof

present at any meeting and not disqualified from voting, whether or not he or
they constitute a quorum, may unanimously appoint another member of the
Board of Directors to act at the meeting in the place of such absent or
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disqualified member. Any committee shall keep regular minutes of its
proceedings and report the same to the board as may be required by the
board.

3.11.Compensation of Directors. The Board of Directors shall
have the power to fix the compensation of directors and members of
committees of the Board. The directors may be paid their expenses, if any, of
attendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors and may be paid a fixed
sum for attendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors or a stated

salary as director. No such payment shall preclude any director from serving
the Corporation in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefor.
Members of special or standing committees may be allowed like
compensation for attending committee meetings.

3.12.Annual Meeting. The newly elected board may meet at such

place and time as shall be fixed and announced by the presiding officer at the
annual meeting of stockholders, for the purpose of organization or otherwise,
and no further notice of such meeting shall be necessary to the newly elected
directors in order legally to constitute the meeting, provided a quorum shall
be present, or they may meet at such place and time as shall be stated in a
notice given to such directors two (2) days prior to such meeting, or as shall
be fixed by the consent in writing of all the directors.

3.13.Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the board may be held
without notice at such time and place as shall from time to time be
determined by the board.

3.14.Special Meetings. Special meetings of the board may be called

by the Chairman of the Board, if any, or the President, on two (2) days notice
to each director, or such shorter period of time before the meeting as will
nonetheless be sufficient for the convenient assembly of the directors so
notified; special meetings shall be called by the Secretary in like manner and
on like notice, on the written request of two or more directors.

3.15.Quorum. At all meetings of the Board of Directors, a majority

of the total number of directors shall be necessary and sufficient to constitute

a quorum for the transaction of business, and the act of a majority of the
directors present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act
of the Board of Directors, except as may be otherwise specifically permitted or

provided by statute, or by the Certificate of Incorporation, or by these by-
laws. If at any meeting of the board there shall be less than a quorum

present, a majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to
time until a quorum is obtained, and no further notice thereof need be given

C other than by announcement at said meeting which shall be so adjourned.
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3.16.Telephonic Participation in Meetings. Members of the

Board of Directors or any committee designated by such board may

participate in a meeting of the board or committee by means of conference
telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all
persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and participation
in a meeting pursuant to this section shall constitute presence in person at
such meeting.

3.17.Action by Consent. Unless otherwise restricted by the
Certificate of Incorporation or these by-laws, any action required or

permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board of Directors or of any
committee thereof may be taken without a meeting, if all members of the
board or committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in writing or by
electronic transmission and such consent is filed in paper form with the
minutes of proceedings of the board or committee.

Article IV. - Officers.

4.1.Selection; Statutory Officers. The officers of the Corporation
shall be chosen by the Board of Directors. There shall be a President, a

Secretary and a Treasurer, and there may be a Chairman of the Board of
Directors, one or more Vice Presidents, one or more Assistant Secretaries,
and one or more Assistant Treasurers, as the Board of Directors may elect.
Any number of offices may be held by the same person.

4.2.Time of Election. The officers above named shall be chosen by
the Board of Directors at its first meeting after each annual meeting of
stockholders. None of said officers need be a director.

4.3.Additional Officers. The board may appoint such other officers

and agents as it shall deem necessary, who shall hold their offices for such
terms and shall exercise such powers and perform such duties as shall be
determined from time to time by the board.

4.4.Terms of Office. Each officer of the Corporation shall hold office
until his successor is chosen and qualified, or until his earlier resignation or
removal. Any officer elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be
removed at any time by the Board of Directors.

4.5.Compensation of Officers. The Board of Directors shall have

power to fix the compensation of all officers of the Corporation. It may
authorize any officer, upon whom the power of appointing subordinate
officers may have been conferred, to fix the compensation of such subordinate
officers.
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4.6.Chairman of the Board. The Chairman of the Board of
Directors shall preside at all meetings of the stockholders and directors, and
shall have such other duties as may be assigned to him from time to time by
the Board of Directors.

4.7.President. Unless the Board of Directors otherwise determines,
the President shall be the chief executive officer and head of the Corporation.
Unless there is a Chairman of the Board, the President shall preside at all
meetings of directors and stockholders. Under the supervision of the Board of
Directors and of the executive committee, the President shall have the

general control and management of its business and affairs, subject, however,
to the right of the Board of Directors and of the executive committee to confer
any specific power, except such as may be by statute exclusively conferred on
the President, upon any other officer or officers of the Corporation. The
President shall perform and do all acts and things incident to the position of
President and such other duties as may be assigned to him from time to time

by the Board of Directors or the executive committee.

4.8.Vice-Presidents. The Vice-Presidents shall perform such of the

duties of the President on behalf of the Corporation as may be respectively

assigned to them from time to time by the Board of Directors or by the
executive committee or by the President. The Board of Directors or the
executive committee may designate one of the Vice-Presidents as the
Executive Vice-President, and in the absence or inability of the President to

act, such Executive Vice-President shall have and possess all of the powers
and discharge all of the duties of the President, subject to the control of the
board and of the executive committee.

4.9.Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have the care and custody of all
the funds and securities of the Corporation which may come into his hands as
Treasurer, and the power and authority to endorse checks,drafts and other
instruments for the payment of money for deposit or collection when
necessary or proper and to deposit the same to the credit of the Corporation
in such bank or banks or depository as the Board of Directors or the executive
committee, or the officers or agents to whom the Board of Directors or the
executive committee may delegate such authority, may designate, and he

may endorse all commercial documents requiring endorsements for or on
behalf of the Corporation. He may sign all receipts and vouchers for the

payments made to the Corporation. He shall render an account of his
transactions to the Board of Directors or to the executive committee as often
as the board or the committee shall require the same. He shall enter

regularly in the books to be kept by him for that purpose full and adequate

. account of all moneys received and paid by him on account of the Corporation.
He shall perform all acts incident to the position of Treasurer, subject to the
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control of the Board of Directors and of the executive committee. He shall
when requested, pursuant to vote of the Board of Directors or the executive
committee, give a bond to the Corporation conditioned for the faithful

performance of his duties, the expense of which bond shall be borne by the
Corporation.

4.10.Secretary. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all
meetings of the Board of Directors and of the stockholders; he shall attend to
the giving and serving of all notices of the Corporation. Except as otherwise
ordered by the Board of Directors or the executive committee, he shall attest
the seal of the Corporation upon all contracts and instruments executed
under such seal and shall affix the seal of the Corporation thereto and to all
certificates of shares of capital stock of the Corporation. He shall have charge
of the stock certificate book, transfer book and stock ledger, and such other
books and papers as the Board of Directors or the executive committee may
direct. He shall, in general, perform all the duties of Secretary, subject to the
control of the Board of Directors and of the executive committee.

4.11.Assistant Secretary. The Board of Directors or any two of the

officers of the Corporation acting jointly may appoint or remove one or more
Assistant Secretaries of the Corporation. Any Assistant Secretary upon his

appointment shall perform such duties of the Secretary, and also any and all
such other duties as the executive committee or the Board of Directors or the
President or the Executive Vice-President or the Treasurer or the Secretary

may designate.

4.12.Assistant Treasurer. The Board of Directors or any two of the

officers of the Corporation acting jointly may appoint or remove one or more
Assistant Treasurers of the Corporation. Any Assistant Treasurer upon his

appointment shall perform such of the duties of the Treasurer, and also any
and all such other duties asthe executivecommittee or the Board of Directors
or the President or the Executive Vice-President or the Treasurer or the

Secretary may designate.

4.13.Subordinate Officers. The Board of Directors may select such

subordinate officers as it may deem desirable. Each such officer shall hold
office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as the
Board of Directors may prescribe. The Board of Directors may, from time to
time, authorize any officer to appoint and remove subordinate officers and to

prescribe the powers and duties thereof.

Article V.- Stock.

5.1.Stock. Each stockholder shall be entitled to a certificate or

certificates of stock of the Corporation in such form as the Board of Directors
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may from time to time prescribe. The certificates of stock of the Corporation
shall be numbered and shall be entered in the books of the Corporation as
they are issued. They shall certify the holder's name and number and class
of shares and shall be signed by both of (i) either the Chairperson or Vice
Chairperson of the Board of Directors, or the President or Vice President, and
(ii) any one of the Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer or the Secretary or an
Assistant Secretary, and may, but need not, be sealed with the corporate seal
of the Corporation. If such certificate is countersigned (1)by a transfer agent
other than the Corporation or its employee, or, (2) by a registrar other than
the Corporation or its employee, the signature of the officers of the
Corporation and the corporate seal may be facsimiles. In case any officer or
officers who shall have signed, or whose facsimile signature or signatures
shall have been used on, any such certificate or certificates shall cease to be
such officer or officers of the Corporation, whether because of death,

resignation or otherwise, before such certificate or certificates shall have been
delivered by the Corporation, such certificate or certificates may nevertheless
be adopted by the Corporation and be issued and delivered as though the

person or persons who signed such certificate or certificates or whose
facsimile signature shall have been used thereon had not ceased to be such
officer or officers of the Corporation.

5.2.Fractional Share Interests. The Corporation may, but shall

not be required to, issue fractions of a share. If the Corporation does not
issue fractions of a share, it shall (i) arrange for the disposition of fractional
interests by those entitled thereto, (ii) pay in cash the fair value of fractions
of a share as of the time when those entitled to receive such fractions are
determined, or (iii) issue scrip or warrants in registered or bearer form which
shall entitle the holder to receive a certificate for a full share upon the
surrender of such scrip or warrants aggregating a full share. A certificate for
a fractional share shall, but scrip or warrants shall not unless otherwise

provided therein, entitle the holder to exercise voting rights, to receive
dividends thereon, and to participate in any of the assets of the Corporation
in the event of liquidation. The Board of Directors may cause scrip or
warrants to be issued subject to the conditions that they shall become void if
not exchanged for certificates representing full shares before a specified date,
or subject to the conditions that the shares for which scrip or warrants are
exchangeable may be sold by the Corporation and the proceeds thereof
distributed to the holders of scrip or warrants, or subject to any other
conditions which the Board of Directors may impose.

5.3.Transfers of Stock. Subject to any transfer restrictions then in

force, the shares of stock of the Corporation shall be transferable only upon
its books by the holders thereof in person or by their duly authorized

attorneys or legal representatives and upon such transfer the old certificates
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shall be surrendered to the Corporation by the delivery thereof to the person
in charge of the stock and transfer books and ledgers or to such other person
as the directors may designate by whom they shall be cancelled and new
certificates shall thereupon be issued. The Corporation shall be entitled to
treat the holder of record of any share or shares of stock as the holder in fact
thereof and accordingly shall not be bound to recognize any equitable or other
claim to or interest in such share on the part of any other person whether or
not it shall have express or other notice thereof save as expressly provided by
the laws of Delaware.

5.4.Record Date. For the purpose of determining the stockholders

entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of stockholders or any

adjournment thereof, or to express consent to corporate action in writing
without a meeting, or entitled to receive payment of any dividend or other
distribution or the allotment of any rights, or entitled to exercise any rights
in respect of any change, conversion, or exchange of stock or for the purpose
of any other lawful action, the Board of Directors may fix, in advance, a
record date, which shall not be more than sixty (60) days nor less than ten

(10) days before the date of such meeting, nor more than sixty (60) days prior
to any other action. If no such record date is fixed by the Board of Directors,
the record date for determining stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at

C a meeting of stockholders shall be at the close of business on the day next
preceding the day on which notice is given, or, if notice is waived, at the close
of business on the day next preceding the day on which the meeting is held;
the record date for determining stockholders entitled to express consent to

corporate action in writing without a meeting, when no prior action by the
Board of Directors is necessary, shall be the day on which the first written
consent is expressed; and the record date for determining stockholders for
any other purpose shall be at the close of business on the day on which the
Board of Directors adopts the resolution relating thereto. A determination of
stockholders of record entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of
stockholders shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting; provided,
however, that the Board of Directors may fix a new record date for the

adjourned meeting.

5.5.Transfer Agent and Registrar. The Board of Directors may

appoint one or more transfer agents or transfer clerks and one or more
registrars and may require all certificates of stock to bear the signature or
signatures of any of them.

5.6.Dividends.

1. Power to Declare. Dividends upon the capital stock of the

Corporation, subject to the provisions of the Certificate of
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Incorporation, if any, may be declared by the Board of Directors at any
regular or special meeting, pursuant to law. Dividends may be paid in
cash, in property, or in shares of the capital stock, subject to the

provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation and the laws of Delaware.

2. Reserves. Before payment of any dividend, there may be
set aside out of any funds of the Corporation available for dividends
such sum or sums as the directors from time to time, in their absolute
discretion, think proper as a reserve or reserves to meet contingencies,
or for equalizing dividends, or for repairing or maintaining any
property of the Corporation, or for such other purpose as the directors
shall think conducive to the interest of the Corporation, and the
directors may modify or abolish any such reserve in the manner in
which it was created.

5.7.Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Certificates. No certificates for
shares of stock of the Corporation shall be issued in place of any certificate

alleged to have been lost, stolen or destroyed, except upon production of such
evidence of the loss, theft or destruction and upon indemnification of the
Corporation and its agents to such extent and in such manner as the Board of
Directors may from time to time prescribe.

5.8.Inspection of Books. The stockholders of the Corporation, by a
majority vote at any meeting of stockholders duly called, or in case the
stockholders shall fail to act, the Board of Directors shall have power from
time to time to determine whether and to what extent and at what times and

places and under what conditions and regulations the accounts and books of
the Corporation (other than the stock ledger) or any of them, shall be open to
inspection of stockholders; and no stockholder shall have any right to inspect
any account or book or document of the Corporation except as conferred by
statute or authorized by the Board of Directors or by a resolution of the
stockholders.

Article VI.- Miscellaneous Management Provisions.

6.1.Checks, Drafts and Notes. All checks, drafts or orders for the

payment of money, and all notes and acceptances of the Corporation shall be
signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents as the Board of Directors
may designate.

6.2.Notices.

1. Notices to directors and stockholders may be (i) in writing

and delivered personally or mailed to the directors or stockholders at
their addresses appearing on the books of the Corporation, (ii) by
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facsimile telecommunication, when directed to a number at which the
director or stockholder has consented to receive notice, (iii) by
electronic mail, when directed to an electronic mail address at which
the director or stockholder has consented to receive notice, (iv) by other
electronic transmission, when directed to the director or stockholder.
Notice by mail shall be deemed to be given at the time when the same
shall be mailed.

2. Whenever any notice is required to be given under the

provisions of the statutes or of the Certificate of Incorporation of the
Corporation of the Corporation or of these by-laws, a written waiver
signed by the person or persons entitled to said notice, or waiver by
electronic transmission by the person entitled to said notice, whether
before or after the time stated therein or the meeting or action to
which such notice relates, shall be deemed equivalent to notice.
Attendance of a person at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice
of such meeting except when the person attends a meeting for the

express purpose of objecting, at the beginning of the meeting, to the
transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called
or convened.

6.3.Conflict of Interest. No contract or transaction between the

Corporation and one or more of its directors or officers, or between the
Corporation and any other corporation, partnership, association, or other
organization in which one or more of its directors or officers are directors or
officers, or have a financial interest, shall be void or voidable solely for this
reason, or solely because the director or officer is present at or participates in
the meeting of the board of or committee thereof which authorized the
contract or transaction, or solely because his or their votes are counted for
such purpose, if: (i) the material facts as to his relationship or interest and
as to the contract or transaction are disclosed or are known to the Board of
Directors or the committee and the board or committee in good faith

authorizes the contract or transaction by the affirmative vote of a majority of
the disinterested directors, even though the disinterested directors be less

than a quorum; or (ii) the material facts as to his relationship or interest and
as to the contract or transaction are disclosed or are known to the
stockholders of the Corporation entitled to vote thereon, and the contract or
transaction as specifically approved in good faith by vote of such
stockholders; or (iii) the contract or transaction is fair as to the Corporation
as of the time it is authorized, approved or ratified, by the Board of Directors,
a committee or the stockholders. Common or interested directors may be
counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a meeting of the Board of
Directors or of a committee which authorizes the contract or transaction.
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6.4.Voting of Securities owned by this Corporation. Subject

always to the specific directions of the Board of Directors, (i) any shares or
other securities issued by any other Corporation and owned or controlled by
this Corporation may be voted in person at any meeting of security holders of
such other corporation by the President of this Corporation if he is present at
such meeting, or in his absence by the Treasurer of this Corporation if he is

present at such meeting, and (ii) whenever, in the judgment of the President,
it is desirable for this Corporation to execute a proxy or written consent in
respect to any shares or other securities issued by any other Corporation and
owned by this Corporation, such proxy or consent shall be executed in the
name of this Corporation by the President, without the necessity of any
authorization by the Board of Directors, affixation of corporate seal or
countersignature or attestation by another officer, provided that if the
President is unable to execute such proxy or consent by reason of sickness,
absence from the United States or other similar cause, the Treasurer may
execute such proxy or consent. Any person or persons designated in the
manner above stated as the proxy or proxies of this Corporation shall have

full right, power and authority to vote the shares or other securities issued by
such other corporation and owned by this Corporation the same as such
shares or other securities might be voted by this Corporation.

Article Vll. - Indemnification.

7.1.Right to Indernnification. Each person who was or is made a

party or is threatened to be made a party to or is otherwise involved in any
action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or
investigative (a "Proceeding"), by reason of being or having been a director or
officer of the Corporation or serving or having served at the request of the

Corporation as a director, trustee, officer, employee or agent of another
corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise,
including service with respect to an employee benefit plan (an "Indemnitee"),
whether the basis of such proceeding is alleged action or failure to act in an
official capacity as a director, trustee, officer, employee or agent or in any
other capacity while serving as a director, trustee, officer, employee or agent,
shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Corporation to the fullest
extent authorized by the Delaware General Corporation Law, as the same
exists or may hereafter be amended (but, in the case of any such amendment,

only to the extent that such amendment permits the Corporation to provide
broader indemnification rights than permitted prior thereto) (as used in this
Article 7, the "Delaware Law"), against all expense, liability and loss

(including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines, ERISA excise taxes or penalties
and amounts paid in settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by such
Indemnitee in connection therewith and such indemnification shall continue
as to an Indemnitee who has ceased to be a director, trustee, officer, employee
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or agent and shall inure to the benefit of the Indemnitee's heirs, executors
and administrators; provided, however, that, except as provided in §7.2
hereof with respect to Proceedings to enforce rights to indemnification, the

Corporation shall indemnify any such Indemnitee in connection with a
Proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by such Indemnitee only if such
Proceeding (or part thereof) was authorized by the board of directors of the
Corporation. The right to indemnification conferred in this Article 7 shall be
a contract right and shall include the right to be paid by the Corporation the

expenses (including attorneys' fees) incurred in defending any such
Proceeding in advance of its final disposition (an "Advancement of

Expenses"); provided, however, that, if the Delaware Law so requires, an
Advancement of Expenses incurred by an Indemnitee shall be made only

upon delivery to the Corporation of an undertaking (an "Undertaking"), by or
on behalf of such Indemnitee, to repay all amounts so advanced if it shall
ultimately be determined by final judicial decision from which there is no
further right to appeal (a "Final Adjudication") that such Indemnitee is not
entitled to be indemnified for such expenses under this Article 7 or otherwise.

7.2.Right of Indernnitee to Bring Suit. If a claim under §7.1
hereof is not paid in full by the Corporation within sixty days after a written
claim has been received by the Corporation, except in the case of a claim for
an Advancement of Expenses, in which case the applicable period shall be

twenty days, the Indemnitee may at any time thereafter bring suit against
the Corporation to recover the unpaid amount of the claim. If successful in
whole or in part in any such suit, or in a suit brought by the Corporation to
recover an Advancement of Expenses pursuant to the terms of an
Undertaking, the Indemnitee shall be entitled to be paid also the expense of

prosecuting or defending such suit. In (i) any suit brought by the Indemnitee
to enforce a right to indemnification hereunder (but not in a suit brought by
the Indemnitee to enforce a right to an Advancement of Expenses) it shall be
a defense that, and (ii) in any suit by the Corporation to recover an
Advancement of Expenses pursuant to the terms of an Undertaking the

Corporation shall be entitled to recover such expenses upon a Final
Adjudication that, the Indemnitee has not met the applicable standard of
conduct set forth in the Delaware Law. Neither the failure of the Corporation

(including its board of directors, independent legal counsel, or its
stockholders) to have made a determination prior to the commencement of
such suit that indemnification of the Indemnitee is proper in the
circumstances because the Indemnitee has met the applicable standard of
conduct set forth in the Delaware Law, nor an actual determination by the

Corporation (including its board of directors, independent legal counsel, or its
stockholders) that the Indemnitee has not met such applicable standard of
conduct, shall create a presumption that the Indemnitee has not met the

applicable standard of conduct or, in the case of such a suit brought by the
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Indemnitee, be a defense to such suit. In any suit brought by the Indemnitee
to enforce a right to indemnification or to an Advancement of Expenses
hereunder, or by the Corporation to recover an Advancement of Expenses

pursuant to the terms of an Undertaking, the burden of proving that the
Indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified, or to such Advancement of

Expenses, under this Article 7 or otherwise shall be on the Corporation.

7.3.Non-Exclusivity of Rights. The rights to indemnification and
to the Advancement of Expenses conferred in this Article 7 shall not be
exclusive of any other right which any person may have or hereafter acquire
under any statute, the Corporation's Certificate of Incorporation, by-law,
agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or otherwise.

7.4.Insurance. The Corporation may maintain insurance, at its

expense, to protect itself and any director, officer, employee or agent of the
Corporation or another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other
enterprise against any expense, liability or loss, whether or not the
Corporation would have the power to indemnify such person against such
expense, liability or loss under this Article 7 or under the Delaware Law.

7.5.Indemnification of Employees and Agents of the

Corporation. The Corporation may, to the extent authorized from time to
time by the board of directors, grant rights to indemnification, and to the
Advancement of Expenses, to any employee or agent of the.Corporation to the
fullest extent of the provisions of this Article 7 with respect to the
indemnification and Advancement of Expenses of directors and officers of the

Corporation.

Article Vill. - Amendments.

8.1.Amendments. The by-laws of the Corporation may be altered,
amended or repealed at any meeting of the Board of Directors upon notice
thereof in accordance with these by-laws, or at any meeting of the
stockholders by the vote of the holders of the majority of the stock issued and
outstanding and entitled to vote at such meeting, in accordance with the

provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation and of the
laws of Delaware.

A/72360426 1/3006914-0000327967
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE OF TMX GROUP LIMITED

TMX GROUP
LIMITED*

S n TMXGnroupUS ShorLantBroken om Ex a ge ne' - AphaExenange TrayporttHoldings

Federat) (Delaware) (Ontano) (Federat) (Quebec) (Federal) (UK)

CDS and TSXU ne' C e k ny V Traypo mite

CDS In aations . 25492 Ontano CanBa UN:sted VraoTech Trayport PTE Limited'

Sonwareentucklungsges m b h' (Smgagre)

2550321 ntano AgnClear Inc • T4 MX US 1 Inc

(Alberta) (Delaware)

123 Sonwate MX US 2 Inc

indaP ate (Delaware)

(India)93994

Exchange LLC
2550322 Ontano (Delaware)

Inc * s--

(Ontano}

v 33 BOX Holdngs
GroupLLC

(Delaware)

BOX Dptions

Market LLC

As of May 31 2019 (Delaware)

* Foregn Indrect Ambda

Moritreal Chmate

Exchangelnc*

(Federal)

BOX Exchange LLC Exhibit C-5 page 1



Corporate Structure of TMX Group Limited
(See attached Organizational Chart)

Affiliated Entities Information

* Indicates Foreign Indirect Affiliates

Name Description/Nature of Affiliation

TMX Group Limited* Holding corporation of the TMX Group of companies, including Alpha
and the CDS companies.

TSX Inc.* TSX Inc. owns and operates Toronto Stock Exchange, a senior equities
market, providing investors with access to the Canadian marketplace.
TMX Market Insights is a division of TSX Inc. and sells real-time data,
data delivery services and other market data to a global customer base.

AgriClear Inc.* Does not carry on active business.

Alpha Exchange Inc.* Alpha Exchange Inc. is an automated exchange which trades securities of
qualified issuers. Alpha Exchange offers trading in securities listed on
Toronto Stock Exchange and TSX Venture Exchange.

BOX Holdings Group LLC BOX Holdings Group LLC is the sole member of BOX Options Market
LLC.

BOX Options Market LLC BOX Options Market LLC operates an electronic trading platform for
options on U.S. individual securities, indices, exchange-traded funds.

Canadian Derivatives Clearing Corporation* CDCC offers clearing and settlement services for all transactions carried
out on MX and certain OTC derivatives. It is the only clearinghouse in
North America to offer clearing services on equity options, futures and

options on future products.

Canadian Derivatives Clearing Corporation Does not carry on active business.
(U.S.A.) Inc.*

Canadian Unlisted Board Inc.* CUB offers an internet web-based system for dealers to report completed
trades in unlisted and unquoted equity securities in Ontario as required
pursuant to Part VI of Regulation 1015 to the Ontario Securities Act.

CDSClearing and Depository Services Inc.* CDSClearing and Depository Services Inc. (CDS Clearing) is Canada's
national securities depository, clearing and settlement hub - supporting

Canada's equity, fixed income and money markets.

CDS Innovations Inc.* CDS Innovations Inc. is the premier source for information on Canadian
securities and is ideally positioned to develop and provide new solutions
that meet market demand for securities data and related services.

Montréal Exchange Inc.* MX is Canada's only standardized financial derivatives exchange,
offering expertise in financial derivatives, information technology and

clearing services. It aims to operate and develop high quality market and
clearing services for Canadian and international clients.

Montréal Climate Exchange Inc.* Does not carry on active business.

MX US 1, Inc. MX US 1, Inc. is a single-purpose holding company for the interest in
MX US 2, Inc.

MX US 2, Inc. MX US 2, Inc. is a single-purpose holding company for the interest in
BOX Holdings Company and BOX SRO.

Shorcan Brokers Limited* Shorean is Canada's first inter-dealer broker, providing facilities for
matching orders for Canadian federal, provincial, corporate and mortgage

bonds and treasury bills and derivatives for anonymous buyers and sellers
in the secondary market.
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Name Description/Nature of Affiliation

Shorcan Digital Currency Network Inc.* Does not carry on active business.

The Canadian Depository for Securities The Canadian Depository for Securities Limited (CDS Limited) is a
Limited* valued partner to securities market participants, providing reliable, cost-

effective depository, clearing, settlement, regulatory and information
services. They deliver innovative, value-added solutions that help their

stakeholders maintain a competitive capital market in Canada and build a
strategic global advantage.

TMX Exchange Services Limited* TMX Exchange Services Limited is focused on driving new business
opportunities in U.K. and European markets across the TMX Group
portfolio, which includes financial services and exchanges in the equities,
derivatives, data, energy and fixed income markets.

TMX Group US Inc.* Holding company of MX US Inc. and TSX US Inc.

Trayport Holdings Limited* Holding company for the Trayport group of companies.

Trayport, Inc.* A company which provides support and sales leads to the main Trayport
business from the USA.

Trayport Limited* The main operating entity and contracting party for all Trayport products
and services.

Trayport PTE Limited* A company which provides support and sales leads to the main Trayport
business from Singapore.

TSX Venture Exchange Inc.* TSXV is Canada's junior listings market, providing companies at the

early stages of growth the opportunity to raise capital. TSXV offers an
excellent venue for growth, while offering investors a well-regulated

market for investing.

TSX FX Inc.* Foreign exchange services related to the transfer agent and corporate trust
services provided by TSX Trust Company.

TSX Trust Company* Transfer agent and corporate trust services. The transfer agent related
business consists of registrar services to issuer clients, which includes

maintaining registers of shareholders, managing the issuance of shares
from treasury, mailings to shareholders, coordinating shareholder
meetings, dividend distributions and transfer of securities. The corporate
trust services consists of, acting astrustee for debt instruments and rights

plans, depository for takeover offers, warrant agent, subscription receipt
agent and agent for voluntary escrow arrangements.

TSX US Inc.* Does not carry on active business.

VisoTech Softwareentwicklungsges.m.b.h.* VisoTech provides advanced algorithmic trading solutions to customers

in the European spot power and natural gas markets, empowering clients
to use VisoTech's pre-defined algorithms to develop their own customized

trading strategies.

123 Software India Private Limited* Does not carry on active business.

2549283 Ontario Inc.* Holding company

2550321 Ontario Inc.* Holding company for 123 Software India Private Limited

2550322 Ontario Inc.* Holding company for 123 Software India Private Limited
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Amendment to:

Exhibit D

Request:
For each subsidiary or affiliate of the exchange, provide unconsolidated financial
statements for the latest fiscal year. Such financial statements shall consist, at a
minimum, of a balance sheet and an income statement with such footnotes and other
disclosures as are necessary to avoid rendering the financial statements misleading. If any
affiliate or subsidiary is required by another Commission rule to submit annual financial
statements, a statement to that effect, with a citation to the other Commission rule, may
be provided in lieu of the financial statements required here.

Exhibit D is hereby amended by deleting the prior response in its entirety and
inserting a new response to Exhibit D as set forth below.

Response:

2018 financial information is provided for the entities set forth below. Financial
information for the Exchange is included in Exhibit I. Financial information for Foreign
Indirect Affiliates, as defined in Exhibit C, is not included.

1. Exhibit D-1, BOX Holdings Group LLC

2. Exhibit D-2, BOX Options Market LLC

3. Exhibit D-3, TMX Group Limited

4. Exhibit D-4, Bourse de Montréal Inc.

5. Exhibit D-5, MX US 1, Inc.

6. Exhibit D-6, MX US 2, Inc.
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BOX HOLDINGS GROUP LLC

CONSOLIDATEDSTATEMENTOF INCOME

FORTHEYEAR ENDEDDECEMBER31, 2018

UNAUDITED

Revenues:
Transaction fees, net of VPR discount $ 12,747,103
Non-transaction fees 4,196,064

Options Price Reporting Authority (OPRA) income 1,820,072
Other income 163,225

Total Revenues 18,926,464

Expenses:
Professional services 8,676,520
Employee costs 3,861,948
Depreciation and amortization 2,565,409
Communications & data processing 590,821
Rent of facilities 406,064
Office-related 236,975
Other 196,951

Total Expenses 25,211,208

Operating income (6,284,744)

Interest Income 30,000

Net income $ (6,254,744)
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BOX HOLDINGS GROUP LLC

CONSOLIDATEDBALANCESHEET

AS OF DECEMBER31,2018

UNAUDITED

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash $ 13,935,267

Accountsreceivable 8,083,740

Note receivable - current 1,000,000

Other current assets 333,605

Total Current Assets 23,352,612

Fixed Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation:

Computer equipment, software and leasehold improvements 5,259,607

TOTAL ASSETS 28,612,219

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable & accrued expenses 2,098,452

Payable to related parties 1,110,000

Current portion of deferred rent 22,000

Total Current Liabilities 3,230,452

Long Term Liabilities:

Deferred rent, non-current 118,473

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,348,925

TOTAL MEMBERS' EQUITY 25,263,294

TOTAL LIABILITIES& MEMBERS' EQUITY $ 28,612,219
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BOXOptions Market LLC

Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2018
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BOXOptions Market LLC

Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2018
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Tel: 617-422-0700 one International Place

DBO Fax: 617-422-0909 BoSton,MA02110-1745www.bdo.com

Independent Auditor's Report

Boardof Directors and Member
BOXOptions Market LLC
Boston,Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BOXOptions Market LLC,which comprise
the balance sheet as of December 31, 2018, and the related statements of income, member's equity,
andcash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordancewith auditing standardsgenerally accepted in the United States of
America.Thosestandards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessmentof the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments,the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financialstatements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of BOX Options Market LLC as of December 31, 2018, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

[SignedBDOUSA,LLP]

June 18,2019

BDOUSA,LLP,aDelaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S.member of BDO intemational timited, a UK companylimited by guarantee, and forms part of
the intemational BDO network of independent member finns.

BDOisthe brand namefor the BDOnetwork and for eachof the BDOMember Firms.
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Financial Statements (in thousands of U.S.dollars)
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BOXOptions Market LLC

Balance Sheet

(in thousandsof U.S.dollars)

December31, 2018

Assets

Current Assets:
Cash $ 13,116
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of nit 8,024
Note receivable from BOXOptions ExchangeLLC,bearing

interest at a rate of 3%,due December2019 1,000
Other current assets 246

Total Current Assets 22,386

Computer Equipment, Software and Leasehold
improvements, net (Note 3) 5,255

Total Assets $ 27,641

Liabilities and Member's Equity

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 1,957
Payable to related parties (Note 6) 1,110
Current portion of deferred rent 22

Total Current Liabilities 3,089

Long-term Liabilities:
Deferred rent 118

Total Liabilities 3,207

Member's Equity:
Member's contributions 27,563
Contributed surplus 4,956
Accumulated dividend distributions (59,830)
Accumulated earnings 51,745

Total Member's Equity 24,434

Commitments (Note 5)

Total Liabilities and Member's Equity $ 27,641

Seeaccompanyingnotes to financial statements.
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BOXOptions Market LLC

Statement of income

(in thousandsof U.S.dollars)

Yearended December31, 2018

Revenues:
Transaction fees, net of $592recognizedfor volume

performance rights plan (Note 11) $ 12,747
Non-Transaction fees 4,196
Options Price Reporting Authority (OPRA)income 1,820
Other income 163

Total Revenues 18,926

Expenses:
Professionalservices:

Technical and operational (Note 5 & 6) 4,649
Financial and administrative (Note 5 & 6) 881
Consulting (Note 5 & 6) 530
Other 2,383

Employeecosts 3,721
Depreciation and amortization (Note 3) 2,565
Communicationsanddata processing 585
Rent of facilities (Note 5) 406
Office-related 193
Other 187

Total Expenses 16,100

Operating Income 2,826

Interest Income 30

Net income $ 2,856

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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BOX Options Market LLC

Statement of Member's Equity
(in thousands of U.S.dollars)

Total
Member's Contributed Accumulated Accumulated Member's

Contributions Surplus Distributions Earnings Equity

Balance, December 31, 2017 $ 27,563 $ 4,364 $ (57,835) $ 48,889 $ 22,981

Net income - - - 2,856 2,856

Share-based payment transactions (Note 11) - 592 - - 592

Distributions - - (1,995) - (1,995)

Balance, December 31, 2018 $ 27,563 $ 4,956 $ (59,830) $ 51,745 $ 24,434

See accompanyingnotes to financial statements.
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BOXOptiOns Market LLC

Statement of Cash Flows

(in thousands of U.S.dollars)

Year endedDecember31, 2018

Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Net income $ 2,856
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 2,565
Share-based payment transactions (Note 11) 592
Changesin operating assets and liabilities:

Increase in accounts receivable (3,262)
increase in other current assets (33)
Increasein accounts payable and accrued expenses 682
Increase in payable to related parties 557
Decreasein deferred rent (45)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 3,912

CashUsed in Investing Activities:
Purchaseof computer equipment, software and leasehold
improvements (2,173)

CashUsed in Financing Activities:
Distributions (1,995)

Net Decrease in Cash (256)

Cash, beginningof year 13,372

Cash, end of year $ 13,116

Supplemental CashFlow Information:

Non-Cash investing Activities:

The Companyacquired $307 of computer equipment, software and leasehold improvements, which
was unpaid as at December31, 2018.

Seeaccompanyingnotes to financial statements.
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BOXOptions Market LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

(in thousandsof U.S.dollars, except Note 11)

1.Nature of Operations

BOXOptions Market LLC ("BOX Market" or the "Company") is a Delaware limited liability company
which was formed in connection with the May2012 reorganization (the "Reorganization") of Boston
Options ExchangeGroupLLC.
BOXMarket is an equity options market whose principal businessis providing a marketplace for
Participants to trade options on individual U.S.equities, U.S.equity indices and U.S.exchange
traded funds.BOXMarket includes an electronic trading system as well as a physical trading floor
that provides our customers an efficient and transparent options marketplace and an opportunity
for price improvement on marketable orders. BOXMarket is regulated by BOXExchangeLLC,a
recognizednational securities exchange regulated by the U.S.Securities and ExchangeCommission
("SEC").

BOX Market is a wholly owned subsidiary of BOX Holdings Group LLC. ("BOX Holdings").
Substantial equity members in BOX Holdings include Bourse de Montréal inc. ("Bourse") and
affiliates of Interactive BrokersGroup LLC ("lAB"),Credit Suisse,LabMorganCorporation, Citigroup
Financial Products, Inc.,UBS (USA) Inc.,and Citadet Derivatives Group, LLC.

2.Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America ("U.S.GAAP") requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and to disclose
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts
of revenue and expenses during the reported year. Significant areas of judgment include the
determination of the fair value of stock appreciation rights and the determination of the useful
lives of computer equipment and software. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash

Cash includes amounts on deposit with banks. Certain amounts on deposit with banks exceed
United States Federal Deposit insuranceCorporation insured limits.

Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable consist primarily of transaction fees and the Company'sshare of distributable
revenue receivable from Options Price Reporting Authority ("OPRA").

Attowance for doubtful accounts is maintained at a level that management believes to be
sufficient to absorb estimated lossesin the accounts receivable portfolio. It is calculated basedon
several factors including, but not limited to, a continuous assessment of the collectability of each
account, the length of time a receivable is past due and the historical experience with the
particular customer. Management reviews the allowance for doubtful accounts monthly and makes
changes to the reserve through the provision for baddebts as appropriate.

9
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BOX Options Market LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

(in thousands of U.S.dollars, except Note 11)

Computer Equipment, Software and Leasehold improvements

Assetsconsist of computer hardware, equipment, software and leasehold improvements.

BOXMarket's management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation policies
for its computer hardware, equipment and software. The estimated useful life represents the
projected period of time during which the asset will be productively employed by the Company
and is determined by management based on many factors, including historical experience with
similar assets, projected technology, process and software life cycles that could change due to
technical innovations and competitor actions in responseto relatively volatile industry cycles.

To the extent actual useful lives are more or less than previously estimated lives, the Company
may decrease or increase its depreciation charge or will write off or write down technicatty
obsolete or non-strategic assets.

The straight-line method and estimated lives for the following assets are as follows:

Assets Period

Hardware and equipment 3 years
Trading-related software 5 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the estimated useful life or the
minimum lease term usingthe straight-line method ranging between four to ten years.

Computer equipment and leasehold improvements are carried at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization. Maintenance and repairs that do not improve efficiency or extend
economic life are expensed as incurred.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of such assets may not be recoverable.If the
Company determines an impairment of a long-lived asset has occurred, the asset will be written
down to its estimated fair value, which is based primarity on expected discounted future cash
flows. No impairment chargeswere recorded during the year ended December31, 2018.

Revenue Recognition

BOXMarket generates its revenues by providing services to domestic customers in the financial
markets, including BOX Holdings' equity members. Fees for services are based largely on system
capacity usageand customer volumes.Asa result, the Company's revenues may fluctuate based
on the performance of financial markets. Transaction fees are comprised of fees charged to
Broker Dealers, Market Makers, Public Customers and ProfessionalCustomers and are recognized
on a trade date basis.

OPRArevenue consists of income received for consolidated options information provided by BOX
Market and other participating exchanges to the Options Price Reporting Authority ("OPRA"),
which is then sold to outside customers and news services.BOXMarket's revenue from OPRAis
recognized monthly basedon its pro-rata share of industry trade (not contract) volume.

10
BOX ExchangeLLC Exhibit D-2 PageI l



BOXOptions Market LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

(in thousandsof U.S.dollars, except Note 11)

Additionally, BOX recognizes certain fees not directly related to trading activity such as
technology fees, participant fees, and market support and administration fees on a monthly basis
as invoiced to the participants.

Appreciation Rights Plan

The Company accounts for its appreciation rights plans using the fair value based method, under
which the compensation cost attributable to awards to employees is measured at the fair value
and recognized as Employee Costs, on a tranche basis,over the vesting period of each plan, with a
corresponding increase in liabilities. As the appreciation rights are settled in cash, the liability is
re-measured at each reporting date and at settlement date based on the fair value of the
appreciation rights. Any changesin the liability are recognized in profit or loss.

Share-Based Payment Transactions

Share-based payment transactions include the VPR program initiated by BOX Holdings for the
benefit of VPR program subscribers, who are also customers of the Company.The Company is
under no obligation to settle these arrangements and, therefore, accounts for them as equity
settled share-based payment transactions (contributions from BOXHoldings), which are considered
sales incentives and as such are measured at fair value each period until the customer's
performance obligation is complete. This sales incentive is recognized over the vesting period as
a reduction of revenue.

New RevenueAccounting Standard - (ASU)2014-09

in May 2014,the FASBissuedASU2014-09, "Revenuefrom Contracts with Customers: Topic 606"
("ASU 2014-09"), to supersedesnearly all existing revenue recognition guidance under U.S.GAAP.
The core principle of ASU2014-09 is to recognize revenues when promised goods or services are
transferred to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration that is expected to be
received for those goods or services. ASU2014-09 defines a five step process to achieve this core
principle and, in doing so, it is possiblemore judgment and estimates may be required within the
revenue recognition process than required under existing U.S. GAAP including identifying
performanceobligations in the contract, estimating the amount of variable consideration to
include in the transaction price and allocating the transaction price to each separate performance
obligation. ASU2014-09 is effective for the Company in the year ending December31, 2019, using
either of two methods: (i) retrospective to each prior reporting period presented with the option
to elect certain practical expedients as defined within ASU2014-09; or (ii) retrospective with the
cumulative effect of initially applying ASU2014-09 recognized at the date of initial application
and providing certain additional disclosuresas defined per ASU2014-09. The Companyis currently
evaluating the impact of its pending adoption of ASU2014-09 on its financial statements.

New Lease Accounting Standard - (ASU) 2016-02

in July 2018, the FASBissued ASU2018-11, Leases (Topic 842): Targeted improvements, which
allows for an additional transition method under the modified retrospective approach for the
adoption of Topic 842.The two permitted transition methods are now: (1) to apply the new lease
requirements at the beginning of the earliest period presented, and (2) to apply the new lease
requirements at the effective date. The Company intends to adopt Topic 842 on January 1, 2019
by applying the new lease requirements at the effective date. The Companyalso intends to elect
the package of practical expedients permitted under the transition guidance within the new
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BOXOptions Market LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

(in thousandsof U.S.dollars, except Note 11)

standard, which, among other things, allows the Company to carry forward the historical lease
classification. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of its pending adoption of ASU
2016-02 on its financial statements.

3.Computer Equipment, Software and Leasehold improvements

Computer equipment, software and leasehold improvements as at December 31, 2018 consisted
of:

December 31, 2018

Computer equipment $ 18,223
Computer software 46,481
Leasehold improvements 1,357

Accumulated depreciation and amortization (60,806)

$ 5,255

For the year ended December 31, 2018, BOXMarket capitalized software development, hardware
and leasehold improvement costs of $2,175 ($1,667 acquired from Bourse). These transactions
occurred in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange amount, which
was the amount of consideration agreed upon and established by the related parties (Bourseand
BOXMarket) as per the Technical and Operational ServicesAgreement (Note 5).

Aggregate depreciation and amortization expense related to computer equipment, software and
leasehold improvements was $2,565 in 2018.

4.Income Taxes

The Company is a single member limited liability company wholly-owned by BOX Holdings, and
treated asa disregardedentity for income tax purposes.The Internal RevenueCode ("IRC")
provides that any income or loss is passed through to the individual members for federal income
tax purposes.The Company is subject to certain entity-level taxes in some states, the amount of
which is immaterial.Accordingly, the Companyhas not provided for federal or state income taxes.

In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC")Topic 740, a tax position is a
benefit only if it is "more likely than not" that the tax position would be sustained in a tax
examination, with a tax examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the
largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50%likely of being realized on examination. For
tax positions not meeting the "more likely than not" test, no tax benefit is recorded. The
Company recognizes estimated interest, penalties and income taxes related to uncertain tax
positions in income tax expense. As of December 31, 2018, the Companydetermined that it had
no material uncertain tax positions. As a result, the Company had no accrual or provision for
uncertain tax positions as of December31, 2018.The Company's income tax returns are generally
open for examination by U.S.federal and state taxing authorities. The Company is not currently
under examination by any U.S.federal or state income taxing authority. On December 22, 2017,
H.R.1, the Tax Act, was enacted by U.S.government. The Tax Act includes significant changesto
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BOXOptions Market LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

(in thousandsof U.S.dollars, except Note 11)

the Internal RevenueCodeof 1986 that changed the taxation of businessentities. These changes
did not result in a significant impact on the Company.

5.Commitments and Contracts

Commitments

In November 2016, BOXMarket entered into a three-year operating sublet lease agreement with
the ChicagoMercantile Exchange ("CME")for space to accommodate the Trading Floor that the
Company launched in 2017. BOXMarket was offered an inducement as part of the agreement,
which is being amortized over the minimum lease term using the straight-line method.The lease
term endson December31,2019.

In May 2011, BOXMarket relocated to a new location in Chicago and entered into a ten-year
operating leaseagreement. BOXMarket was offered an inducement as part of the agreement. The
incentive is being amortized over the minimum lease term using the straight-line method. The
leaseterm endson November 30,2021.

In September2010, BOXMarket relocated to a new location in Boston and entered into a five-year
sublet lease agreement. In September 2014,the Companyrenewed this lease agreement through
December31,2019.

Aggregate future minimum rentals for the Bostonand Chicagospacesas at December 31, 2018 are
as follows:

Yearsending December31,

2019 $ 582
2020 167
2021and thereafter 155

$ 904

Contracts

BOXMarket has entered into agreements with related parties Bourseand BOXExchange LLC to
provide certain administrative, regulatory and technical services for certain software and
computer hardware equipment, and maintain and support certain data transmissions and other
services, which include:

(i) A Technical and Operational Services Agreement ("TOSA") with Bourse to provide BOX
Market with certain software and computer hardware equipment, and maintain and
support certain data transmissions and other services.Operational costs shall be based on
an agreed upon annual budget. Any additional developments and services requested shall
be charged at the agreed upon development rate. All rates are revised on a yearly basis.
The term of the agreement is for the period ending December31, 2018. In February 2019,
BOX Options Market LLC and Bourse came to an agreement to terminate TOSA and
transition the related servicesandsupport to the Company.
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BOXOptions Market LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

(in thousandsof U.S.dollars, except Note 11)

(ii) A Facility Agreement with BOX Exchange LLC ("Exchange") to provide BOX Market with a
Self-Regulatory Organization "SRO" structure and ongoing oversight of the market
operations and regulatory functions of BOXMarket was entered into on October 1, 2011.
This agreement was mutually terminated as of December 31, 2018 and replaced by an
Administrative Services Agreement ("ASA") effective January 1, 2019 for Exchange to
provide certain regulatory, administrative and support services to BOXMarket. Pursuant
to this agreement, Exchangemanages the Company's billing function and is entitled to
collect all revenues generated by BOXMarket's operations as well as any fines, fees and
disgorgements due the Company.Additionally, any and all payments collected by Exchange
may be usedat Exchange's sole discretion, as is any cash distributed to BOXMarket.

In the event Exchange,at any time, does not hold sufficient funds to meet all regulatory
requirements, BOXMarket shall reimburse Exchangefor all such costs and expenses upon
request. Additionally, Exchange shall reimburse BOX Market for costs and expenses
incurred by the Companyfor regulatory purposes. This agreement will remain in effect
until May 10, 2032, or 180 days after the Company is no longer a registered securities
exchange.

(iii) An Administrative Services Agreement with BOXExchange LLC to provide the Company
with certain support services such as legal, communications and administrative support.
The agreement will remain in force until BOX Exchange LLC is dissolved, or until it is
terminated by mutual agreement.

6.Related-Party Transactions

The financial statements reflect the capital contributions of cash and/or services by all equity
members of BOXMarket as specified in BOXMarket's Amended and Restated Operating Agreement
(the "Agreement") dated January 26,2005.

In accordance with the terms of the Technical and Operational Services Agreement ("TOSA")
referred to in Note 5, the Company incurred professional fees related to software maintenance
with related parties of approximately $6,315 in 2018. Amounts owed to Bourse as at December
31,2018was$1,110andis reflectedaspayableto relatedparties onthe balancesheet.

Aragon Solutions is a consultant for BOX Market that also owns units of BOXHoldings Group LLC.
This consultant received $97 for consulting services in 2018.

Evolution Technologies is a consultant and advisor to the Company'smanagement team. Evolution
Technologies received $422 for consulting services in 2018.

In accordance with the terms of the Facility Agreement with BOXExchangeLLC,referred to in
Note 5, the Companyreimbursed BOXExchangeLLC $310for expensespaid on its behalf in 2018.
As of December 31, 2018, this Facility Agreement was terminated and replaced with an
Administrative ServicesAgreement ("ASA")effective January 1, 2019. SeeNote 5.

Amounts receivable relating to expense reimbursement from BOXExchangeLLC as at December
31, 2018 were $7,851,which is included in total accounts receivable as reported on the balance
sheet.
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BOX Options Market LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

(in thousandsof U.S.dollars, except Note 11)

The $1 million note receivable from BOXExchangeLLCwas renewed for one year and is due on
December 31,2019.

These transactions occurred in the normal course of operations and were measured at the
exchange amount, which was the amount of consideration agreed upon and established by the
related parties.

In 2018 the Companypaid $33 in expenses on behalf of BOXDigital Markets LLC.

7.Member's Equity

BOXOptions Market LLCis a single member LLC,wholly-owned by BOXHoldings Group LLC,and
hasno units outstanding. There were no movements in units during the year.

8.Fair Value Measurements

The Company doesnot own any assets that require Fair Value analysis, however the Companyuses
a measurement of Fair Value in calculations related to the fair value of the Executive Rights plans
and in the calculation of the discount associatedwith the Volume Performance Rights plans, which
requires the use of Fair Value measurements according to guidance in Codification Topic 820, Fair
Value Measurement and Disclosures. SeeNote 10.

9.Concentration of Credit Risk

Approximately 77%of the revenues generated by the Companyfor the year ended December 31,
2018 were generated by three approved participants.

10.Appreciation Rights Plan

Executive Rights Plan ("Executive Plan")

In April 2015, BOX Market adopted an Executive Rights Plan pursuant to which certain key
executive members of BOX Market were granted appreciation rights. The appreciation right
entitles the participants to receive from BOXMarket a cash payment no later than February 14 of
each year beginning with February 14, 2016.The appreciation right, with respect to each plan
participant for each year shall be determined by multiplying such plan participant's award
percentage by the incremental difference, if any, obtained by subtracting the greater of (1) the
enterprise value as of January 1 of the prior year or (2) the enterprise value as of January 1, 2015
from the enterprise value as of January 1 of the calculation year.

The appreciation rights vest in three equal tranches each year over three years from January 1,
2015. Asof January 1, 2018, the appreciate rights were fully vested.

The measurement of the fair value of the appreciation rights issued under the Executive Rights
Plan resulted in a compensation expense of nit for the year ended December 31,2018.

The Companyrecognizedcompensation expenseof $167 in 2018related to payments made in
accordancewith the terms of the Rights Plans.
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Notes to Financial Statements

(in thousands of U.S.dollars, except Note 11)

The Executive Plan rights do not have a strike price and the fair value of these rights as of
12/31/2018 is nil.

In accordancewith USGAAP,the fair value of BOX'sappreciation rights was estimated at the end
of the year using the income approach. The weighted average assumptions used in the calculation
are provided in the following table as at December31,2018.

BOXMarket uses the expected term up to the respective vesting date. Since the Company's
member units are not publicly traded and its shares are rarely traded privately, expected
volatility is estimated based on the average historical volatility of similar entities with publicly
traded shares. The risk-free rate for the expected term of the option is based on the U.S.
Treasury 3-year note rate. The fair value per member unit was calculated based on enterprise
value as calculated usinga discounted cashflow model.

ValueAssumptions . 2018

Expected dividend yield 0.0%
Expected volatility 19.96%
Expected term (years) 0.0
Risk-free interest rate 2.76%

As of December 31, 2018, the Executive Rights Plan was entitled to 4.64%of Company's
distribution.

11.Share-Based Payment Transactions

Volume Performance Rights

in January 2015, BOXMarket's parent company, BOXHoldingsGroup LLC, launched a program to
incentive subscribers to provide additional order flow to BOXMarket. In exchange for providing
this liquidity, subscribers receive volume performance rights ("VPRs"),each of which is equivalent
to 8.5ClassC equity units of BOXHoldings if the subscriber meets a certain minimum order flow
volume commitment. EachClassC equity unit of BOXHoldingsentitles the ClassC unit holder to
an economic interest in the annual distributions from BOXHoldingsto its members. If a subscriber
meets their minimum order flow volume commitment in the specified period, the VPRsheld by the
subscriber will vest over the term of the program. Once a subscriber has achieved their
performance requirement and an initial threshold of 40 VPRsand becomes protected, future VPRs
will attain protected status in tranches (increments of 20 VPRs)as the subscriber meets its
volume-based performance requirement. If a subscriber fails to meet its minimum volume
commitment, that subscriber's unprotected VPRsare available for reallocation to subscribers that
exceeded their minimum volume commitments, if any. Reallocated VPRs may be subject to
accelerated vesting over the remaining quarters of the original 5-year vesting period so that all
ClassC units associatedwith protected VPRsshall convert to ClassA units of BOXHoldingsat the
completion date in accordance with the terms of the Agreement. The expense associated with
VPRsfor the current period is based on the greater of the cumulative amount that would be
recognized on a straight line basisor the amount that would be protected at the period end.

The measurement of the VPRsissuedunder the program resulted in a reduction of transaction fees
in revenues of $592 for the year ended December 31, 2018. At December 31, 2018, there was
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Notes to Financial Statements

(in thousandsof U.S.dollars, except Note 11)

$2,369 of total unrecognized reduction of transaction fees in revenue related to unvested VPRs
granted under the Plan.

The fair value of VPRswas estimated using the fair value of BOX Holdings per member unit,
calculated based on the present value of future expected cash flows, and is being recognized
basedon vesting.

VPRactivity during the period was:

Weighted
Average

Vested and Remaining
Total Protected Contractual

YearEndedDecember 31,2018 VPRs VPRs Term

Total VPRsOutstanding at December 31, 2017 482 280 2
Additional protected VPRs - 40 -
Cancelled - - -

Total VPRsOutstanding at December 31, 2018 482 320 1

12.Subsequent Events

in February 2019, BOXMarket successfully reached an agreement with Bourseto terminate TOSA.
As a result of this settlement agreement, BOXMarket recognized a reduction of TOSAexpenses
and a one-time gain of $1,903 in 2019.

In February 2019, the Companydeclared a distribution to its member of $5,287 which included
$400 that was used by BOXHoldingsGroup for initial operating capital for BOXTechnology LLC,a
new entity formed in 2019 to take over the technology support previously provided by Bourse
under the TOSA.

In February 2019, in association with the dividends declared by the Company's board, $242of
compensation expense was recorded related to payments under the Rights Plans.

Subsequent events have been evaluated through June 18, 2019 being the date the financial
statements were approved by the Boardof Directors.
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Non-Consolidated Financial Statements of

TMX GROUP LIMITED

Year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

(unaudited)
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TMX GROUP LIMITED
Non-Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)
(unaudited)

December 31, December 31,
2018 2017

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,107 $ 18,996
Other receivables 243 1,509
Prepaid expenses 79 91
Due from related parties 1,055 13,891
Current income tax assets 5,796 -

11,280 34,487

Non-current assets:
Other non-current assets 479 611

Fair value of interest rate swaps 468 1,095
Investment in Bermuda Stock Exchange 762 762
Investment in FTSE TMX Global Debt Capital Markets Limited, at equity - 50,152
Investment in The Canadian Depository for Securities Limited 177,622 173,622
Investment in Montreal Exchange Inc. 914,690 914,690
Investment in Shorcan Brokers Limited 70,033 70,033
investment in TMX Group US Inc. 21,761 21,761
Investment in TSX Inc. 2,336,154 2,311,154
investment in TSX Trust Company 73,720 73,720
investment in Trayport Holdings Limited 941,604 945,872
investment in Alpha Exchange Inc. 170,900 -

Investment in Alpha Trading Systems Limited Partnership - 170,900
Investment in TMX Exchange Services Limited 1,000 1,000
Investment in Finexeo S.A - 16,377
Investment in 2549283 Ontario inc. 12,574 12,574
Investment in AgriClear Inc. 13 13
Term loan receivable from TSX Inc. 550,000 550,000
Deferred income tax assets 9,770 361
Total Assets $ 5,292,830 $ 5,349,184

Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities:

Trade and other payables $ 5,859 $ 9,079
Debenture - 399,755
Commercial paper 319,535 395,287
Due to related parties 13,360 14,264
Provisions 408 208

Demandloanpayable to TSXInc. 137,800 42,800
Demand loan payable to Montreal Exchange Inc. 41,000 5,000
Demand loan payable to TSX Venture Exchange Inc. 69,000 63,000
Demand loan payable to Corporation Canadienne de Compensation de Produits Derives 2,500 -

Demand loan payable to Alpha Exchange Inc. 9,000 -

Note payable to Shorcan Brokers Limited - 37,137
Note payable to CDS Clearing and Depository Services Inc. 34,000 10,000
General partnership payable -
Current income tax liabilities - 10,370

632,462 986,900

Non-currentliabilities:
Debentures 746,795 547,605

Term loan payable to 2549283 Ontario Inc. 550,000 550,000
Total Liabilities 1,929,257 2,084,505

Equity:
Share capital 2,938,015 2,915,602
Contributed surplus 1,736,430 1,735,773
Deficit (1,310,872) (1,386,696)

Total Equity 3,363,573 3,264,679

Total Liabilities and Equity $ 5,292,830 $ 5,349,184
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TMX GROUP LIMITED
Non-Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss)
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
(unaudited)

Year Ended
December 31,

2018 2017

Expenses:
Compensation and benefits $ - $ 64
Information and trading systems 3 -

General and administration 2,724 17,028
Shared services (2,380) (2,905)
Total operating expenses 347 14,187

Income (loss) from operations (347) (14,187)

Share of net income (loss) of equity accounted investees 1,233 (1,031)
Other gain 26,635 294,615
Impairment charges (15,523) -

Finance income (costs):
Finance income 218,228 412,158
Finance costs (44,209) (28,291)
Losson certain derivative instruments (31) 11,137
Net finance income 173,988 395,004

Income before income taxes 185,986 674,401

Income tax recovery (13,868) 21,664

Net income $ 199,854 $ 652,737
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TMX GROUP LIMITED
Non-Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive income
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
(unaudited)

Year Ended
December 31,

2018 2017

Net income $ 199,854 $ 652,737

Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the non-consolidated incomestatements:

Reclassification to net income of foreign currency translation differences - -

Unrealized income on translating financial statements of foreignoperations - -
Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to the
non-consolidated income statements - -

Total comprehensive income $ 199,854 $ 652,737
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TMX GROUP LIMITED
Non-Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
(unaudited)

Year Ended
December 31,

2018 2017

Common shares:
Balance, beginning of period $ 2,915,602 $ 2,896,419
Proceeds on options exercised 20,050 17,347
Cost of exercised options 2,363 1,836
Balance, end of period 2,938,015 2,915,602

Contributed surplus - share option plan:
Balance, beginning of period 1,735,773 8,930
Cost of exercised options (2,363) (1,836)
Cost of share option plan 3,020 3,306 _
Adjustments - 1,725,373
Balance, end of period 1,736,430 1,735,773

(Deficit) retained earnings:
Balance, beginning of period (1,386,696) 444,670
Net income 199,854 652,737
Dividends to equity holders (124,679) (107,853)_
Adjustments 649 (2,376,250)
Balance, end of period (1,310,872) (1,386,696)

Total equity, end of period $ 3,363,573 $ 3,264,679
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TMX GROUP LIMITED
Non-Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
(unaudited)

Year Ended
December 31,

2018 2017

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Income before income taxes $ 185,986 $ 674,401

Adjustments to determine net cash flows:
Net finance income (173,988) (395,004)

Share of income of equity accounted investee (1,233) 1,031
Impairment charges 15,523 -

Other gain (26,635) (294,615)
Cost of share option plan 3,020 3,306
Other non-current assets (287) 14

Other receivables 1,266 115

Prepaid expenses 12 155
Trade and other payables (1,129) 2,279
Amounts due to and from related parties 12,786 (3,088)

Income taxes paid (11,707) (507)
3,614 (11.913)

Cash flows (used in) from financing activities:
Interest paid (44,749) (29,134)
Net settlement on derivative instruments 596 10,119

Dividends paid to equity holders (124,679) (107,853)
Proceeds fromexercised options 20,050 17,347
Issuanceof debenture 200,000 300,000

Repayment of debenture (400,000) -

Credit facility refinancing fees (1,137) (1,968)
Net movement of commercial paper (76,546) 85,253
Demand loans payable, net 148,500 (87,000)
Notes payable, net (13,137) (63,500)
Term loans payable, net - 550,000

(291,102) 673,264

Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Interest received 29,390 29,890
Dividends received 188,838 382,268
Dividend received from FTSE equity 7,723 -

Proceedsonsale of FTSE 70,450 -

Wind-up from Alpha Trading Systems Limited Partnership 642 -
Dissolution of Finexeo 106
investment in The Canadian Depository for Securities Limited (4,000) -

Investment in TSX Inc. (25,000) -

Investment in TMX Group inc. - (3,448)
Investment in 1877587 Ontario Limited - (69)

InvestmentinAgriClear Inc. - (3)
Return of capital from Alpha Trading Systems Limited Partnership - 13,100
Acquisitions of Trayportand sale of NGX, net of cash 4,451 (574,639)
Term loans receivable, net - (550,000)

272,599 (702,901)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (14,889) (41,550)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 18,996 60,546

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 4,107 $ 18,996

...6
BOX Exchange LLC Exhibit D-3 Page6



O P T I O N S

Exhibit D-4 - Bourse de Montréal Inc.



Non-Consolidated Financial Statements of

BOURSE DE MONTREAL INC.

Year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

(in thousands of Canadian dollars)
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BOURSE DE MONTREAL INC.
Non-Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
(unaudited)

December 31, December 31,
2018 2017

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,154 $ 10,091
Trade and other receivables 15,401 15,644
Prepaid expenses 609 354
Due from related parties 156 5,076
Demand loan receivable from TMX Group Limited 41,000 5,000
Current income tax assets - 1,001

68,320 37,166

Non-current assets:
Premises and equipment 762 371

Intangible assets 754,955 760,661
Goodwill 304,052 304,052

Investments in subsidiaries 91,791 91,791
Other non-current assets 525 -

Totai Assets $ 1,220,405 $ 1,194,041

Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities:

Trade and other payables $ 12,434 $ 7,732
Provisions 272 1,043

Due to related parties 1,472 191
Current income tax liabilities 3,787 -

17,965 8,966

Non-current liabilities:
Provisions 74 -

Accrued empioyee benefits payable 1,366 1,751
Other non-current liabilities 4,557 4,422
Deferred income tax liabilities 194,778 196,911

Total Liabilities 218,740 212,050

Equity:
Share capital 565,507 565,507
Contributed surplus 660,187 660,187
Deficit (224,029) (243,703)

Total Equity 1,001,665 981,991

Total Liabilities and Equity $ 1,220,405 $ 1,194,041
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BOURSE DE MONTREAL INC.
Non-Consolidated Statements of income
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)
(unaudited)

Three Months Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,

2018 2017 2018 2017

Revenue:

Derivatives trading S 24,939 S 19,823 $ 93,567 $ 83,578
Global solutions, insights & analytics 5,781 5,362 22,059 20,788
Other 148 67 524 139
Total revenue 30,868 25,252 116,150 104,505

Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 4,685 3,759 19,898 18,633
Information and trading systems 1,008 533 3,038 3.288
Selling, general and administration 3,357 1,705 13,529 7,724
Shared services 4,173 4,390 12,275 12,149
Depreciation and amortization 1,946 1,784 7,526 7,169

Total operating expenses 15,169 12,171 56,266 48,963

income from operations 15,699 13,081 59,884 55,542

Finance income (costs):
Finance income 81 5,215 5,632 10,589
Finance costs - (694) - (4,742)
Net finance income 81 4,521 5,632 5,847

income before income taxes 15,780 17,602 65,516 61,389

income tax expense 4,713 3,436 16,201 13,592

Net income $ 11,067 $ 14,166 $ 49,315 $ 47,797
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BOURSE DE MONTREAL INC.
Non-Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)
(unaudited)

Three Months Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,

2018 2017 2018 2017

Net income $ 11,067 $ 14,166 $ 49,315 $ 47,797

Other comprehensive income (loss):
Items that will not be reclassified to the non-consolidated

Income statements:

Actuarial gains (losses) on defined benefit pension and other post-
retirement benefit plans (net of taxes) 359 (113) 359 (113)
Total items that will not be reclassified to the non-consolidated

income statements 359 (113) 359 (113)

Total comprehensive income S 11,426 $ 14,053 $ 49,674 $ 47,684
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BOURSE DE MONTREAL INC.
Non-Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
(unaudited)

Year Ended

December 31,
2018 2017

Common shares:

Balance, beginning and end of period $ 565,507 $ 565,507

Contributed surplus:
Balance, beginning and end of period 660,187 660,187

Deficit:

Balance, beginning of period (243,703) (230,710)
Net income and comprehensive income 49,315 47,797
Dividends on common shares (30,000) (60,677)
Actuarial gains (losses) on defined benefit pension and other
post-retirement benefit plans, net of taxes 359 (113)
Balance, end of period (224,029) (243,703)

Total equity, end of period $ 1,001,665 $ 981,991
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BOURSE DE MONTREAL INC.
Non-Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)
(unaudited)

Three Months Ended Year Ended

December 31, December 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Income before income taxes $ 15,780 $ 17,602 $ 65,516 $ 61,389

Adjustments to determine net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization 1,946 1,784 7,526 7,169
Employeedefined benefits expense 46 69 182 187
Impairment charges and write-offs - (941) (121) (941)
Net finance income (81) (4,521) (5,632) (5,847)

Trade and other receivables, and prepaid expenses (5,696) (3,095) (12) (6,844)
Amounts due to and from related parties 362 (3,777) 6,201 (5,758)
Trade and other payables 4,458 657 4,702 (287)
Provisions (115) (416) (650) (1,335)

Other non-current liabilities (85) 4,422 135 4,422
Other non-current assets 10 - (525) -

Deferred revenue (387) (260) - -

Cash paid for employeedefined benefits (49) (22) (77) (69)
Income taxes paid (3,557) (3,630) (13,676) (17,567)

12,632 7,872 63,569 34,519

Cash flows (used in) from financing activities:
Interest paid - (694) - (4,742)
Dividends paid on common shares - (14,177) (30,000) (60,677)

Term loan payable, net - - - 105,000
- (14,871) (30,000) 39,581

Cash flows (used in) from investing activities:
Interestreceived 81 38 285 116
Dividends received - 5,177 5,347 10,473

Additions to premises and equipment (353) - (603) (3)
Additions to intangible assets (386) (772) (1,535) (2,667)
Investment in preferred shares of 2549283 Ontario Inc. - - - (105,000)

Demand loan receivable from TMX Group Limited (18,000) (5,000) (36,000) 20,000
(18,658) (557) (32,506) (77,081)

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (6,026) (7,556) 1,063 (2,981)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 17,180 17,647 10,091 13,072

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period S 11,154 $ 10,091 $ 11,154 $ 10,091
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Non-Consolidated Financial Statements of

MX US 1, INC.
Year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

(in thousands of US dollars)

(unaudited)
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MXUS1,INC.
Non-Consolidated BalanceSheets

(in thousands of USdollars)
(unaudited)

December 31, December31,
2018 2017

Assets
Current assets:

Cash $ 19 $ 40

Current income tax assets 50 25
69 65

Non-current assets: -

Investment in MX US 2, Inc. 48,692 48,692
Deferred income tax assets 8,886 8,862

Total Assets $ 57,647 $ 57,619

Liabilities and Equity
Current liabliities:

Other payables $ - $ 20

Due to related parties 18 4
Total Liabilities 18 24

Equity:
Sharecapital 2,508 2,508

Contributedsurplus 126,118 126,118
Deficit (70,997) (71,031)

Total Equity 57,629 57,595

Total Liabilities and Equity $ 57,647 $ 57,619
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MX US 1, INC.
Non-Consolidated Statements of locome and Comprehensive Income
(in thousands of US dollars)
(unaudited)

Year Ended

December 31,
2018 2017

Revenue:

Other $ 2 $ -

Total revenue 2 -

Expenses:
General and administration $ 37 $ 51

Total operating expenses 37 51

Loss from operations (35) (51)

Finance income 331 701

Income before income taxes 296 650

income tax (recovery) expense (8) 4,552

Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) $ 304 $ (3,902)

...3
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MX US 1,INC.
Non-Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
(in thousands of US dollars)
(unaudited)

Year Ended

December 31,
2018 2017

Common shares:

Balance, beginning and end of period S 2,508 $ 2,508

Contributed surplus:
Balance,beginning and end of period 126,118 126,118

Deficit:

Balance, beginning of period (71,031) (66,529)
Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (ioss) 304 (3,902)

Dividends oncommon shares (270) (600)
Balance, end of period (70,997) (71,031)

Total equity, end of period $ 57,629 $ 57,595

...4
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MX US 1, INC.
Non-Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands of US dollars)
(unaudited)

Year Ended

December 31,
2018 2017

Cash flows (used in) from operating activities:
Income before income taxes $ 296 $ 650

Adjustments to determine net cash flows:
Finance income (331) (701)

Amounts due to and from reiated parties 14 (112)

Other payables (20) 20

Income taxes paid (41) (24)
(82) (167)

Cash flows used in financing activities:

Dividends paid on common shares (270) (600)
(270) (600)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received 1 1
Dividends received 330 700

331 701

Decrease in cash (21) (66)

Cash, beginning of period 40 106

Cash, end of period $ 19 $ 40

...5
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Exhibit D-6 - MX US 2, Inc.



Non-Consolidated Financial Statements of

MXUS2,INC.
Year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

(in thousands of US dollars)

(unaudited)
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MXUS2,INC.
Non-Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands of US dollars)
(unaudited)

December 31, December 31,
2018 2017

Assets
Current assets:

Cash $ 16 $ 13
Current income tax assets 30 30

46 43

Non-current assets:

Investment in BOX Holdings Group LLC 16,517 15,798
Total Assets $ 16,563 $ 15,841

Liabilities and Equity
Equity:

Share capital 55,031 55,031
Contributed surplus 73,572 73,572
Deficit (112,040) (112,762)

Total Equity 16,563 15,841

Total Liabilities and Equity $ 16,563 $ 15,841

...2
BOX Exchange LLC Exhibit D-6 Page 2



MXUS2,1NC.
Non-Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
(in thousands of US dollars)
(unaudited)

Year Ended
December 31,

2018 2017

Expenses:
General and administration $ 1 $ -

Total operating expenses 1 -

Loss from operations (1) -

Share of net income of equity accounted investee 1,054 227
Finance income 1 1

Income before income taxes 1,054 228

income tax expense 2 2

Net income and comprehensive income $ 1,052 $ 226

...3
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MX US 2, INC.
Non-Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
(in thousands of US dollars)
(unaudited)

Year Ended

December31,
2018 2017

Common shares:

Balance, beginning and end of period $ 2,498 $ 2,498
Preferred shares:

Balance, beginning and end of period 52,533 52,533

Share capital, beginning and end of period 55,031 55,031

Contributed surplus:
Balance, beginning and end of period 73,572 73,572

Deficit:

Balance, beginning of period (112,762) (112,288)
Net income and comprehensive income 1,052 226
Dividends on common shares (330) (700)
Balance, end of period (112,040) (112,762)

Total equity, end of period $ 16,563 $ 15,841

...4
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MXUS2,1NC.
Non-Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(inthousands of US dollars)
(unaudited)

Year Ended

December 31,
2018 2017

Cash flows (used in) from operating activities:
Income before income taxes $ 1,054 $ 228

Adjustments to determine net cash flows:
Finance income (1) (1)

Share of net income of equity accounted investee (1,054) (227)
Amounts due to and from related parties - (4)
Income taxes paid (2) (3)

(3) (7)

Cash flows used in financing activities:
Dividends paid on common shares (330) (700)

(330) (700)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received 1 1
Dividends received 335 410

336 411

Increase (decrease) in cash 3 (296)

Cash, beginning of period 13 309

Cash, end of period $ 16 $ 13

...5
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Amendment to:

Exhibit I

Request:
For the latest fiscal year of the applicant, audited financial statements which are prepared
in accordance with, or in the case of a foreign applicant, reconciled with, United States

generally accepted accounting principles, and are covered by a report prepared by an
independent public accountant. If an applicant has no consolidated subsidiaries, it shall
file audited financial statements under Exhibit I alone and need not file a separate
unaudited financial statement for the applicant under Exhibit D.

Exhibit I is hereby amended by deleting the prior response in its entirety and
inserting a new response to Exhibit I as set forth below.

Response:

The 2018 audited financial statements of BOX Exchange LLC are submitted as Exhibit I.



O P T I O N D

Exhibit I - BOX Exchange LLC Financial Statements



BOXExchange LLC

FinancialStatements
December31, 2018
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Tel: 617-422-0700 one International Place
Fax: 617.422-0909 Boston,MA02110-1745

• www.bdo.com

independent Auditor's Report

Board of Directors and Members
BOXExchange LLC
Boston, Massachusetts

We haveaudited the accompanying financial statements of BOXExchangeLLC,which comprise the
balance sheet as of December 31,2018, and the related statements of income and expense, changes in
members' equity/(deficit), and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsiblefor the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordancewith accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generatty accepted in the United States of
America.Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessmentof the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,whether due to fraud or
error. In makingthose risk assessments,the auditor considersinternal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenessof
significant accounting estimates made by management, as wett as evatuating the overau presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairty, in all material respects, the
financial position of BOXExchange LLC as of December 31, 2018, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

May 29, 2019
B00 USA, LLP,a Delaware limited liability partnership.is the U.S.member of 500 International Umited, aUKcompanylimited byguarantee,and forms part or
the intemational BDO network of independent member firms.

BDOis the brand name for the 800 network and for each of the BDOMember Firms.
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BOXExchange LLC

Balance Sheet (in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2018

Assets

Current Assets:
Cash $ 715
Accounts receivable 3,630
Note receivable 3,326
Other current assets 1,947 .

Total Current Assets 9,618

Computer Equipment, Software and Leaseholdimprovements (Note 3):
Computer Equipment,.Software and Leaseholdimprovements 6,701
Accmulated Amortization andDepretiation (4,479)

2,222
Intangible Asset (Note4):
Intangible Asset 1,400
AccumulatedAmortization (700)

700

Total.Assets $ 12,540

Liabilities andMembers'.Equity

Current Liabilities:
Actounts payableandaccruedexpenses(Note 5) .S 9,324
Note Pavableto BOXMarket LLC,.bearinst Interest at a rate of 3% 1,000

Total Current Liabilities 10,324.

Deferred Compensation (Note 5) 1;373

Total Liabilities 11,697

Niembers'Equity:
Members' contributions - 100,000 economic units -
Members' contéibutions- 10O,000voting units -
Accumulated Members' distributions (86)
Accumulated earnings 929

843

Total Liabilities and Members' Egility $ 12;540

Seeaccompanying notes to financial statements.
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BOX.Exchange LLC

Statement of incomeand Expense (in thousands of dollars)

YearendedDecember31, 2018

Revenues:
Option.regulatory fees Š 16,072
Fines anddisgorgements 476

16;548

Expenses:
Professionalservices:

Financialandadministrative 1,297
Consulting (Note 8) . 3,427
Technicaland operational.(Note 8) 1,292
Other 1,679

Amoitization.and.depreciation 1,038
Employeecosts 5,466
Rent of fatilities 244
Office-related 85
Communicationsand data protessing 250
Other 358

15,136

Net Income $ 1,412

Seeaccompanyin2notes to financial statëinents.
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BOX Exchange LLC

Statement of Changes in Menibers' Equity/(Oeficit) (in thousands of dollars)

Économic Units- ÝótíngUnits Accumulated Accumulated Tótal
Mémbers' Members' Members' Eamings/ Members?

Contributions Corinibutions Distributione (Deficiency) Eliutty/(Deficit)

Balance,Decembér31,2017 $ - S - 5 (86) $ .(483) 5 (569)

Net income - 1,412 1,412

Balance; December 31, 2018 $ - S - $ (86) $ 929 S 843

Seeaccompanying notes to financial statements.

7

BOX Exchange LLC Exhibit I Page 8



BOXExchange LLC

.Stateinent of Cash Flows (in thousands of dollars)

Yearended December31,2018

CashFlows From Operatingictivities:
Net income S 1,412
Adjustmentsto reconcilenet incometo net cashprovided

by operating activities
Amortization anddepreciation 1,038
Non-cashcornpensation 608
Changesin operatirig.assets and.tiabilities:

Increase in accounts receivable (1,183)
Increase in note receivablo (2,084)
.Increase in other current assets (993)
Increasein accountspayableand accrued.expenses 2,676

Net cash.provided by operating.activities i,474

Cash Flows From Irivesting Attiviilies:
Purchaseof computer equipment, software andleaseholdimprovement (1,162)

Net cash.used in investing activities (1,162)

Het increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 312

Cash, Beginningof Year 403

Cash,Endóf Yeat $ 715

SupplementaiCash Flow information:
. Cashpaid for interest was $30 for the year ended December31,2O18.
Non-Cash investing Activities:

The Companyacquired 5241 of computer software, v/hich wereunpaidas of December31,
2018.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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BOXExChange LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (in thousands of dollars)

•l.Nature of Operations

BOXExchangeLLC(the "Company"),a Detawarelimited liability company,wasformedon August
26,2010andwasapprovedby the U.S.Securities andExchange Comruissionas a registered national
setrities exchangeon April 27 2012.Effective May 13,2012, the Cornpanyis the self-rëgulatory
orgariizatiön ("5Ps0")Whichis responsiblefor the operationandoversightof its facility, BOXOptions
MarketLLC("BOXMarket''). BOXMarket is an electronic market whose:principalbusiness is providing
a marketplate for tradihg optiiorison individual U.S.equities,U;5.equity indinesandU.i exchange
traded funds.The membersof the Company include affiliates of MXUS2 inc..('TMX"), IB Exchange
Corp ("LAB"),pitigroup Financial Products Inc.;4tadel Securities; LLC,USSAmericas Inc..(USA))
Credit SuišseFirst BostonNext Fundinc., LabMorgan Corp.,andAragon Solutions Ltd..Asthe self-
regulatory organizaiilonresponsible for the oyersight of the.BOX Market, the Company hasthe right
to receive all transaction fees charged to participants anduse suchfees for regulatory purposes,

. should its own Options Regulatory Feesbe insufficient to cover the cost of regulating BOXMarket.

2..Significant Acicounting Policies

Use.of Estimates.'

The preparationof financial statementsin conformity with accounting principlesgenerally accepted
in the UnitedStates of America requiresmanagement to triake estimates and assurnptionsthat affect
the reported arnountsof assëts and liabilities and to disclose contingeht assetsand liabilities at the
date of the financial statements, and the repórted amountsof revenue and expenses during the
reported year.Actual results coulddiffer froni those estimates.

Cashand CashEquivalents

Cashandcashequialents include amountson depositwittibanks.Certain amounts on.deposit with
banksexceedUnited $tates FederalDeposit insuranceCorporation ihsured limits.

AccountsReceivable, net

Actountsreceivable consist primarilyof transaction fees receivable and the Company's share of
distributable revenue receivable from Optians Price Reporting Authority ("OPRA") and Options
Regulatory Fees.

Allowancefor doubtful accountsis maintainedat a.level that managementbelieves to besufficient
to absorbestiinated lossesin the accounts receivable portfolio. It iscalcutated based on several
factors including, but not limited to, a continuous assessmentof the collectability of each account,
the length of time a receivable is past due and the historical experience with the particular
customer.:Managementreviewsthe allowance for doubtful accountsmonthlyand makes changes to
the reserve through the provision for bad.debts as appropriate.

BOX ExchangeLLC Exhibit I Page10



BOXExchangeLLC

Notes to liinancial Statemerits (in thousands of dollars)

Computer Equipment, Softwareand LeaseholdIrnprövements

Assetsconsist of computet hardware, ettuipmentandsoftware.

The Company's management determines the estimated useful livesand.rälated depreciationpolicies
för its computerhardware, equipment, softwareand leaseholdimprovements.The estimated.useful
.life representsthe projeòted period of time during which the assetveill be productively employed
by the Companyand is determined by management based on many factors, including historical
experience with similar assets,projected technology,.processand software life cyelesthat could
change due to technical innovationsandcompetitor antionsin responseto relatively volatile trading
industry.oycles.

To the extent actual useful lives are more or less than previously estimat;ed lives, the Companymay
decrease or increase its depreciation charge or will write.off or write.down technically obsoléteor
non-strategic assets.

The depreciation.method and estimated lives for the following assetsare asfollows:

Method Period

.Hardware and equipment Straight Line 3 years
Trade relätéd software Straight Line 5 yeart

Leaseholdimprovementsare amortized over the lesserof the estimated useful life or the minimum
lease term usingthe straight-line method.Intangible assets are amortfized over the useful life of
the asset.

Coniputet hardwáre, equipmeht' and leasehold improvements are carried at costs net .of
accumuláteddepreciatiönand amortization. Maintenarice and repairs that.do not improve efficiency
or éxtend economiclife are expensed.as incurred.

Revenue Recognition:

The Company receives its revenues frombptionsiRegulatory Fees ("ÓRF''),fines and disgorgaments,
and1ts facility service agreement.

ORF revenue is basedon the number of customer contracts executed by pacticipant firms and is
recognized.as earned..Facility services revenue represents the exceit of regulatory eoi:penses
incurred by the Company over ORFrevenue and ischarged to BOXMarket..Previously earned facilit
servicesrevenue can be returned to BOXMarket in.pedods where ORFrevenue exceedsreglatory
expenses,resulting in negative.facility servicesrevenue.

Fines anddisgorgements are recognized at the time they are earned.
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BOXExchange LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (in thousands of dollars)

3.Computer Equipment, Software and Leasehold improvernents

Computer equipment, softwareand leaseholdimprovementsat December3Í, 2018consistedof:

December 3S,20ï8

Cornputerequipment $ 1 79
Computersoftware 4 421
Leaseholdimprovements 301
Accumulated.amortization.anddepreciation (4,479)

S 2,222

Vor the yeaf-endedDecember 31.,2018, the Companyçapitalized softwafe development hardware
ad leaseholdimprovements.costs4f $1,364($528 acquired from TMX).Included in those costseere
cominutersoftwarecosts of $241,which the Company.acquiredduring2018,but were unpaid as of
Deceinber 31,2018.The Company.alsopaid $39 at the beginning of 2018 for computeiequiprnént
andsoftware acquiredat the end:of2017.

Amortization and.depreciation expense related to computer equipment, software, and leasehold
improvementsamountedto 5758for the year ended December 31,2018.

4.Intangible Assets

The Companypurchasedanintangible assetduring2016 with an assisjriedvalue of $1,400.The asset
purchased is the participation fee required for all entering membersto the Options EriceReporting
Authority LLC (OPRA).The fafr value assignedto the asset is the originät cost noted above.The
OPRA intar gible assetwas assigned an.estiritated useful life of 5 years, and it will be amortized
during that period with a residualvalue of $0.The Companyhasperformed a detailed analysisto
determine the usefl.life and residual value of the purchased asset.During 2018, the.Company
arialyzed the intangible asset for potential impairment Through this analysis, the Company
determined that there was no impairmene.on.the intangible asset.

During 2Oi8, the.Company recognized amortization expense of $280 related to intangible assets.

Estimated amortization expense for amortizable intangible assets is as follows:

YearsendingDecember 31, Ämounts

2019 S 280
2020 28O
.2021 140

Total . .5 70Ò
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BOXExchangeLLC

Notes to Finaiicial Statements (irt thousands of dollars)

5.Employee.Benefits

The Companyinstituted a Supplemental.BenefitPlan($BP)for key executives during2016.The 5BP
is non-qualified andunfunded.The:purpose of the SBPisto provide highly compensated employees
with deferred donopensation.The deferredtoinpensation will be paidwith a lump sumcashbenefit.
upori the performanceof services outlined in the SBP.

The SBPis funded through life insurancepoliciésownedby the Company.The benefit liability is.the
vested portion of the cash surrender valee (CSV) of the life insuraricespolicies at the time of
financial reporting. The policiesare capitalizedasother current assets.attheir CSV.Asof December
31;2018,the deferred compensation liability Was$13373,and the expenseassociatedwith deferred
cornpensationwas.also $608.

The Company sponsorsa defined contribution 40ik plan which allows for a match of contfibutions
to all eligible employees.In 2018, the Companyfecordedcontributions to the planof $192,.which
are present ed.in the 'Employee.costs'line item of the Statement of income and Expense.

6.Income Taxes

The Company is a limited liability company and treated as a partnership for income tax reporting
purposes.The Internal RevenueCode.("lRC'') providesthat any incomeor.lossis passedthrough to
the indiyidual membersfor federal income.tax purposes.The.Company makes periodic distributions
to its memberstö fnd the mémbérs' päyment of taxešwith respect to the Conipany'staxable
income,

In acc'ordance with Accounting St;andardsGodification ("ASC")Topid 740,a tax position is a.benefit
only if it is "rnore likely than not" that the tax position would be sustained in a tax examination,
with a tax.exarnination being presumedto occur.The ámount recognizedis the.largest amount of
ax beriefit that is greater than 50%likely of being realized on examination. For tax positións not

meeting the "more likely than nót" test, tio tax benefit 15Tecórded. The Cornpanyfecognizes
estimated interest, penalties and income taxes .related to uncertain tax positions in incóme tax
expense..As of December 31..20is,.the Comsianydetermined that it hadno mateñal uncertain tax
positions. Asa result; the Companyhad no.accrual.or provisionfor uncertain tax positions as of
December 31., 2018.The Company'sincorne tax returns are generally open for examination by U.S.
federal andState taxing.authotities. The Corripany is not currently under examination by any U.S.
federal or state income taxing authority. On December2.2,2017, H.R.1,the Tax Act, wasenacted
by U.S;.government.The Tax Act includessignificant changes to the internal Revenue Codeof 1986
that changedthe taxation of businessentities. These changes slidnot result in a significant impact
on the Company.

7.Commitments and Contracts

OnOctober30, 2018,the Conipányentered into a leasefor continued andadditional spacein the
Bostonoffice locatiori to accommodate increasëdpersónneland business functions. There is.$343
in the other assetsbalance related to the security depósit and first month's rent that waspaid at
the time the leasewas signed.
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BOX ExchangeLLC

Notes to Financial Staternents (in thousands.of dollars)

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASUNo.2016-02, Leases (Topic .842). The new .standard
establishes a right-of-use ("ROU") model that retiuires a lesseeto record a ROUasset and a lease
liability ori the balancesheet for all leaseswith terms longer thantwelve months.At inception,,
leaseswill.be classifiedas either finance or operating, with classificationaffedting the pattemòf
expetise recognition in the.incoine statement.

InJuly 201.8,theiASB issuedASU2018-11,Leases(Topic 842):Targeted.lmprovements,whiahallows
for an additional transition method under the modified retrospective approach for the adoption of
Topic 842.The two permitted transition methods.are.now: (1) to apply the new.leaserequirements
at ehe.beginning of the earliest period presented, and (2) to apply the new leaserequirementsat
the effectlye date.Thë Companyintends to adopt Topic 842 on January 1,2019 by applying the
new leasereciuirementsat the effective date.The Company also intends to elect the package of
practical expedients perniitted under the transition. guidance wifhin the new standard, which,
among other things, allows the Company to carry forward the historical lease classification. The
Companyhasperformed an initial evaluation.of the potential impact of the new .guidance on its
FinancialStatementsandrelated disclosuresand anticipates that the impact of the new guidance
is immaterial.

Aggrégate future miniinum rentals for the Bostonspace asof December31,2018are as follows:

Years eviding Decembér 31, Amounts

2019 .$ 101
2020 680
2021 838
2022 852
2O23and thereafter 1,894

Total $ 4,365

8.Related Party contracts and Transactions

The Companyhasenteredinto severalagreementsviith TMX,BOXMarket,andBOXDigitalmarkets
to ptovide certain admiriistrative, regulatory, consulting and technical andoperätional services for
certain software and computer hårdeare equipinent ánd maintain and support certain data
transmissionsandother serviaes.

TMX

TMX,a member of the company,,provides the Coripany with tertain software and. computer
hardware equlnient, maintenance of software, certain data tranadiission support -and other
services urider the operational services agreement.

During the year the Companyrecognizedprofessional fees to TMXof $1,292.in 2018 under the
Technica! andoperational expense line item on the Statementiof intone and Expense.Fixed assets
purchased froin TMX gre outlined in Note3.Amountsowed toTMX asof December 31,2018 of $f27
are reflected in accounts.payableandaccrued expenses on the balance sheet.

13

BOX Exchange LLC Exhibit I Page 14



BOXExChangeLLC

Notes to Financial Statements (in thousands.of dollars)

Bok Market

The Company hasa Facility Services Agreementwith SOXMarketto provide it with anSRostructure
andongoingoversight of the market operations aswell.as regulatory functions. All.transaction fees
earned by BOnharket are billed and collected by the Company and subsequently remitted to BOX
Market. Amounts payableto BOXMarket as of December31,2018of $7,854are included in accounts
payableandaccruedexpenses on the balancesheet.

TheeCornpany hasanAdministrative Services Agreement (ASA)with BOXMatket which providesthe
Compariy with certain support. services such :as accounting/finance, legal, human resources,
communicationsand administrative support.During fiscal year 2018, BOXMarket çhárged the
Company$30 in interest expense related to the intercoinpany loan and$150for the ASAservices
outlined above..BOX Market also sought reimbursement for $2,590 froin the Companyfor
transactions paid for bySOXMarket on behalf of the Company.The Company.charged BOXMarket
$316 during 2018 for charges paid by the Conipany on behalf of BOXMarket.A receivable from BOX
Market of $76wasrecordedin Accounts receivableas of Degember 31,2018.

BOXDigital

The Company has:an Administiative Services.Agreement (ASA)with BOXDigital foi the Compahyto
provide certain professionalservices and resourcesto support the operations of BOX Diglial.. lá
relation to the ASAagreement, the Companysought reinibursementfor personnelwages in relation
to:Work performed on behalf of BOXDígital. These reirnbursementstotaled $151..Asof December
31, 2018,$16was recorded in Account receivable.in relation to chargebacks.toBOX Digital. BOX
Digital soughtreimbursementfor personnelwork performed on behalf of the Company in the amount
of $6,which wasrecordedin Accounts payableasof December31 2018.

9.jaembers'Equity

Asof December31, 2018, the Company hastwo classesof LLCMembership Units outstanding. Ône
elassof units hasVötirig rights arid the other dlass of units haseconomic.rights.The number of units
for both voting and economic rights asof December 31,2018 are 100,000,with 83,886units of each
type putstanding. There were no movementsin units during the year.

10.Subsequent Events

The Company.hasevaluated subsequentevents throulih May 29, 2019,the date these financial
statements.were available to be issyed.There were no rnaterial subsequenteverits that required
recognition or additional disclosure inthe financial statements.
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Amendment to:

Exhibit J

Request:
A list of the officers, governors, members of all standing committees, or persons
performing similar functions, who presently hold or have held their offices or positions
during the previous year, indicating the following for each:

1. Name.

2. Title.

3. Dates of commencement and termination of term of office or position.

4. Type of business in which each is primarily engaged (e.g.,floor broker, specialist,
odd lot dealer, etc.).

Exhibit J is hereby amended by deleting the prior response in its entirety and
inserting a new response to Exhibit J as set forth below.

Response:

1.Officers:

Each of the following officers were elected to serve until his or her successor is elected
and qualified or until his or her earlier resignation or removal.

Name: Title: Date of Commencement:

Tony McCormick Chief Executive Officer April 28, 2011
Lisa Fall President, Chief Legal April 28,2011

Officer, and Secretary
Bruce Goodhue Chief Regulatory Officer January 1,2014



O P T I O N D

2.Directors:

Each of the following directors was elected on July 19,2018 to a one-year term, each to
serve until his replacement is duly elected or until his earlier death, disability, removal or
resignation.

Name: Title: Primary Business:
Kurt Eckert Participant Director Options Trading
Sean Flynn Participant Director Options Trading
Peter Layton BOX Holdings Director CEO
Laurence Mollner Non-Industry Director |None/Retired
Paul Stevens Non-Industry Director None/Retired

Robert Whaley Non-Industry Public Director Professor
Susan Whiting Non-Industry Director None/Retired

3.Committees:

Each of the following committee members was elected on July 19,2018 to a one-year

term, each to serve until his replacement is duly elected or until his earlier death,
disability, removal or resignation.

Audit Committee

• Peter Layton
• Laurence Mollner
• Paul Stevens

Compensation Committee
• Laurence Mollner

• Paul Stevens

• Robert Whaley

• Susan Whiting

Regulatory Oversight Committee
• Laurence Mollner

• Paul Stevens

• Robert Whaley
• Susan Whiting

Risk Committee:

• Kurt Eckert

• Peter Layton
• Laurence Mollner
• Paul Stevens

• Robert Whaley
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Nominating Committee
• Kurt Eckert

• Sean Flynn

• Peter Layton
• Laurence Mollner
• Paul Stevens

• Robert Whaley
• Susan Whiting



Amendment to:

Exhibit K

Request:
This Exhibit is applicable only to exchanges that have one or more owners, shareholders,
or partners that are not also members of the exchange.If the exchange is a corporation,
please provide a list of each shareholder that directly owns 5% or more of a class of a
voting security of the applicant. If the exchange is a partnership, please provide a list of
all general partners and those limited and special partners that have the right to receive
upon dissolution, or have contributed, 5% or more of the partnership's capital. For each
of the persons listed in the Exhibit K, please provide the following:

1. Full legal name;

2. Title or Status;

3. Date title or status was acquired;

4. Approximate ownership interest; and

5. Whether the person has control, a term that is defined in the instructions to this
Form.

Exhibit K is hereby amended by deleting the prior response in its entirety and
inserting a new response to Exhibit K as set forth below.

Response:

MXUS2,Inc.
1. MXUS2,Inc.
2. LLC Member

3. May 10,2012
4. 40% Equity interest; 20% Voting interest
5. This entity has "control" of the applicant as defined in the instructions to

this Form.
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IB Exchange Corporation
1. IB Exchange Corporation
2. LLC Member

3. May 10, 2012
4. 20% Equity interest; 20% Voting interest
5. This entity does not have "control" of the applicant as defined in the

instructions to this Form.

CSFB Next Fund Inc.
1. CSFB Next Fund Inc.
2. LLC Member

3. May 10,2012
4. Less than 15%Equity and Voting interest
5. This entity does not have "control" of the applicant as defined in the

instructions to this Form.

LabMorgan Corp.
1. LabMorgan Corp.
2. LLC Member

3. May 10,2012
4. Less than 15% Equity and Voting interest
5. This entity does not have "control" of the applicant as defined in the

instructions to this Form.

Citigroup Financial Products Inc.
1. Citigroup Financial Products
2. LLC Member

3. May 10,2012
4. Less than 15%Equity and Voting interest
5. This entity does not have "control" of the applicant as defined in the

instructions to this Form.

UBS Americas Inc.
1. UBS Americas Inc.
2. LLC Member

3. May 10,2012
4. Less than 15%Equity and Voting interest
5. This entity does not have "control" of the applicant as defined in the

instructions to this Form.
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Citadel Securities Principal Investments LLC
1. Citadel Securities LLC
2. LLC Member

3. May 10, 2012
4. Less than 20% Equity and Voting interest
5. This entity does not have "control" of the applicant as defined in the

instructions to this Form.



Amendment to:

Exhibit M

Request:
Provide an alphabetical list of all members, participants, subscribers or other users,
including the following information:

1. Name;

2. Date of election to membership or acceptance as a participant, subscriber or other
user;

3. Principal business address and telephone number;

4. If member, participant, subscriber or other user is an individual, the name of the
entity with which such individual is associated and the relationship of such
individual to the entity (e.g.partner, officer, director, employee, etc.);

5. Describe the type of activities primarily engaged in by the member, participant,
subscriber, or other user (e.g.floor broker, specialist, odd lot dealer,other market

maker, proprietary trader, non-broker dealer, inactive or other functions). A
person shall be "primarily engaged" in an activity or function for purposes of this
item when that activity or function is the one in which that person is engaged for
the majority of their time. When more than one type of person at an entity
engages in any of the six types of activities or functions enumerated in this item,
identify each type (e.g.proprietary trader, Registered Competitive Trader and
Registered Competitive Market Maker) and state the number of members,
participants, subscribers, or other users in each; and

6. The class of membership,participation or subscription or other access.

Exhibit M is hereby amended by deleting the prior response in its entirety and
inserting a new response to Exhibit M as set forth below.

Response:

A list of BOX Options Participants, including the requested information, is attached
hereto asExhibit M.
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BOX Exchange LLC
Form 1Amendment No.33

Exhibit M - List of Members

1.ORGANIZATION PRIMARY BUSINESSNAME 2.BOX 3(a).PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ADDRESS .1(b).PHONE 4.NOT 5.ACI'IVITIES 6.Oass of
APPROVED NUMBER APPLICABLE ENGAGED IN Participation

ABN AMRO CLEARING CHICAGO LLC 05/07/12 175 W Jackson Blvd . Suite 2050. Chicago, IL 60604 312-604-8000 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

APEX CLEARING CORPORATION 06/06/12 One Dallas Center, 350 N St Paul. Sutte 1300, Dallas. TX 75201 214-765-1055 Rule 2040(a) restnets Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

AXOS CLEARING LLC(f/k/a COR CLEARING) 05/07 12 1299 Farnum Street. Suite 800.Omaha. NE 68102 402 384-6100 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

BARCLAYS CAPITAL INC 05/07/12 745 7th Avenue, New York. NY 10019 212-526-7000 Rule 2040(a) restricts Market Maker and See Previous Column

participanon on BOX Order Flow Provider

BELVEDERE TRADING LLC 05/07 12 10 S Riverside Plaza, Suite 2100, Chicago. IL 60606 312-893-3750 Rule 2040(a) restnets Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

BMO CAPITAL MARKETS CORP 05/09/12 3Times Square. New York, NY 10036 212-885-4000 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

BNP PARIBAS SECURITIES CORP 05/07/12 787 Seventh Avenue. New York, NY 10019 212-84l-2000 Rule 2040(a) restncts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

BOFA SECURIT[ES INC 09/06 18 One Bryant Park, New York. NY 10036 212-670-0454 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

CITADEL SECURITIES LI C 05/07 12 131 South Dearbom Street, 32nd Floor. Chicago, IL 60603 312-395-2100 Rule 2040(a) restricts Market Maker and See Previous Column

participation on BOX Order Flow Provider

CITIGROUP DERIVATIVES MARKET S INC 05 07/12 130 Cheshire Lane Suite 102. Minnetonka, MN 55305 952-475-5530 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Pres sous Column

participation on BOX

CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS [NC 05 01/19 388 Greenwich Street. Tower Buildmg. New York. NY 10013 716-730-8446 Rule 2040(a) restnets Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

CREDIT SUlSSE SECURITIES (USA) LLC 05 07 12 11 Madison Avenue. New York, NY 10010 212-325-2000 Rule 2040(a) restncts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

CTC, LLC to 02 17 425 S Fmancial Place. 4th Floor. Chicago, IL 60605 312-863-8000 Rule 2040(a) restnets Tradmg Floor - See Previous Column

participation on BOX Market Maker



1.ORGANIZATION PRIMARY BUSINESS NAME 2.BOX 3(a). PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ADDRESS 3(b).PHONE 4.NOT 5.ACTIVITIES 6.Class of

APPROVED NUMBER APPLICABLE ENGAGED IN Participation

DASH FINANCIAL TECHNOLOGIES LLC 05/07/12 311 S Wacker Drive, Ste 1000, Chicago, IL 60606 312-986-2006 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

DEUTSCHE BANK SECURITIES INC 05/07/l2 60 Wall Street, New York. NY 10005 212-250-2500 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

DRW SECURITIES, LLC 06/06 18 540 West Madison Street, Suite 2500, Chicago, IL 60661 (312) 542-1000 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participanon on BOX

GLOBAL EXECUTION BROKERS, LP 05/07/12 401 City Avenue, Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004 610-617-2600 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO , LLC 05/07/12 200 West Street, New York. NY 10282 212-902-1000 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

GROUP ONE TRADING, L P 10/05/16 440 S LaSalle Street, Suite 3400, Chicago, IL 60605 312-347-8864 Rule 2040(a) restricts Market Maker - See Previous Column

participation on BOX Electronic and

Tradmg Floor -

Market Maker

HARDCASTLE TRADING USA L L C 05/07/12 755 Secaucus Road, Suite F1 I lo, Secaucus, NJ 07094 201-305-8888 Rule 2040(a) restricts Market Maker and See Previous Column

participation on BOX Order Flow Provider

IMC FINANCIAL MARKETS, LLC 01/01/14 233 S Wacker Drive, #4300, Chicago, IL 60606 312-244-3300 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column
participation on BOX

TNSTINET, LLC 05/07 12 Worldwide Plaza, 309 West 49th Street, New York, NY 10019 212-310-9500 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

INTERACTIVE BROKERS LLC 05/07 12 One Pickwick Plaza, 2nd Floor, Greenwich, CT 06830 203-618-5710 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

3.P MORGAN SECURITIES LLC 05/07/12 183 Madison Avenue, New York, NY 10179 212-272-2000 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

JANE STREET CAPITAL, LLC 10/04 16 250 Vesey Street, 5th Floor. New York, NY 10281 646-759-6000 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

JANE STREET OPTIONS. LLC 10/04 16 250 Vesey Street. 5th Floor. New York, NY 10281 646-759-6000 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX



1.ORGANIZATION PRIMARY BUSINESS NAME 2.BOX 3(a). PRINCIPAL BUSINESSADDRESS 3(b).PHONE 4.NOT 5.ACIIVITIES 6.Class of

APPRQVED NUMBER APPLICABLE ENGAGED IN Participation

JEFFERIES LLC 05/07/12 520 Madison Avenue. New York, NY 10022 212-284-2300 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

LEK SECURITIES CORPORATION 05/07/l2 I Liberty Plaza, 165 Broadway. 52nd Floor. New York. NY 10006 212-509-2300 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column
participation on BOX

MATRIX EXECUTIONS LLC 05/07/12 135 S LaSalle. Suite 3900, Clucago, IL 60603 312-334-8040 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column
participanon on BOX and Trading Floor -

Floor Broker

MERRILL LYNCH PROFESSIONAL CLEARING CORP 05/07/12 One Bryant Park. 6th Floor. NYi-100-06-01. New York. NY 10036 646-743-1295 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column
participation on BOX

MERRILL LYNCH, PIERCE. FENNER & SMITH 05/07 12 One Bryant Park. 6th Floor. New York, NY 10036 800-637-7455 Rule 2040(a) restnets Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

INCORPORATED participation on BOX

MORGAN STANLEY & CO LLC 05/07 12 1585 Broadway, New York, NY 10036 212-761-4000 Rule 2040(a) restnets Market Maker and See Previous Column

participation on BOX Order Flow Provider

NATIONAL FINANCIAL SERVICES LLC 05/07/12 200 Seaport Blvd . Boston, MA 02110 617-563-7000 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

NOMURA SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL, INC 05/07/12 Worldwide Plaza, 309 West 49th Street, New York, NY 10019 212-667-9000 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

PEAK6 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT LLC 05/07/12 141 W Jackson Blvd , Suite 500, Chicago, IL 60604 312-444-8000 Rule 2040(a) restnets Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

PERSHENG LLC 05/07 12 l Pershing Plaza. Jersey City, NJ 07399 201-413-2000 Rule 2040(a) restnets Order Flow Provider See Preuous Column

participation on BOX

RBC CAPITAL MARKETS. LLC 05/07 12 3 World Financial Center. 200 Vesey Street, New York. NY 10281 212-858-7000 Rule 2040(a) restnets Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participatton on BOX

RONIN PROFESSIONAL LLC 05/07/12 350 North Orleans. 2N, Chicago, IL 60654 312-244-5400 Rule 2040(a) restnets Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

SG AMERICAS SECURITIES. LLC 05/07 12 245 Park Avenue, New York, NY 10167 212-278-6000 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX



1.ORGANIZATION PRIMARY BUSINESS NAME 2.BOX 1(a).PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ADDRESS 3(b).PHONE 4.NOT 5.ACI IVITIES 6.Class of

APPROVED NUMBER APPLICABLE ENGAGED IN Participation

SIMPLEX TRADING, LLC 08/05/16 230 S. LaSalle Street. Suite 4-100. Chicago, IL 60604 312-360-2440 Rule 2040(a) restnets Market Maker and See Previous Column

participation on BOX Order Flow Provider

SUSQUEHANNA SECURITIES 05/07/12 401 City Avenue, Suite 220. Bala Cynwyd. PA 19004 610-617-2600 Rule 2040(a) restnets Market Maker and See Previous Column

participation on BOX Order Flow Provider

TWO SIGMA SECURJTIES LLC 08/02 17 101 Avenue of the Amencas, 19th Floor. New York, NY 10013 212-625-5700 Rule 2040(a) restricts Market Maker and See Previous Column

participation on BOX Order Flow Provider

UBS FINANCIAL SERVICES INC 05/09/12 1200 Harbor Blvd, Weehawken, NJ 07086 201-352-3000 Rule 2040(a) restnets Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

UBS SECURITIES LLC 05/07/12 1285 Avenue of the Americas, New York. NY 10019 203-719-3000 Rule 2040(a) restnets Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

VOLANT EXECUTION LLC 05/07 12 233 S Wacker Dave. 44040. Chicago, IL 60606 646-804-7975 Rule 2040(a) restncts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

VOLANT LIQUIDITY LLC 05/07 12 250 Vesey Street, Suite 2601, New York, NY 10281 646-804-7900 Rule 2040(a) restricts Market Maker and See Previous Column

participation on BOX Order Flow Provider

WALLEYE TRADING LLC 05/07 12 2800 Niagra Lane North, Plymouth, MN 55447 952 345-6611 Rule 2040(a) restnets Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

WEDBUSH SECURITIES INC 05/07/12 1000 Wilshire Blvd, Suite 900, Attn Business Conduct, los Angeles. CA 213-688-8090 Rule 2040(a) restnets Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

90017 participation on BOX

WELLS FARGO SECURITIES. LLC 05/07 12 550 S Tryon Street, 6th Floor. D1086-060. Charlotte, NC 28202 704-410-1913 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column

participation on BOX

WOLVERINE EXECUTION SERVICES, LLC 05 07 12 175 W Jackson Blvd . Suite 200, Chicago. IL 60604 312-884-4000 Rule 2040(a) restricts Order Flow Provider See Previous Column
participation on BOX and Trading Floor -

Floor Broker

WOLVERINE TRADING, LLC 05 07 12 175 W Jackson Blvd , Suite 200, Chicago. IL 60604 312-884-4000 Rule 2040(a) restricts Market Maker - See Previous Column

participation on BOX Electronic and

Tradmg Floor -
Market Maker
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Amendment to:

Exhibit N

Request:
Provide a schedule for each of the following:

1. The securities listed in the exchange, indicating for each the name of the issuer
and a description of the security;

2. The securities admitted to unlisted trading privileges, indicating for each the name
of the issuer and a description of the security;

3. The unregistered securities admitted to trading on the exchange which are exempt
from registration under Section 12(a) of the Act. For each security listed, provide
the name of the issuer and a description of the security, and the statutory
exemption claimed (e.g. Rule 12a-6); and

4. Other securities traded on the exchange, including for each the name of the issuer
and a description of the security.

Exhibit N is hereby amended by deleting the prior response in its entirety and
inserting a new response to Exhibit N as set forth below.

Response:

The Exchange trades only equity and index options which are listed on other exchanges
and cleared by the Options Clearing Corporation ("OCC'). For a description of the
criteria used to determine what securities may be traded on the Exchange, please refer to
Exchange Rules 5020 - 5030, 6020, and 6090.

As of June 4, 2019 BOX Options Exchange LLC lists a total of 2,360 classes. The total
number of classes listed for trading and a downloadable list of Current BOX Options
Classes Listing are continuously available on the Exchange's website at the following
address: https://boxoptions.com/resources/options-classes-listed/. The Exchange certifies
that the information available at the above location is accurate as of its date.


